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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK
EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE
“STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate small and mid-sized companies to which a
higher investment risk may be attached than other companies
listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be
aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and
should make the decision to invest only after due and careful
consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small
and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that securities traded
on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than
securities traded on the Main Board and no assurance is given
that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on
GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange
take no responsibility for the contents of this report, make no
representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly
disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from
or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of China
Regenerative Medicine International Limited (the “Company”)
collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes
particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”)
for the purpose of giving information with regard to the Company.
The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to
the best of their knowledge and belief the information contained in
this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not
misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters the omission
of which would make any statement herein or this report misleading.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EFERE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of China
Regenerative Medicine International Limited (the “Company”), | am
honoured to present the annual results of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2024.

The past year marked a pivotal phase for the Group as we aligned our
development plans with the anticipated resumption of cross-border
activities. Following the inauguration of our surgery and day medical
clinic in late 2022, we expanded our service portfolio to deliver
comprehensive medical, aesthetic, and value-added healthcare
solutions, addressing the evolving needs of our clients. By integrating
advanced medical expertise with tailored services, we strengthened
our position as a trusted partner in Hong Kong’s premium healthcare
sector.

A key initiative in 2024 was our focus on medical-academic exchange
programs, through which we disseminated high-quality medical
knowledge to Mainland clients. This not only deepened trust among
high net-worth individuals but also generated sustainable revenue
streams, leveraging Hong Kong'’s reputation for excellence.

To further propel our operations, the Board implemented three core
strategies:

1. Portfolio Optimisation: Streamlining asset portfolios to prioritise
synergistic business segments, enhancing operational
efficiency, and improving profitability.

2. Mainland China Collaborations: Partnering with industry leaders
in Mainland China to combine resources, elevate service
standards, and secure long-term growth.

3. Talent and Governance Enhancement: Revitalizing our
management structure by recruiting influential industry experts,
bolstering competitiveness and innovation.

We remain committed to attracting like-minded partners to share the
growth of the medical industry, fostering a collaborative ecosystem
that benefits all stakeholders.

Our unwavering commitment to treating our customer network as
one of our most valuable assets is the key of our achievement. Every
client interaction is guided by personalised care, transparency, and
a dedication to exceeding expectations. By prioritising long-term
relationships, we ensure seamless experience from consultation
to post-treatment follow-ups. This customer-centric philosophy
helps generated word-of-mouth through referrals and reinforces our
reputation as a leader in premium healthcare.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EEHRE

On behalf of the Board, | extend heartfelt gratitude to our HKNAZBRXRESZSeREEEBELEINTHEH
management team and employees for their relentless dedication. We — BUA RO R - RPIMREESE  HER - &1F
also thank our clients, suppliers, partners, shareholders, and investors 4 - RER R IREEZHEERBSHNET(ET -
for their steadfast trust in the Group’s vision.

As we move forward, the Group will continued focusing on innovation, 2 A& - ANEE G EE TR AIF - B IER
strategic expansion, and operational excellence. By harmonizing 2 5 # & E o 15 38 15 28 i B i B ] 45 48 B B AR 45
cutting-edge technologies with sustainable practices, we are poised & @ HFIESFZ > R HILEE S - A L E M
to capitalize on emerging opportunities in Hong Kong, Mainland [ A 3T EL# S - RMIEKEXNNEE - NER
China, and beyond. The resilience of our business model, combined P RA&EB M B3 - FRIFIEWETE S
with the loyalty of our clients and partners, positions us to deliver ~ E & IKIEBP A& AMEE -

enduring value in an evolving global landscape.

Your continued trust and support inspire us to reach new heights. TCHREETEATHBEBBEMERFTHEE -
By the order of the Board EEEEMm

Wang Chuang B

Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer EFFERITBAH

28 March 2025 —E-hE=A=-+\H
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BT wm S T

In 2024, the Group continues navigating a complex macroeconomic
landscape marked by gradual global recovery, shifting consumer
priorities, and evolving regional dynamics. Following the full
resumption of cross-border activities, Hong Kong has regained
momentum as a hub for medical tourism, particularly for Mainland
clients seeking high-quality aesthetic and healthcare services. While
the retail sector remains challenged by changing consumption
patterns, the Group’s focus on medical aesthetics and value-
added healthcare has proven resilient, driven by sustained demand
from health-conscious consumers and Hong Kong’s reputation
for rigorous standards of regulation and technological innovation.
Notably, the Group’s aesthetic and medical beauty services segment
outperformed last year’s results, but the medical services segment
experienced weaker performance due to intensified competition and
shifting patient preferences toward specialised clinics.

Our key strategy is recognising our customer network remains as one
of our most valuable assets. We are committed to treating every client
with exceptional care, prioritising personalised service, transparency,
and long-term trust. We ensure seamless engagement across all
touchpoints — from initial consultation to post-treatment follow-ups.
This customer-centric approach not only strengthens retention but
also helps generate word-of-mouth through referrals, particularly
among Mainland clients who value Hong Kong’s premium service
standards.

As the Group advances through 2024, it remains steadfast in its
commitment to navigating challenges with agility while capitalising
on emerging opportunities. By deepening customer relationships
through personalised care, expanding its geographic footprint, and
integrating innovative technologies, the Group is well-positioned
to adapt to evolving market demands. The unwavering trust of its
clientele, coupled with strategic investments in service excellence, will
continue to underpin its resilience and drive sustainable growth. In
an era defined by rapid change, the Group’s dedication to prioritising
customer needs and maintaining operational adaptability ensures its
enduring relevance in Hong Kong’s dynamic healthcare and medical
aesthetics landscape.

FUTURE PROSPECT

The Group continues to strive for opportunity to widen its business
scope in the healthcare industry and reallocate its resources when
appropriate, to strengthen and maintain as one of the leading
pioneers in the healthcare products and services sector.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B R am S T

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Result

The Group recorded a revenue of approximately HK$90.62 million
for the year ended 31 December 2024, representing an increase of
approximately 30.41% from last year (2023: approximately HK$69.49
million). Gross profit increased by approximately 196.83% to
approximately HK$57.65 million from last year (2023: approximately
HK$19.42 million) was primarily driven by stricter control over service
fees during the year, leading to improved cost efficiency.

The Group achieved a notable turnaround, recording a profit for the
year of approximately HK$17.75 million (2023: loss of approximately
HK$107.70 million). The turnaround mainly arose from reversal of
expected credit loss on other receivables of approximately HK$12.29
million (20283: provision for expected credit loss on other receivables
of approximately HK$83.00 million).

The overall increase in revenue was primarily attributable to more PRC
visitors came to our Hong Kong clinic centre for our services during
the year. The Group’s total operating expenses for the year ended
31 December 2024 amounted to approximately HK$51.52 million,
representing an increase of approximately 13.14% as compared to
last year (2023: approximately HK$45.54 million).

Net Current (Liabilities)/Assets and Net Assets

As at 31 December 2024, the Group recorded net current liabilities
of approximately HK$0.56 million (2023: net current assets of
approximately HK$20.79 million) and net assets of approximately
HK$25.20 million (2023: approximately HK$11.79 million). The net
current liabilities position as at 31 December 2024 was mainly arisen
from the reclassification of certain other receivables from current
assets to non-current assets in accordance with the repayment
schedule in the agreement signed in March 2024 (2023: such other
receivables were wholly classified as current assets). The increase
in net assets was mainly attributable to the profit for the year of
approximately HK$17.75 million. The Board will closely monitor
the development and operation of the businesses and improve the
financial position of the Group.

Cash and Bank Balances

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had cash and bank balances of
approximately HK$22.70 million (2023: HK$3.33 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONT’D)
Liquidity and Financial Resources

Working Capital and Gearing Ratio

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had current assets of
approximately HK$58.31 million (2023: HK$168.58 million), while
its current liabilities stood at approximately HK$58.87 million (2023:
HK$147.79 million), representing a net current liabilities position with a
working capital ratio (current assets to current liabilities) of 0.99 (2023:
a net current assets position with a working capital ratio of 1.14).

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had no bank borrowings
but shareholders’ loans of approximately HK$49.10 million (2023:
HK$35.21 million). The gearing ratio of the Group as at 31 December
2024, calculated as shareholders’ loans to total equity was 1.95
(2023: 2.99).

TREASURY POLICY

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management approach
towards its treasury policy. To manage the liquidity risk, the Board
closely monitors the Group’s liquidity position to ensure that
the liquidity structure of the Group’s assets, liabilities and other
commitments can meet its funding requirements from time to time.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group’s business transactions, assets and liabilities are principally
denominated in Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars. The Directors
consider the risk of foreign exchange exposure of the Group is
manageable. The management will continue to monitor the foreign
exchange exposure of the Group and is prepared to take prudent
measures such as hedging when appropriate actions are required.

MATERIALS ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

Save as disclosed in this report, the Group has no material
acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures during the year.

CAPITAL AND OTHER COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had no significant capital and
other commitments.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT HELD

Save for the Company’s investment in various subsidiaries, the Group
did not hold any significant investments as at 31 December 2024.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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CHARGES OF ASSETS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had no material charge of
assets or contingent liabilities (2023: Nil).

EVENT AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

The Group has no significant events after the reporting period.

DETAILS OF FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL
INVESTMENT OR CAPITAL ASSETS

On 29 December 2023, CRMI HK Health Technology Limited (“CRMI
Health”) (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company), Changzhou
Xingkong Medical Beauty Clinic Co., Ltd. (“Changzhou Xingkong”)
and Changzhou Bomei Biotechnology Co., Ltd. (“Target Company”)
entered into a capital increase and subscription agreement pursuant
to which CRMI Health shall make the capital contribution of
RMB10,250,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$11,172,500) in
cash to the Target Company, among which, RMB250,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$272,500) will be contributed to the increase in
the registered capital of the Target Company and RMB10,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$10,900,000) will be contributed
to its capital reserve. Upon completion, subject to the satisfaction
and/or waiver of the conditions precedent set out in the capital
increase and subscription agreement, the Target Company will be
held as to approximately 33.3% by CRMI Health and approximately
66.7% by Changzhou Xingkong. For details, please refer to the
Company’s announcements dated 29 December 2023, 15 January
2024 and 2 February 2024. As at date of this report, the above
proposed transaction is under negotiation between CRMI Health
and Changzhou Xingkong, and the Company will make further
announcement as and when necessary.

Save as disclosed in this report, the Group did not have any concrete
plans for material investment or capital assets as at 31 December
2024.

EMPLOYEE INFORMATION AND REMUNERATION
POLICIES

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had 34 (2023: 46) employees in
Hong Kong and Mainland China. As an equal opportunity employer,
the Group’s remuneration and bonus policies are determined with
reference to the performance and experience of individual employees.
The total amount of employee remuneration (including that of the
Directors and retirement benefits scheme contributions) of the Group
for the year was approximately HK$16.58 million (2023: HK$15.99
million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BT wm S T

MATERIAL REVERSAL OF/PROVISION FOR
EXPECTED CREDIT LOSS ON OTHER RECEIVABLES

The Company engaged an independent professional qualified
valuer, Acclime Consulting (HK) Limited (the “Valuer”), to conduct
valuations to determine the amount of the expected credit losses
(“ECL”") provision on Other Receivables in aesthetic medical and
beauty segment for the year ended 31 December 2024. The
reversal of expected credit loss on Other Receivables amounting to
approximately HK$12,290,000 (for the year ended 31 December
2023: provision for expected credit loss amounting to approximately
HK$83,001,000) for the year ended 31 December 2024.

The valuation method and the reason for using that
method

The lifetime ECL with respect to the general approach is determined
under the HKFRS 9.

The calculation of the ECL is determined by the general formula which
presented as:

ECL = Exposure at default x PD x LGD.

When a significant increase in credit risk is noticed, HKFRS 9 requires
the evaluation of the lifetime ECL (instead of a 12-month ECL). To
determine the lifetime ECL, the Valuer have adopted the statistical
model regarding the PD and LGD. By assessing the credit rating of
Other Receivables (based on financial or non-financial information),
PD and LGD have been applied with respect to the assessed
credit rating and the lifetime of Other Receivables, which accurately
reflected the credit risk of Other Receivables.

The value of input

The amount of the impairment is determined by the ECL assessment
pursuant to HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments. The key inputs for
valuation are:

1. Probability of default (“PD”)

2. Loss given default (‘LGD”)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B R am S T

MATERIAL REVERSAL OF/PROVISION FOR
EXPECTED CREDIT LOSS ON OTHER RECEIVABLES
(CONT'D)

The value of input (Cont’d)

The value of the inputs as of 31 December 2024

ECL Inputs for Other Receivables (Balances that were under the
5-year repayment plan, as disclosed in note 16(b) to the consolidated
financial statement (the “Repayment Plan’))

Lifetime PD: 45.8% (note)
LGD: 61.2% (note)

(note: Forward looking adjusted PD and LGD with reference to empirical
industry and credit research. 4-year PD and LGD of the highest risk category
were assumed, which matches the remaining tenor of the Repayment Plan
and the credit risk of the Other Receivables.)

ECL Inputs for Other Receivables (Balances that were not overdue
and not under the Repayment Plan)

Lifetime PD: 1.2% (note)
LGD: 61.7% (note)

(note: Forward looking adjusted PD with reference to empirical industry and
credit research. As such balances were not overdue, no significance increase
in credit risk was noticed and thus 12-month PD and LGD of an average risk
category were assumed.)

Basis of inputs as of 31 December 2024

ECL Inputs for Other Receivables (Balances that were under the
Repayment Plan)

The Valuer has referred to different basis to determine the parameter
inputs:

1. For the determination of PD, the Valuer has considered the
highest risk category on Other Receivables pursuant to the
Repayment Plan, considering the long overdue history of Other
Receivables. The PD data was reference to Moody’s 2024
default rate research.

2. For forward looking adjustment, the Valuer adopted
regression model considering the historical and 2024 forecast
macroeconomic indicators (i.e. GDP) and historical market
default data to arrive at applicable forward-looking adjustment.

S For the determination of LGD, the Valuer has studied loss given
default with reference to Moody’s 2024 default rate research.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B wm T

MATERIAL REVERSAL OF/PROVISION FOR
EXPECTED CREDIT LOSS ON OTHER RECEIVABLES
(CONTD)

The value of input (Cont’d)

Basis of inputs as of 31 December 2024 (Cont’d)

ECL Inputs for Other Receivables (Balances that were not overdue
and not under the Repayment Plan)

The Valuer has referred to different basis to determine the parameter
inputs:

1.

For the determination of PD, the Valuer has considered an
average risk category on Other Receivables, considering they
were not overdue. The PD data was reference to Moody’s 2024
default rate research.

For forward looking adjustment, the Valuer adopted
regression model considering the historical and 2024 forecast
macroeconomic indicators (i.e. GDP) and historical market
default data to arrive at applicable forward-looking adjustment.

For the determination of LGD, the Valuer has studied loss given
default with reference to Moody’s 2024 default rate research.

The assumptions adopted as of 31 December 2024

The Valuer has adopted the following assumptions in the ECL
assessment of the impairment on Other Receivables:

il

14

Historical aging schedules, settlement and default records can
be reliably measured and be relied on when measuring the ECL.

Industry credit data and default records can be reliably
measured and be relied on when measuring the ECL.

Forward looking information, based on the point-in-time
estimates of macroeconomic indicators as at the reporting date
can be reliably measured.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B R am S T

MATERIAL REVERSAL OF/PROVISION FOR
EXPECTED CREDIT LOSS ON OTHER RECEIVABLES
(CONT'D)

The significant changes in the value of the inputs

There are significant changes in the value of the inputs when deriving
the PD in the assessment in financial year ended 31 December 2024
(“FY2024”) compared to the assessment in financial year ended 31
December 2023 (“FY20283”), due to the following reasons:

1. For balances that were under the Repayment Plan, a higher
credit risk category (from the specific B3 grade-equivalent risk
category in FY2023 to the highest risk category)

2. For balances that were not overdue and not under the
Repayment Plan, a lower credit risk category (from the specific
B3 grade-equivalent risk category in FY2023 to an average risk
category)

The significant change in value of inputs is summarised as follows:

Year ended 31 December 2023
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31 December 2024
—E_NE+=-A=+—H

Lifetime PD 14.11%
EHE AR 14.11%
ECL rates 8.98% to 47.9%
BHEEEEX 8.98% £ 47.9%

1.2% (Balances that were not overdue and not
under the Repayment Plan) and 45.8% (Balances
that were under the Repayment Plan)

1.2% (KBA]A T £ Z G E T 894 &¢)
K 45.8% (B ETZ] T4 64)

0.8% (Balances that were not overdue and not
under the Repayment Plan) and 28.0% (Balances
that were under the Repayment Plan)

0.8% (K& A A 1 7 & X 7t 2| T 79 4 68 )
R 28.0% (TE& 551 & T A4 64)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BT wm S T

QUALIFIED OPINION IN RELATION TO
COMPARABILITY OF THE CURRENT YEAR’S
FIGURE AND THE CORRESPONDING FIGURES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

The Group has the deposits, prepayments and other receivables
which are further described in Note 16(b) to the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2024. As set out in
predecessor auditor’s report dated 28 March 2024 on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2023, the predecessor auditor, CCTH CPA Limited, who were newly
appointed as the auditor in respect of the Group’s consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023 in
January 2024, have qualified their opinion due to a limitation on the
scope of their audit in relation to the carrying amount of the opening
balance of the other receivable from a third party as at 1 January
2023, as they were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence to satisfy themselves on whether any adjustments were
necessary to the carrying amount as at 31 December 2022 in respect
of this other receivable carried at approximately HK$251,457,000
and the corresponding impairment loss on this other receivable of
approximately HK$7,273,000 recognised for the year ended 31
December 2022.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group has made
further impairment loss on this other receivable of approximately
HK$83,001,000. Accordingly, their audit opinion on the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023 was
qualified because of the limitation in scope on the opening balance
of this other receivable as at 1 January 2023, which could have a
significant consequential impact to the impairment loss on this other
receivable included in the Group’s consolidated losses for the year
ended 31 December 2023.

Because of the possible effects of this matter on the comparability of
the current year’s figures and the corresponding figures for the year
ended 31 December 2023 in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
related notes disclosures, auditors’, Linksfield CPA Limited, opinion
on the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2024 is therefore qualified in respect of this matter.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B R am S T

View of the Management and Audit Committee

The Audit Committee has reviewed and agreed with the management
of the Company’s position that the ECL provision is based on
professional knowledge and the assessment report by the valuer.
The management of the Company and the Audit Committee are not
aware of the point of view is different when the Audit Qualification
is occurred in financial year ended 31 December 2023 for the ECL
provision in financial year ended 31 December 2022.

Plan to address the Audit Qualification

As stated in the independent auditor’s report, such Audit Qualification
was issued against the impairment loss recognised on the other
receivables for the financial year ended 31 December 2022, and it will
only have a carry forward effect on the opening balances of retained
earnings and other receivables for financial year ended 31 December
2023 and will not have carried forward effect to financial year ended
31 December 2024.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES

&= NEETTBRAEBN

Mr. Wang Chuang (“Mr. Wang Chuang”), aged 46, is an executive
Director, Chief Executive Officer and chairman of the Board. Mr.
Wang Chuang joined the Group in October 2019. Mr. Wang Chuang
was accredited as a grade 1 health management professional by
the Hubei Provincial Department of Human Resources and Social
Security of China in May 2016 and a psychological consultant by
the Ministry of Human Resources and Social Security of China in
March 2019. He served as the chairman of Hong Kong Bomei (China)
Company Limited* (& & 1E £ B 5 A 7)) between 2008 and 2019.
Between 2015 and 2019, he acted as the chief executive officer of
Changzhou XingKong Medical Clinic Co., Ltd.* (& N 1 2 2= & /&
E A2 AR A F]) and the chairman of Jiangsu XingKong Health
Management Consulting Co., Ltd.* (I#E =R EEEHAER
‘A A]). He served as a senior executive of Jiangsu Zhenai Company
Limited* (/T & & & AR A &) between 2006 and 2008, a senior
executive of Wuxi Shencai Company Limited* (& 5 18 % & [R &
A]) between 2004 and 2006 and a senior executive of Changzhou
Meichen Company Limited* (& /I 3£ & A& R A 7)) between 2002
and 2004. Mr. Wang Chuang is the president of the Chamber of
Commerce of Changzhou Lishui* (% M /&K & & &) and the vice
president of China’s National Alliance for Maternal and Child Health
Development* (% Bl i 41 fi FZ {2 #E 35 R 55t B2 ). He was a committee
member of the Organization Committee of the 2017 Boao Forum for
Biomedical Sciences (2017 FIEE AW B BmEAEKZET) and
the founder of Bomei Angel Charity Fund* (B2 K {F = ES).

Dr. Liu Ming (“Dr. Liu”), aged 68, is an independent non-
executive Director. He joined the Group in December 2021. He has
been serving as executive director and a manager of Shenzhen
Jianda Information Technology Limited since 2018, which is mainly
engaged in the development and application of sleep breathing
monitoring products. Dr. Liu graduated from the West China School
of Medicine, West China Hospital of Sichuan University in 1991
with a Doctor of Medicine degree. He served in the Department
of Otorhinolaryngology, Shenzhen People’s Hospital (Level A)
(the “Hospital”) from 1991 to 2016 and served as the head of the
Department of Otorhinolaryngology of the Hospital since 1998. He
has been served as Deputy Director of the Hospital since 2006. He
is currently a special expert of the Hospital in the Department of
Otolaryngology. He has more than 25 years of medical clinical and
hospital management experience. Dr. Liu has previously served as a
general manager of a subsidiary of the Company since May 2018 and
resigned from that position in August 2019.

Dr. Liu holds several community positions including the Standing
Director of the Seventh Committee of the Shenzhen Medical
Association, the Standing Committee member of the China
International Association for the Promotion of Health Care, and the
Standing Committee member of the Sleep Medicine Branch of the
Guangdong Association of Rehabilitation Medicine.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES
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Ms. Huo Chunyu (“Ms. Huo”), aged 51, is an independent non-
executive Director. Ms. Huo joined the Group in January 2020. Ms.
Huo obtained a bachelor degree from Hebei University of Economics
and Business AL 48 & K 2. She has over 20 years of commercial
and professional experience with companies including the Industrial
and Commercial Bank of China Hebei Branch (#° B L $R1T /A b &
47), Shijiazhuang Haowei Optoelectronic Thin Film Technology Co.,
Ltd (BEREFEZELE FEEREFEM AR A7) and Hebei Youyuan
Certified Public Accountants (i 4t 5 J& & &1 Al =8 7% F7). Since
September 2012 to October 2022, she was a Partner of Ruihua
Certified Public Accountants (3 2 & &1 Bl % 7% FT7). Since October
2022, she has been a Partner of Zhongshenzhonghuan Certified
Public Accountants (7P & R ir @ 5T Al = 15 FT).

Mr. Leung Man Fai (“Mr. Leung”), aged 67, is an independent
non-executive Director. He has over 31 years of working experience
in accounting, corporate finance and corporate management. Mr.
Leung graduated from Manchester Polytechnic in the United Kingdom
with a degree of Bachelor of Arts in Accounting and Finance awarded
by the Council for National Academic Awards of the United Kingdom
in July 1988. He also obtained a degree of Master of Commerce in
Accounting from the University of New South Wales in May 1990.
Mr. Leung was a company secretary of Creative Enterprise Holdings
Limited (stock code: 3992) from May 2018 to September 2021, which
has been delisted from the Stock Exchange from October 2021.
Mr. Leung has been an independent non- executive director of Vital
Innovations Holdings Limited (stock code: 6133), a company listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange since 30 December 2020
and a company secretary of MediNet Group Limited (stock code:
8161), a company listed on GEM Board of the Stock Exchange from
November 2015 to January 2025. Mr. Leung has been a member of
the HKICPA since June 1991.

CHANGE IN DIRECTOR’S BIOGRAPHICAL
DETAILS UNDER RULE 17.50A OF THE GEM
LISTING RULES

Save for the aforesaid, there has been no change in the Director’s
biographical details which are required to be disclosed pursuant to
rule 17.50A of the GEM Listing Rules.

for identification purposes only
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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Pursuant to Rule 18.44(2) of the GEM Listing Rules, the Board is
pleased to present hereby the corporate governance report of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2024 (the “Reporting
Period”), i.e. from 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance practices. The Group believes that high standard of
corporate governance provides a framework and solid foundation for
achieving, attracting and retaining the high standard and quality of the
Group’s management, promoting high standards of sound internal
control, accountability and transparency to all shareholders of the
Company (“Shareholders”) and also meeting the expectations of the
Group’s various stakeholders.

The Company has complied with all the code provisions as set out in
the Corporate Governance Code contained in the Appendix C1 of the
GEM Listing Rules (the “CG Code”) throughout the Reporting Period,
except for the following deviations:

Under code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman
and chief executive should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. The division of responsibilities between the
chairman and chief executive should be clearly established and
set out in writing. As Mr. Wang Chuang was appointed as both
the chairman and the chief executive officer of the Company, such
practice deviates from code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code. The
Board believes that vesting the roles for both the chairman and
the chief executive officer of the Company in the same person
can facilitate the execution of the Group’s business strategies and
boost effectiveness of its operation. Therefore, the Board considers
that the deviation from the code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code
is appropriate in such circumstance. However, the Board will keep
reviewing the current structure from time to time and appoint
candidate with suitable knowledge, skill and experience as chairman
or chief executive of the Company, if identified, to ensure compliance
with the CG Code and align with the latest development.
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CODES AND POLICIES
Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the required standard of dealings (the
“Required Standard of Dealings”) as set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of
the GEM Listing Rules as the code of conduct for dealing in securities
of the Company by the Directors. Having made specific enquiry of all
Directors, each of the Directors, has confirmed that they have fully
complied with the required standards of dealings regarding securities
transaction by the Directors as set out on the GEM Listing Rules
throughout the Reporting Period.

Code of Ethics

The Company adopts a Code of Ethics that applies to the
Company'’s principal executive officer and senior financial officers
in the conduct and practice of financial management and lays
down the key principles that they shall follow and advocate, which
include honest and ethical conduct; full, fair, accurate, timely and
understandable disclosure; compliance with the GEM Listing Rules
and accounting standards and regulations; prompt internal reporting;
and accountability for adherence to the Code of Ethics. The Code
of Ethics is also intended to promote the ethical standards of all the
employees, officers and Directors in the workplace, and advocate
high standards of professional conduct and work performance.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible to the Shareholders for leadership and
control of the Company, financial performance of the Group and is
collectively responsible for promoting the success of the Company
and its businesses by directing and supervising the Company’s
affairs.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONT’D)
Board Composition

The composition of the Board reflects a balance of skills and
experience desirable for an effective leadership of the Company.

As at 31 December 2024, the Board had four Directors, including one
executive Director and three independent non-executive Directors.

Given below are names of the Directors as at the date of this report:

Executive Director
Mr. Wang Chuang (chairman of the Board and

Chief Executive Officer)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Dr. Liu Ming (chairman of the Remuneration
Committee and Nomination
Committee and member of
the Audit Committee)
(member of each of the Audlit
Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the
Remuneration Committee)
(chairman of the Audiit
Committee, member of the
Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee)

Ms. Huo Chunyu

Mr. Leung Man Fai

Biographical details of each Director and relationship between the
Board are set out in the section headed “Biographical Details of
Directors and Chief Executives” on pages 18 to 19 of this annual
report.

As of the date of this annual report, there is no financial, business,
family or other material/relevant relationship amongst the Directors.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONT’D)
Functions of the Board

The Board focuses on overall strategies and policies with particular
attention paid to the growth and financial performance of the Group.

The principal functions of the Board are to:
° establish the strategic direction and development of the Group;

° determine the broad policies, strategies and objectives of the
Group;

° approve annual budgets, major funding proposals, investment
and divestment proposals;

° oversee the processes for evaluating the adequacy and integrity
of internal controls, risk management, financial reporting and
compliance;

° approve the nominations of Directors by Nomination Committee
and appointment of external auditors;

° ensure accurate, adequate and timely reporting to, and
communication with Shareholders;

° monitor and manage potential conflicts of interest of
management, Board members and Shareholders, including
misuse of corporate assets and abuse in related party
transactions; and assume responsibility for corporate
governance.

The Board delegates day-to-day management, administration
and operations of the Group to the executive Director and
senior management, while reserving certain key matters for its
approval. The management is responsible for the implementation
of the Company’s strategies and policies, while the progress and
development are periodically reviewed by Directors. During the
Reporting Period, the management provided all members of the
Board with monthly management updates (“Monthly Management
Updates”) in accordance with the code provision D.1.2 of the CG
Code. The Monthly Management Updates contained latest financials
with summaries of key events of the Group, giving a balanced and
understandable assessment of the Company’s performance, position
and prospects.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONT’D)
Board Diversity Policy

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of diversity in
the boardroom and has adopted the board diversity policy (“Board
Diversity Policy”). The Board Diversity Policy sets out the approach to
achieve diversity on the Board.

The Board has set measurable objectives to implement the
Board Diversity Policy. The Nomination Committee has primary
responsibility for identifying and giving recommendation suitably
qualified candidates to become members of the Board. Selection
of candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service. The ultimate Board decision will be based on merit
and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the Board.

During the Reporting Period, the Group had appointed five Directors
(one of which resigned during the Reporting Period), one of which
was female. The Nomination Committee was of the opinion that the
Board consists of members with diversified gender, age, education
background, professional/business experience, skills and knowledge.

Among all employees of the Group, male employees account for
29.41% and female employees account for 70.59%. The Group
believes that the gender ratio of employees is within the reasonable
range.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONT’D)
Continuing Professional Development

The Board has also regularly reviewed the contribution of each
Director as to whether the Director is spending sufficient time to
perform his/her responsibilities to the Board.

The Board considers that the current composition of the Board,
with core competencies in areas such as accounting and finance,
business and management, medical science, legal profession,
marketing management, media development and merger and
acquisition, is appropriate for the businesses of the Company.
The Board will review its composition from time to time taking into
consideration of the specific needs for the overall Company and its
subsidiaries’ businesses.

The following graph provides an analysis on the composition of the
Board as at the date of this report:

Number of Directors 2% A 21
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The company secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”)
is responsible for updating the Board on governance and regulatory
matters.

Training will be provided to newly appointed Director to his/her
individual needs. This includes introduction to the Group business
activities, their responsibilities and duties, and other regulatory
requirements.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONT’D)
Continuing Professional Development (Cont’d)

The Company will arrange and/or introduce training courses and/
or reading materials for Directors to develop and explore their
knowledge and skills.

According to the code provision C.1.4 of the CG Code, all Directors
should participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills, ensuring that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant. During the
Reporting Period, all Directors participated in continuous professional
development and had provided the Company with records (if any) on
their participation. The individual training record of each Director for
the Reporting Period is set out below:

Directors and Types of continuous professional development
programmes

Mr. Wang Chuang A B, C

Mr. Tsang Ho Yin (resigned on
20 August 2024)

Dr. Liu Ming

Ms. Huo Chunyu

Mr. Leung Man Fai

>>> >
W W W w
0000

A. attending seminars/meetings/forums/conferences/courses/workshops
organized by professional bodies or regulatories

B. reading journals/newsletters/seminar materials/publications/magazines

C. reading memoranda issued or materials provided by the Company

All information and materials aforesaid relate, but not limited to the
latest development of the GEM Listing Rules, other applicable legal
and regulatory matters as well as directors’ duties and responsibilities.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONT’D)
Directors’ and Officers’ Liabilities Insurance

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance covering the
liabilities of the Directors that may arise out of the corporate activities,
which is in compliance with the CG Code. The insurance coverage is
reviewed on an annual basis.

Appointment, Election and Re-election

Appointment of new Directors is a matter for consideration by the
Nomination Committee. It reviews the profiles of the candidates
and makes recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
nomination and retirement of the Directors.

According to article 116 of the articles of association of the Company
(the “Articles”), at each annual general meeting, one-third of the
Directors for the time being will retire from office by rotation. However,
if the number of Directors is not a multiple of three, then the number
nearest to but not less than one-third shall be the number of retiring
Directors. The Directors who shall retire in each year will be those
who have been longest in the office since their last re-election or
appointment.

In accordance with article 99 of the Articles, any Director appointed
by the Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only
until the next following annual general meeting of the Company and
shall then be eligible for re-election.

The following sets out the responsibilities for the Directors in relation
to the interim and annual financial statements:

Annual Report and Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility to prepare financial
statements for each financial year which gives a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Group and in presenting the interim and
annual financial statements, and announcements to Shareholders, the
Directors aim to present a balanced and understandable assessment
of the Group’s position and prospects.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONT’D)
Appointment, Election and Re-election (Cont’d)
Accounting Policy

The Directors consider that in preparing the consolidated financial
statements, the Group uses appropriate accounting policies that are
consistently applied, and that all applicable accounting standards are
followed.

Accounting Records

The Directors are responsible for ensuring that the Group keeps
accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy the
financial position of the Group and which enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards as promulgated by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Safeguarding Assets

The Directors are responsible for taking all reasonable and necessary
steps to safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent or detect
fraud and other irregularities.

Going Concern

The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries, consider that the
Group has adequate resources to continue in operational existence
for the foreseeable future and that, for this reason, it is appropriate to
adopt the going concern basis in preparing the consolidated financial
statements.

Board and General Meetings

The Board schedules two meetings a year at approximately half yearly
intervals and organises additional meetings as and when required.
The Directors can attend meetings in persons or through other means
of electronic communication in accordance with the Company’s
Articles. Notice of at least fourteen days is given of a regular Board
meeting to give all Directors an opportunity to attend.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONT’D)
Board and General Meetings (Cont’d)

For other Board and committee meetings, reasonable notice time
is generally given. During the Reporting Period, the Board held four
meetings, of which two were regular meetings. The following table
shows the attendance of individual Directors at the meetings held
during the Reporting Period:
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Name of Directors HEEHS entitled to attend entitled to attend

(From 1 January 2024 to (ZE-F—A—HZE HE/ ERELE HE BRUE

31 December 2024) —E_mE+ZA=+—H) BREAEHA EZggEyA

Executive Director HITES

Mr. Wang Chuang TREE 1/1 4/4

Non-Executive Director FHTES

Mr. Tsang Ho Yin (resigned on LEBELEE(RZTMF 11 1/4
20 August 2024) NAZ+HEE)

Independent Non-Executive Directors BIUFHTES

Ms. Huo Chunyu EEERT 11 4/4

Dr. Liu Ming ZIRAEL 11 4/4

Mr. Leung Man Fai BB & 11 3/4

Board papers are circulated at least three days (or other agreed
period) before the regular Board meetings and/or other Board/
Committees meetings to enable the Directors to make informed
decisions on matters to be raised at the Board meetings. In addition,
the Company has maintained a procedure for the Directors to seek
independent professional advice, in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company’s expense in discharging their duties to the Company.

The Company Secretary prepares minutes and/or written resolutions
and keeps records of matters discussed and decisions resolved at
all Board meetings. The Company Secretary also keeps the minutes,
which are open for inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable
notice by any Director.
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CHAIRMAN AND CEO

As explained in the section headed “Corporate Governance
Practices”, Mr. Wang Chuang was appointed as both the chairman
and the chief executive officer of the Company, such practice
deviates from code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Under code provision B.2.2 of the CG Code, non-executive directors
should be appointed for a specific term and are subject to re-election.
All non-executive Directors (including independent non-executive
Directors) are appointed for a term of two years and they are required
to retire by rotation and re-election at the general meeting of the
Company following their appointments in accordance with the Articles
of the Company.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The independent non-executive Directors have the same duties of
care and skill and fiduciary duties as the executive Directors. Their
functions include, but not limited to:

° participating in Board meetings to bring in independent
judgment to bear on issues of corporate strategy, corporate
performance, accountability, resources, key appointments and
standard of conducts;

° taking the lead when potential conflicts of interests arise;

° serving on the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee
and the Remuneration Committee, if invited; and

o scrutinising the Group’s performance in achieving agreed
corporate goals and objectives, and monitoring the reporting of
performance.

The Company has received an annual written confirmation from each
of the independent non-executive Directors of their independence
to the Company pursuant to the requirements of the Rule 5.09
of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company considers that all of the
independent non-executive Directors are independent.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

According to code provision A.2.1 of the CG code, the Board is
responsible for performing the corporate governance duties of the
Company in accordance with the written terms of reference adopted
by the Board on 15 March 2012. The Board shall have the following
duties and responsibilities for performing the corporate governance
duties of the Company:

° to develop and review the Company'’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations;

o to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

° to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

° to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors; and

° to review the Company’s compliance with the code provisions
and disclosure in the corporate governance report in the annual
report of the Company.

During the Reporting Period, the Board has performed the above
corporate governance functions through discussion in the Board
meeting and by reviewing the Company’s policies and practices from
time to time in accordance with the legal and regulatory requirements.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Board is charged with the duty to put in place a proper corporate
governance structure of the Company. It is primarily responsible for
setting directions, formulating strategies, monitoring performance and
managing risks of the Group. Under the Board, there are currently
3 sub-committees, namely the Audit Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committee. All these committees
perform their distinct roles in accordance with their respective terms
of reference and assist the Board in supervising certain functions of
the senior management.
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Audit Committee

According to Rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules, the Company has
to establish an audit committee comprising of at least three members
who must be non-executive directors only, and the majority thereof
must be independent non-executive directors, at least one of whom
must have appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or
related financial management expertise. The Audit Committee has
been established since 4 July 2001 with written terms of reference
which was revised on 16 March 2016 in compliance with the code
provisions D.3.3 and D.3.7 of the CG Code.

During the Reporting Period, all members of the Audit Committee are
independent non-executive Directors.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee has been posted on
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company. The principal
functions of the Audit Committee include:

° to consider and recommend the appointment, re-appointment
and removal of external auditors;

° to approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of
external auditors, any questions of resignation or dismissal of
external auditors;

° to review and monitor external auditors’ independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards;

° to discuss with external auditors the nature and scope of the
audit and reporting obligations before the audit commences;

° to develop and implement policy on engaging an external
auditors to supply non-audit services and to make
recommendations on any measures for improvements to be
taken;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONT’D) EEZEE(H)
Audit Committee (Cont’d) EREEE (&
. to review the interim and annual consolidated financial e 2wt AR R K A E AR WK - LA KRR

PAN:) 7} 2z

= 77
statements and the interim and annual reports before FEERE  BRRESS EFLEBF:
submission to the Board, focusing particularly on:

()  any changes in accounting policies and practices; () EFTBERREHR2(EMES :

(i)  major judgmental areas; (i) FETEBRHAEHE

(i) significant adjustments resulting from audit; (i) FEZMIELD 2 ERNAE

(v)  the going concern assumptions and any qualifications; vy BELERBURETMAMREES

(v  compliance with accounting principles and standards; v)  EBFEFRAIRER
and

(v) compliance with the GEM Listing Rules and legal (i BSTEEKEmAE 2 GEM LA A
requirements in relation to financial reporting; KMOEBRTE

e toreview the Group’s financial controls, internal control and risk ~ ® @5 ANE B 2 Bf 7 EE 1 -~ (A 2042 #) & R R
management systems and ensure that the management has EESE UHRREEECBRITHARSE
performed its duty to have an effective internal control system; HEEB L NEIES R

. to consider major investigations findings on risk management e EZEATEEeRESEHHAREE
and internal control matters as delegated by the Board or on its NEIEFI S EETASMESHERNER
own initiative and management’s response; AEFHEREEERCE

e to review the external auditors’ management letter, any o %ﬁﬁ?l\ﬁgﬁ%ﬁfﬁﬁlk B E K - % BN BE

material queries raised by the auditors to management about R MBERBE BTG EmMY EE
accounting records, financial accounts or systems of control EiREMTAERME  AREEERE E -
and management’s response and to ensure that the Board will WEHERES S MR EATIEEAEE
provide a timely response to the issues raised; and 54

e to review the Group’s financial and accounting policies and o I ANEE 2 875 M &t B R EIE G o
practices.

The Audit Committee has explicit authority to investigate into any Ei#ZZE2 BFMEREH AL
matter under the scope of its duties and the authority to obtain /£ E - WEHAKERE Y EEE
independent professional advice. It is given full access to and 2 MHEBEEIEE NIESHE) - I
assistance from the management and reasonable resources to UAXABITERE -

discharge its duties properly.

During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee has met once with ~ R¥RE M - EEREZ E @R A AR BT[] B IR

the external auditor without the presence of the management of the BEZZER T @ B HEIMNEZHMEE —K -
Company.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONT’D)
Audit Committee (Cont’d)

The Group’s results for the six months ended 30 June 2024 and
audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2024 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

The quorum of meeting of the Audit Committee shall be any two
members. During the Reporting Period, two (2) meetings of the Audit
Committee were held to review and supervise the financial reporting
process and internal control of the Group. The following table shows
the attendance of the members of Audit Committee at the meetings
of the Audit Committee held during the Reporting Period:

EXZEE (H)

ERERE (A
EREAEEENALMBZ T NEAA
STALAEARBE-"S-ME+=A=+—

BLFEZRECEEUBEHRE -

ERZESERNETABERERMMABKE -
RBREHHE EREESHABTMQAGE - N
mat RERAREE 2 B2 W2 T R AERES -

TEE%C@J%??AEﬁaﬁiﬁiﬂﬁf‘ﬁﬁfﬁﬁ

= ol |

HBEE&L

Attendance/

Number of

Meetings entitled

Name of Audit Committee EREZEEREHR to attend

(From 1 January 2024 to —T_mNE—fF—HZ HE BRHE

31 December 2024) —E-WE+=-_A=+—H) e
Independent Non-executive Directors BIUFHITES

Mr. Leung Man Fai (chairman of Audit Committee) RYBEE (BEREEETFE) 2/2

Dr. Liu Ming 2R L+ 2/2

Ms. Huo Chunyu EEETL 2/2

Full minutes of the Audit Committee are kept by the Company
Secretary. Minutes are drafted and finalised in sufficient details and
are circulated to all members of the Audit Committee, as the case
may be, for their comments and records within reasonable time after
the conclusion of the meetings.

BERREQ L EERLBARRANERT -
BB RERATHRELNEREREK L
BEREA MEZZBEEMAKEBH(RE
AME) - AEEREER RIERCE -
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONT’D)

Nomination Committee

According to Rule 5.36A of the GEM Listing Rules, the Company has
to set up a nomination committee with a majority of the members
thereof being independent non-executive directors. The Nomination
Committee has been established since 22 July 2005 with written
terms of reference.

During Reporting Period, all members of the Nomination Committee
are independent non-executive Directors.

The Nomination Committee is scheduled to meet at least once a year.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee has been
posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
The principal functions of the Nomination Committee include:

° to make recommendations to the Board on all new
appointments or re-appointments of Directors, the
establishment of a succession plan for Directors, in particular
the Chairman and the CEO and the composition of the Board;

° to identify and nominate qualified individuals, subject to the
approval of the Board, to be additional Directors or to fill
vacancy in the Board as and when they arise;

° to assess the effectiveness of the Board as a whole and the
contribution by each Director to the Board;

° to review the Board structure, size, composition (including
the skills, knowledge and experience) and diversity as well
as the independent element of the Board on an annual basis
and make recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

° to develop the criteria for selection of Directors; and

° to assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors.

The chairman of the Nomination Committee will report to the Board
on its proceedings and recommendations after each meeting.

EEZEE(A)
EEZEE

RIEGEM L8 B 5.36A 1§ © NAAEIE R
ZEBE MERZHEKBEABIIIERNTES -
REEEel ST AF+A -+ -BH#EKIL
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NEZREEHE
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B AMBEER) RETE AREFEZ
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONT’D)
Nomination Committee (Cont’d)

The quorum of meeting of the Nomination Committee shall be any
two members. During the Reporting Period, one meeting of the
Nomination Committee was held to review and recommend the
structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board. Altogether
the members of the Board bring a wide range of knowledge and
experience to the Board, which contributes to the effective direction
of the Company. The following table shows the attendance of
the members of Nomination Committee at the meetings of the
Nomination Committee held during the Reporting Period:

EEZEE(HA)
RBEZEEE (&
REZEREANEEABAIEMARE - 1

REMN REEESRRTREE HUR
HEFRRE R B ST R -
RO EEEEHEBEERWABENMBAE
B EAPRARRNTRAY TREIIRE
EREZRANBEDMLFREERREH

R -

Attendance/

Number of

Meetings entitled

Name of Nomination Committee REZEERENHA to attend

(From 1 January 2024 to —E-MFE-—F—HE HiE BRELE

31 December 2024) —ZE_WFE+ZA=+—HHMH) BEA"

Independent Non-executive Directors BIUFHITES

Ms. Huo Chunyu EEE L 11

Dr. Liu Ming (chairman of Nomination Committee) AT (IEEEEEL/E) 11

Mr. Leung Man Fai R IBI A 1/
Remuneration Committee FWZEEE

According to Rule 5.34 of the GEM Listing Rules, the Company has
to set up a remuneration committee with a majority of the members
thereof being independent non-executive directors. The Remuneration
Committee has been established since 22 July 2005 with written
terms of reference.

During the Reporting Period, the majority of the members of the
Remuneration Committee are independent non-executive Directors.

The Remuneration Committee is scheduled to meet at least once a
year.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee has been
posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
The principal functions of the Remuneration Committee include:

° to review and approve the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the board’s corporate goals and
objectives.

RIEGEM F 7 BI85 5.34 16 - N R B AR L%
MEEe MEXZHEXNERBILIERTES -
YEEeE _TTAF LA -+ BRI
WERTRAEmBERE -

RBEHRE - FMEZESRBOKEL /B
HITES -

FHNEEEREBFHRLBIT ARG -

X

HINE B 2B EC TSN R AR
Wk - FNREE T ERE R
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EEEEHMEE -
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Remuneration Committee (Cont’d)

to recommend a fair and transparent framework of executive
remuneration for the Board and senior management of the
Company, including share option scheme, based on the
skill, knowledge, involvement in the Company’s affairs and
by reference to the Company’s performance and profitability,
as well as remuneration benchmark in the industry and the
prevailing market conditions;

to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management, including benefits-in-kind, pension rights, and
compensation payments, including any compensation payable
for loss or termination of their office or appointment;

to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
the non-executive Directors.

No Directors can determine their own remuneration package. The
chairman of the Remuneration Committee will report to the Board
on its proceedings and recommendations after each meeting. In
developing remuneration policies and making recommendation as
to the remuneration of the Directors and senior management, the
Remuneration Committee takes into account of the corporate goals
and objectives of the Group as well as the performance of those
individual Directors and senior management.

The remuneration package of Directors and senior management
includes the following:

(a)

(b)

Basic salary

The basic salary (inclusive of statutory employer contributions to
Provident Fund) of each executive Director/senior management
is recommended by the Remuneration Committee, taking into
account the performance of the individual, the inflation price
index and information from independent sources on the rates
of salary for similar jobs in a selected group of comparable
organisations.

Fees

Fees paid/payable to the executive Directors are determined by
the Board after considering the individual’s relative performance
against the comparable organisations. The fees paid/payable to
the non-executive Directors take into account factors such as
effort and time spent, and responsibilities of these Directors.

EEZEE(A)
HHWESE (A

s REBITBRABZEE HE HARAZR
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONT’D)

Remuneration Committee (Cont’d)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Bonus scheme

The Group operates a bonus scheme for all employees,
including the executive Directors and senior management. The
criteria for the scheme is the level of profit achieved from certain
aspects of the Group’s business activities against targets,
together with an assessment of corporate and individual’s
performance during the Reporting Period. Bonuses payable to
the executive Directors/senior management are reviewed by the
Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board to ensure
alignment of their interests with those of Shareholders.

Benefits in kind

Other customary benefits (such as private medical cover) are
made available as appropriate.

Share option scheme

The Group operates a share option scheme for participants,
including Directors, senior management, employees, suppliers
and customers. The terms of the share option scheme and
the movement of share options under the share option
scheme adopted by the Company on 14 September 2011
during the Reporting Period is set out in the section headed
“Share Options” in the Directors’ Report and note 27 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Directors’ emoluments comprise payments to the Directors by the
Company in connection with the management of the affairs of the
Company. The amounts paid to each Director for the year ended 31
December 2024 are set out in note 9 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Remuneration Committee (Cont’d)

The quorum of meeting of the Remuneration Committee shall be
any two members. During the Reporting Period, one (1) meeting of
the Remuneration Committee were held to review the remuneration
package of the Board and the senior management. The following

EEZEE(A)
HHWESE (A

FHZE @B EEARBEMNMEKE - R
WERE - FHEZEEERIT—()REF BN
BAEEERSMEEABZHFNES - TRH
JIHFMEZ B @ ERNRERHLETHEESS

table shows the attendance of the members of Remuneration ##Z1BR :
Committee at the meetings of the Remuneration Committee held
during the Reporting Period:
Attendance/
Number of
Meetings entitled
Name of Remuneration Committee FHEEEREH R to attend
(From 1 January 2024 to —ET-ME—F—HE HiE BRELE
31 December 2024) —E-MF+=—A=+—HHH) BEAY
Non-Executive Director FHITES
Mr. Tsang Ho Yin (resigned on BHEBELEAE (R ZUEF
20 August 2024) JNRAZ+B#E) 1/
Independent Non-executive Directors BIUFHITES
Ms. Huo Chunyu EEE L 11
Dr. Liu Ming (chairman of the Remuneration Committee) 2|RBE L (Fr Bl Z E &+ /&) 1/1
Mr. Leung Man Fai R IBI A 1/

COMPANY SECRETARY AND COMPLIANCE
OFFICER

The Company Secretary is responsible to the Board for ensuring that
Board procedures are followed and that the Board is fully briefed on
all legislative, regulatory and corporate governance development and
accounts for such when making decisions. Mr. Wang Chuang was
appointed as compliance officer of the Company on 29 December
2020. The compliance officer is directly responsible for advising on
and assisting the Board in implementing procedures to ensure the
Company complies with the GEM Listing Rules and other relevant
Laws and regulations applicable to the Company.

REAMEREGREMR
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SR MEEFSQE2HEXMBER EE
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COMPANY SECRETARY AND COMPLIANCE
OFFICER (CONT’D)

Mr. Wong Po Tin has been appointed as the Company Secretary
of the Company since 2 July 2024. Mr. Wong is a qualified
accountant and is a member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants, a Chartered Secretary, a Chartered
Governance Professional and associate member of each of The Hong
Kong Chartered Governance Institute and The Chartered Governance
Institute. According to Rule 5.15 of the GEM Listing Rules, in each
financial year an issuer’'s company secretary must take no less than
15 hours of relevant professional training. During the Reporting
Period, Mr. Wong has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant training
courses and seminars.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration in respect of the audit and non-audit services
provided to the Group by Linksfield CPA Limited for the year ended
31 December 2024 amounted to approximately HK$840,000 and nil
respectively.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has the overall responsibilities for maintaining a sound and
effective internal control system of the Group. The Group’s internal
control system includes policies and procedures and limits of authority
governing the authority level and business processes. It is designed
to help achieve business objectives, to safeguard assets against
unauthorized use or disposition, to maintain proper accounting
records for the provision of reliable financial information and to ensure
compliance with relevant legislations and regulations. The system is
intended to manage rather than to eliminate or eradicate risks.

The Group has performed risk management procedures including
risk identifications, risk assessments, risk prioritization as well as
risk owner appointment. Management’s inputs on risk exposures
were obtained through risk identification questionnaires. Identified
risks have been further assessed and evaluated by the Management
across the business lines. The risks have been evaluated in terms
of their impacts and the likelihood of their occurrences. As part of
the evaluation process, the risks have been prioritized based on the
evaluation results. Follow up action on key identified risks are being
taken by the management.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(CONT’D)

Risk Governance Structure

The Group has established an enterprise risk management structure
in line with the “Three Lines of Defense” model that defines the three
layers of roles and responsibilities of oversight, risk monitoring and
review as well as risk and control ownership.

The Group’s operating units are the first line of defense. They
are responsible for the day-to-day risk management and control
procedures. The second line of defense is led by the Group’s
Management who are responsible for the design, implementation
and monitoring over the Group’s risk exposure. The third line of
defense comprises the Audit Committee and the Group’ internal
audit department. The third line of defense is responsible for the
independent assessment of the effectiveness of our risk management
and internal control systems. The external auditor of the Group
further complements the third line of defense by independently
auditing material internal controls over the Group’s financial reporting
processes and reports on material control weaknesses to the Audit
Committee on a regular basis.

Internal Control

The Group has an internal audit department, which reports directly to
the Audit Committee, to provide the Audit Committee and the Board
with useful information and recommendations on the adequacy
and effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system. During the
Reporting Period under review, internal audit reports are submitted to
the Audit Committee and the Board for review with recommendations
adopted to further enhance the effectiveness of the internal controls.
During the Reporting Period, the Board has conducted a review of
the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems
and considered them to be effective and adequate.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(CONT'D)

Procedures and Internal Controls for Handling and
Dissemination of Insider Information

The Group complies with requirements of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFQ”) and the GEM Listing Rules. The Group discloses
inside information to the public as soon as reasonably practicable
unless the information falls within any of the safe harbours as
provided in the SFO. Before the information is fully disclosed to the
public, the Group ensures the information is kept strictly confidential.
If the Group believes that the necessary degree of confidentiality
cannot be maintained or that confidentiality may have been breached,
the Group would immediately disclose the information to the public.
The Group is committed to ensure that information contained in
announcements are not false or misleading as to a material fact, or
false or misleading through the omission of a material fact in view of
presenting information in a clear and balanced way, which requires
equal disclosure of both positive and negative facts.

Additional procedures for handling and dissemination of inside
information including but not limited to the following:

(@) access of information is restricted to a limited number of
employees on a need-to-know basis;

(b)  pre-clearance on dealing in the securities of the Company by
designated members of the Group; and

(c) natification of regular black-out period and securities dealing
restriction to relevant Directors and employees.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND SHAREHOLDERS’
RIGHT

The Company values communication with Shareholders and
investors. The Company uses two-way communication channels to
account to Shareholders and investors for the performance of the
Company. Enquiries and suggestions from Shareholders or investors
are welcomed, and enquiries from Shareholders or investors may
be put to the Board through the following channels to the Company
Secretary:

1. By mail to the Company’s head office at Suite 2310-2318,
Miramar Tower, 132 Nathan Road, Tsim Sha Tsui, Hong Kong;

2. By telephone at (852) 3918 9000;
3. By faxat (852) 3168 8666; or

4. By email at info@crmi.hk
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND SHAREHOLDERS’
RIGHT (CONT’D)

The Company uses a number of formal communication channels to
account to Shareholders and investors for the performance of the
Company. These include () the publication of quarterly, interim and
annual reports; (i) the annual general meeting or extraordinary general
meeting providing a forum for Shareholders to raise comments and
exchanging views with the Board; (i) updated and key information
of the Group available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company; (iv) the Company’s website offering communication
channel between the Company and its Shareholders and investors;
and (v) the Company’s share registrars in Hong Kong serving the
Shareholders in respect of all share registration matters.

The Company aims to provide its Shareholders and investors with
high standards of disclosure and financial transparency. The Board
is committed to providing clear and detailed information of the
Group and on a timely and regular basis to Shareholders through
the publication and/or dispatching of quarterly, interim and annual
reports, circular, notices, and other announcements.

The Company strives to take into consideration its Shareholders’
views and inputs, and address Shareholders’ concerns. Shareholders
are encouraged to attend the annual general meeting (for which at
least 20 clear business days’ notice will be given). The Chairman as
well as chairmen of the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee
and the Remuneration Committee, or in their absence, the Directors
are available to answer Shareholders’ questions on the Group’s
businesses at the meeting. To comply with code provision F.2.2 of
the CG Code, the chairman of the Board should attend the annual
general meeting. He should also invite the chairmen of the audit,
remuneration, nomination and any other committees (as appropriate)
to attend. The management will ensure the external auditor to attend
the annual general meeting to answer questions about the conduct
of the audit, the preparation and content of the auditor’s report, the
accounting policies and auditor independence. All Shareholders have
statutory rights to call for extraordinary general meetings and put
forward agenda items for consideration by Shareholders.

REZBBERRRERN (&)

ARBMAZEEXBARBABRIIREER
EARARAZRE - WEREBEOTEFTE -
HRFERS : () BITRRBEFANGHRRE S
R RETERELBEANLBAEZTERNE
FEEVE S ¢ (i) R PT R AR R B WAL E
ZHRMEBEERM: (VARRBUIER/RRQFE
HEREREEBBZRE  RWARARZEE
BhBFECRRRREEMBBRNELEE °

ARAEEAERERREEEHSEERER
MBERE - EFRRNBRTER HEEE
EoREREERS BE RASRAMAL -
FE AR RAR (BT - 428 R ENRS 2 AL EER -

ARBAFROEBRR 2B R KEZ - WO ER
RETZEH - ARAMBEBCR L FERRBS
RE BEERARGETARD R20ETES
XBBEL -ETFEUARBEREZES REZEEN
FMEEeXR W KERELEASARE
BN LBERRBBASEZR 2IRH -
RBTEEEARTUZ TR EF22(F &
EEIRALFERRBFEANE  TABGEZ
FE - R REFMEMZES (HER)WEE L
& o BB NG RELR INIS A BRED th IR BB KX
- EEBRERIE  ZBEREZRELA
CBETBE ARERBMHNBIEEFHEE 2
BREAZCENBARRFEHIAS - A2
REHBRRERE -

&8 DY

2024 4 PEBLEBBEARERAT 43



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Ay e s
TEERRE

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND SHAREHOLDERS’
RIGHT (CONT’D)

According to the Company’s Articles, general meetings shall be
convened on the written requisition of any two or more Shareholders
deposited at the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong or, in
the event the Company ceases to have such a principal office, the
registered office specifying the objects of the meeting and signed by
the requisitionists, provided that such requisitionists held as at the
date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid
up capital of the Company which carries the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company. General meetings may also be convened
on the written requisition of any one member of the Company which
is a recognised clearing house (or its nominee(s)) deposited at the
principal office of the Company in Hong Kong or, in the event the
Company ceases to have such a principal office, the registered office
specifying the objects of the meeting and signed by the requisitionist,
provided that such requisitionist held as at the date of deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company which carries the right of voting at general meetings of
the Company. The poll will be conducted by the share registrar of
the Company and the results of the poll are published on the Stock
Exchange’s and the Company’s websites.

If a Shareholder wishes to propose a person (the “Candidate”) for
election as a Director at a general meeting, he/she shall deposit a
written notice (the “Notice”) at the Company’s head office in Hong
Kong at Suite 2310-2318, Miramar Tower, 132 Nathan Road, Tsim
Sha Tsui, Hong Kong. The Notice (i) must include the personal
information of the Candidate as required by Rule 17.50(2) of the GEM
Listing Rules and his/her contact details; and (i) must be signed by
the Shareholder concerned including the information/documents to
verify the identity of the Shareholder and signed by the Candidate
indicating his/her willingness to be elected and consent of publication
of his/her personal data. The period for lodgement of the Notice shall
commence no earlier than the day after the dispatch of the notice
of the general meeting appointed for such election and end no later
than 7 days prior to the date of such meeting. In order to ensure
the Shareholders have sufficient time to receive and consider the
proposal of election of the Candidate as a Director without adjourning
the general meeting, Shareholders are urged to submit and lodge the
Notice as soon as practicable, say at least 10 business days prior to
the date of the general meeting appointed for such election.

The Board has established a Shareholders communication policy
on 15 March 2012 and will review it on a regular basis to ensure its
effectiveness to comply with the code provision of C.2.8 of the CG
code.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND SHAREHOLDERS’
RIGHT (CONT’D)

The Company will updates its Shareholders on its latest business
developments and financial performance through its corporate
publications including annual reports and public announcements.
Briefing and meetings with institutional investors and analysts are
conducted regularly. The Company also maintains its website
(www.crmi.hk) to provide an alternative communication channel for
the public and its Shareholders. All corporate communication and
Company’s latest updates are available on the Company’s website for
public’s information.

WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY

The Group has formulated a whistle-blowing policy to provide a
safe and confidential reporting mechanism and to ensure that all
employees are reported properly on all suspected and internal
misconduct. The policy outlines the reporting procedures, including
but not limited to, if an employee aware of discrimination, bribery,
extortion fraud and corruption, and any actual or suspected violation
case that against to improper, unethical and inappropriate concerns
on policy. Employees are encouraged to raise concerns about
suspected misconduct, malpractice or irregularities in confidence. Al
reported cases will be promptly handled and thoroughly investigated
by the designated personnel in accordance with relevant laws and
regulations.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the Reporting Period, the Company has made certain
amendments to its Article of Association to conform with the
changes to GEM Listing Rules regarding the electronic dissemination
of corporate communications by the Company which came into
effect on 31 December 2023 and make other consequential and
housekeeping changes. The amendments to the Article of Association
were approved by the Shareholders of the Company at the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 28 June 2024. Please refer
to the announcement and circular of the Company both dated 5 June
2024 in relation to, among other things, the details of the proposed
amendments to the Article of Association. An up-to-date version of
the Article of Association is available on the Company’s website and
the Stock Exchange’s website. Shareholders may refer to the Article
of Association for further details of their rights.

Save as the above, during the Reporting Period, there had been no
significant changes in the constitutional documents of the Company.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

China Regenerative Medicine International Limited (“CRMI”) (Stock
Code: 8158) and its subsidiaries (hereinafter the “Group”, “Our”
or “We”) are pleased to present the Environmental, Social and
Governance Report (the “ESG Report”) for the year ended 31
December 2024 (the “Reporting Period” or “2024”) and express the
Group’s commitment to sustainability. This ESG Report discloses the
management, policies, performance, targets, and feedback of the
business in providing services of the Group in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”) and Hong Kong in relation to sustainable
development. The Group would like to take this opportunity to
present ESG performance to all investors and stakeholders, and put
forward the commitments and contributions on social responsibility.

This ESG Report is prepared in accordance with the Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the “ESG Reporting Guide”)
enclosed in Appendix C2 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). For details of the Group’s financial performance
and corporate governance issues, please refer to the previous
sections of the annual report of which this ESG Report forms a part
of.

Statement from Board

CRMI aimed to instil a fresh emphasis on sustainability throughout the
organisation. We strive to make people healthier, the communities
stronger, and environment more vibrant. The Group is strongly
committed to sustainability and as such it strives to implement
related principles and strategies throughout our businesses. We have
developed an ESG governance structure to ensure ESG governance
aligning with its business strategy and to integrate ESG management
into its business operations and decision-making process.

Our Board holds the overall responsibility for the Group’s ESG issues
and sets out ESG management approach, strategy, priorities and
objectives. In order to better manage the Group’s ESG performance,
related issues and potential risks, the Board regularly evaluates and
determines ESG-related risks and opportunities of the Group, as well
as reviews its performance against ESG-related targets. The Board
is also responsible for ensuring the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems and approving disclosures
in the ESG Report.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT (CONT'D)
Statement from Board (Cont'd)

ESG Taskforce

To strengthen the systematic management of ESG issues under
the Board’s delegations, we established the ESG Taskforce (the
“Taskforce”). The Taskforce is composed of core members from
various departments, which facilitates the Board’s oversight of ESG
matters. The Taskforce has the responsibility for collecting and
analysing ESG data, monitoring and evaluating the Group’s ESG
performance, keeping track of and reviewing the progress made
against the Group’s ESG-related targets, ensuring compliance with
ESG-related laws and regulations, assisting in conducting materiality
assessment and preparing ESG reports. The Taskforce arranges
meetings regularly to evaluate the effectiveness of current policies
and procedures and formulates appropriate solutions to improve the
overall performance of ESG policies. The Taskforce reports to the
Board periodically, assists in assessing and identifying the Group’s
ESG risks and opportunities, ensuring the implementation and
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems.

Our values
1. To become a global leading force in medical innovation

2. To develop cutting-edge medical products and technologies
with a focus on innovation in regenerative medicine

3. To become one of the global market leaders in aesthetic
medicine industry

4.  To become one of the global market leaders in healthcare
products and services

As a healthcare service company, we focus on medical services,
and aesthetic medical and beauty service. We desire to achieve
healthy lives and promote human well-being during our course of
business. In recent years, healthcare has become a hot topic around
the world. We will focus on human health by providing regenerative
medicine and medical innovations, build a regenerative medicine
health management ecosystem, comprehensively improve our
service capabilities and quality, and establish a good reputation in the
industry. With our courage to take innovative measures, the Group
has contributed to breakthroughs in medical innovation over the
years, thus benefiting to health of mankind.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT (CONT'D)
Statement from Board (Cont'd)

The Group’s Corporate Social Responsibility Model

The ESG Report provides detailed explanation regarding our
corporate social responsibility model, shown in below, on different
aspects, including stakeholder communication, environmental
protection, employee welfare, health and safety, fair operation, social
contribution and maintaining sustainability.

Item

Fi% Aspects
1 Stakeholder Communication
2 Environmental Protection

€ Employee Welfare

4 Health and Safety

5 Fair Operation

6 Social Contribution

7 Maintain Sustainability

We continually strengthen communication and relationship with
investors. Designated senior management personnel keep close
communication with shareholders and investors through emails,
teleconference, one-to-one meetings, participation in broker
forums and non-trading roadshow or other forms, so as to ensure
shareholders and investors getting latest information of the Group in a
fair and timely manner, helping them make investment decisions. We
will give a detailed and timely response to inquiries from investors. We
have conducted materiality assessment to identify material matters
in our businesses which have significant influence on economy,
environment and society, and are most important for stakeholders.
In accordance with evaluation results, we hope to make the
commitments and undertake the responsibilities to all stakeholders.
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REPORTING PRINCIPLES

The ESG Report is prepared in accordance with the “Comply or
Explain” provisions and the four Reporting Principles as required by
the ESG Reporting Guide:

1.

Materiality: This ESG report disclosed: (i) the process to
identify and the criteria for the selection of material ESG factors;
(ii) if a stakeholder engagement is conducted, a description of
significant stakeholders identified, and the process and results
of the issuer’s stakeholder engagement. For detail process to
identify and the criteria for the selection of material ESG factors,
please refer to section “Materiality Assessment”.

Quantitative: ESG data are presented numerically, so our
ESG performance can be compared against our peers,
industry standards and our previous year's performance.
For the methodologies, assumptions and/or calculation tools
used, and source of conversion factors used, for the reporting
of emissions/energy consumption, please refer to section
“Environmental”.

Balance: The information in the report shall be unbiased.
There will be no omission, misleading presentation format and
selections that may inappropriately influence the decisions of a
stakeholder.

Consistency: The issuer should disclose in the ESG report any
changes to the methods or KPIs used, or any other relevant
factors affecting a meaningful comparison. This report follows
a consistent range of statistics and the statistics scope of 2024
corresponds with that in 2023.

Reporting Boundary

In setting the reporting boundary, the Board of Directors has
performed internal analysis on an annual basis and identified the
reporting scope covers the Group’s major source of revenue from
Hong Kong. The data and disclosures reported in this ESG Report
were prepared based on internal statistics, internal policy documents
and other internal records.

The ESG Report continued to covers the Group’s ESG performance
in the provision of healthcare products and services in Hong Kong
and includes the back office in People's Republic of China (“PRC”).
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The Group understands that the long-term success is due to the
commitment to the sustainability of businesses and the diligent and
innovative employees who deliver quality services to the clients and
business partners and make worthwhile contributions to several
stakeholders of the Group.

The Group has consolidated and identified different groups of
stakeholders that are related to its main business. These stakeholders
include customers, employees, government, media, shareholders and
investors.

The Group regards stakeholder’s opinions as a key to the long-term
success and sustainable development. The Group will increase the
involvement of stakeholders via constructive conversation in order to
achieve long-term prosperity.
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Expectations

Stakeholders Communication Channels
B E BEEE
Internal Employees ° E-mail
AR EE ol
o Mobile communication application
mEEAER
o Regular meetings
EHIE®
External Customers o Company news updates
Fh B ES NEFTEEN
° Conference
=E
° Customer service hotline
5P RIS R

HE
° Health and safety
RENZE
° Equal opportunities
TEHE
° Remuneration and benefits
BN K48 A
° Career development
EXERE
° Product and service responsibility
EmIRGEE
o Customer information and privacy
protection
B AR RALBIRE

° Email, facsimile and phone contacts
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT (CONT'D)

Stakeholders

Communication Channels

FHENSHE(E)

Expectations

K&

Government

BF

Media
Heg

Shareholders
and investors

BREZEE

BEEE

Cooperate with the government and
regulatory authorities on compliance

inspections
MERFAEHBUTREERBEIE
Conference

=5

Email, facsimile and phone contacts
B  FEAREFEBETN
Company website

UNEIF

Social media network

R R

Annual general meeting
BRERBFEAE

Company news updates
NAFTEE

Email, facsimile and phone contacts
BE -  BEREFEBBINX

Stock Exchange’s website:

announcements, notices, reporTs etc.

BT AE  BERRS
Press releases

HE M

Business ethics

EE3CE

Complying with relevant laws and
regulations

BT HRBARE ROAMR

Giving back to society

EE oy

Environmental protection
RERIR

Compliance operations

BREE

Complying with relevant laws and
regulations
EFRBERRER
Disclosing latest information of the
corporate in due course
RERESRFEEER
Financial results

BTG AE

Corporate sustainability
PEAFEN
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

In hope of understanding the views and expectations of stakeholders
on the Group’s ESG performance effectively, the Group conducts
the materiality assessment regularly. With reference to the Group’s
business development strategy and industry practices, the Group
identified and determined a list of material ESG issues. The Group
prepared a questionnaire based on the list and invited relevant
stakeholders to rate the potential material issues according to their
influence on stakeholder assessments and decisions and their
impacts on the economy, environment, and society.

The results of the survey were analysed to develop a materiality
matrix. The materiality matrix and the identified material topics
were reviewed and confirmed by the Board and management and
disclosed in the ESG Report.
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BREZFERE T HERS - WRFHERND
Z REAEREHFNEFBLRARNTE

t/(&‘ﬂﬁ&/i’é“ CRERMENTE REENEE
u%‘&:L TTu:F °
BRAMBACEREREETEEZMLER - EE2 M

REMAFENERSRE  EHEFSREERE
BBHEA YERE HeRELREIHE -

ARG AEENERRE HENEARERE -

E g o
s o ow
S e 092 _o
E c
H o o
H o
A S5 o
% 5 ®
B o
ad ® o ®
;g ®
® 5. ® © o

o

;4 ®

(25)
® g
(4]
2
(26]
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T

5 6
ESG SHHMNPISHEZERY

Importance of ESG Topics to External Stakeholder
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT (CONT'D)

The following matrix is a summary of the Group’s material ESG issues:

Item

735

10

11

12

13

14

ESG Topic
BRI HEREREE

Customer satisfaction

EPREE

Product health and safety

EmERRLZ R

Customer information and privacy

BEP AR KILE

Product and service labelling

72 oo M BR TS 1R 4K

Marketing communications (e.g. advertisement)
MISHE (NES)

Observing and protecting intellectual property
rights

MR RRIE A E R

Occupational health and safety

BEERERZR

Employee remuneration, benefits and rights (e.g.
working hours, rest periods, working conditions)
EEFN &F R (T REREIIERSE)
Employee development and training

& B &R KIEF

Anti-corruption policies and whistle-blowing
procedure

RESBUR K B RBR

Number of concluded legal cases regarding
corrupt practices, e.g. bribery, extortion, fraud and
money laundering
BERTR (NS BR
BREEREERGHE
Cultivation of local employment

8 3E AN Hb B 3£

Energy use (e.g. electricity, gas, fuel)
BERER (TN - ER - R
Preventing child and forced labour
PriEE T RogHss T

BREROERE) A

Item

735

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

FHENSHE(E)

ATHEESAEEERNRE HER
WE

—y
EREAR

ESG Topic
RIE HEREREE

Anti-corruption training provided to directors and
staff

REFMETIRHOREFEI

Diversity and equal opportunity of employees
BEZTIERTEKS

Environmentally preferable products and services
IRIRE m KRR

Air emissions

& SRBEPL

Greenhouse gas emissions

SR BRI

Selection and monitoring of suppliers

R R ERMEER

Community support (e.g. donation, volunteering)
AR SR (e - EIEE)

Environmental risks (e.g. pollution) and social risks
(e.g. monopoly) of the suppliers
HEFNRTRR ()52) kit & &k
Hazardous waste production
BEBREYNEL

Water use

IKE IR

Non-hazardous waste production
BEBREVNEL

Use of materials (e.g. paper, packaging, raw
materials)

MEHER (4R - 8% - RMED

Mitigation measures to protect environment and
natural resources

RERERAANEROBIEE

Climate change

= 424

IR

(anBEkET)
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FHENSHE(E)

Frin & KRBT ABRBRBEDNBFFIRN E3ORE -
HeakERHERT TERE HERERE
HBEBEREPHEE EmBREZEUAREP

MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT (CONT'D)

The top issues that stakeholders are the most concerned are
positioned in the above ESG topic table in descending order. The key
ESG areas of focus on were customer satisfaction, product health
and safety, and customer information and privacy.

CONTACT US

The Group greatly values stakeholders’ opinions and suggestions.
Stakeholders can provide valuable advice in respect of the ESG
Report or the Group’s performances in sustainable development by
emailing to: info@crmi.hk.

Bk iR 3T

ﬂiﬁliF%ﬁEﬁﬁ@%E’\]%ﬁ&E% o F &
KRB F A ZE : info@crmihk © LAFLIREE « (&
E/nfﬁlﬁt‘: HAEBEAFEER AAANRIR

RHEBEER -

A. ENVIRONMENTAL A IR
A1 Emissions Al H#HY
Emission Control BRI

54

The Group recognizes the importance of good

AEERBREFNVRFEEENEEN -

environmental stewardship and is committed to protect W N RERSE - AEBEHLIRIET
and conserve the environment. The Group hopes that the SEEXREMNESERNEELENS
concept of environmental sustainability lies in all aspects 1.@

of daily operation.

Specifically, the Group strives to balance quality, price,
and environmental impact when consuming resources
and materials. The Group closely monitors the energy
consumption and water consumption through the
concept that it is part of the communication priorities to
educate staff on the rationale of environmentally friendly
choices, and actual applications.

As principal operation is based in Hong Kong, the Group
is principally subject to the Hong Kong environmental laws
and regulations. However, with the new operation of office
in PRC, the Group also complies with the environmental
laws and regulations in the PRC. The nature of the
operation in the PRC office mainly focuses on marketing
and sales services, which is relatively insignificant in terms
of the Group's environmental performance and unlikely
causing any environmental issues.

BERME - EEEEREMERRE -
REEBHR IR GREE  BERRR
HENTE ANEEERYEZERIRE
BLEKE BESBREIHERR
BECVERARERER TALEH
BBRYMEMEE IR

HRAEBEEBUREREESES
WAEEFEZHBRBEMRER
FTARMR o SAT - BEZE 70 AR B 37 7 2R 3
R AEETETHENRRAZE
FER o PENERNEELEFZMA
BRTISEHEREERS - LRSS
REBMRBERBAMNS U/ERATE
DR AT BEERK EAIRIR A RE o
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL (CONT'D) A IRIE (&)
A1 Emissions (Cont'd) Al HHY ()
Emission Control (Cont'd) BRI % (48)

During the Reporting Period, the Group strictly complied
with the relevant environmental laws and regulations and
was not aware of any material non-compliance with laws
and regulations that would have a significant impact on
the Group, including but not limited to Hong Kong’s Water
Pollution Control Ordinance (7K 35 2+ & %Il 1§ f51]), Waste
Disposal Ordinance (B ¥ & & 1§ 1§‘J), Water Pollution
Prevention and Control Law of The People's Republic Of
China (2 A R &R B /K5 2 5747%) and Law of the
People's Republic of China on the Prevention and Control
of Environmental Pollution by Solid Wastes (¥ 2 A & #t
B & B R )5 AR IR RE).

The senior management team is delegated to maintain
the Group’s sustainability. The representatives of each
operational department will actively manage business in
an environmentally and socially responsible manner. The
Group will meet annually to review the key processes
and identify possible aspects underlying the operation
of such department. The senior management team
will also discuss any significant aspects identified,
and design measures accordingly. These measures
will be documented for reference to ensure effective
implementation.

RBSHE AREBRBETHAE
BEEAXENHBRBEIER -
BREENRREBOKOTRE BRG] -
BEMEERD - hEARKXMEKS
RaE R EARLNEEBREY
ERREDAE ©

SREEEBRERREFAEEN
ARFEER SEEIFI2RERER
iﬁbxiaf%&iﬁiQﬁEZEﬁEfE%

cAEEKEFRITEBEARSTE
gﬁﬁ&;ﬁkﬂﬁﬁﬁ ESPI Y & IE T RE
MEOEBE - S EEEE KIS ST
A H R E A B T 5 5 & 6 E
HEREIE - ZZRESFEIESE N
EIRB NE M ©
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL (CONT'D) A, RIB (&)

56

A1  Emissions (Cont'd)

Al Y (&)

Maintain Sustainability

The Group’s goal is to minimize the adverse impact of
the businesses on the environment by controlling and
reducing its emissions so as to ensure the sustainability of
the environment as well as the Group’s business growth.
The efforts being made throughout the Reporting Period
can be concluded as follows:

Item Practices

Fik  ®ER

1 Avoiding generating waste that polluted the environment.

BMRELISRRFREFR -

HFF U FERE

NEE K B IR RS I8 A BERR

1S EBEIRIBEN TR 2% iwffﬁ
MRRRAUFELRE  TEBEEHE
FEEE  AEENREHBETIED
TYEBEmT -

2 Compliance with all relevant laws, regulations, rules and requirements of environmental protection.

BTIBRBARERBAIER EH REREK-

3 Creation of an environment for sustainable development.

BER BB ERORE -

4 Provision of training for employees on the protection of the environment.

REBRHUARRERENE -

© Reduction in the consumption of various resources including raw materials and fuel.

WA BREIRNER - BIERME R -

6 Reduction in the generation of waste, recycling and reusing as much as possible of the waste.

BMOBERMEL  WE

REHREFBETTRIM R ERBA -

7 Using environmentally friendly materials as well as design, technology and raw materials capable of

conserving energy and reducing waste.

EERARAMEL - AREBEHOREIRIIN D BRI R - RATERM# -

8 Vigorous promotion and implementation of the recyclable economy, minimizing and avoiding negative

effects due to the Group’s development on the environment.

RAHEEREBBEREE BROMBRAARENERGRFEXNAETE -

During the Reporting Period, the Group has conducted
comprehensive inspection regarding the environmental
management situations of all controlling subsidiaries to
facilitate the improvement and promotion of controlling
subsidiaries on environmental management and
demanded the completion of its construction and
implementation with stipulated deadlines, ensuring
effective sustainable development of the Group. During
the Reporting Period, there was no environmental
pollution incident in the Group.

E’\iﬁiﬁﬂfﬂ NEBEFTBEERNE
NEIMERBEEMRAERET 2EMNR
T REEBRWBAREREERHS
AWM ERERES  WERKERIBBAT
KREREREENEE  BRHEERAN
SEMNAFERR RNIREHHE - A
SEWEREEAIRBSRE N -
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL (CONT'D)
A1 Emissions (Cont'd)

Air Emissions

Due to the Group’s business nature, it was not involved in
any industrial production nor possess any manufacturing
facilities or motor vehicles during the Reporting Period.
Therefore, the Group did not generate a material amount
of exhaust gas emissions during its operation.

Greenhouse Gas (“GHG”) Emissions

Energy indirect GHG emissions (Scope 2) are mainly
resulting from electricity purchased and consumed during
operation of the Group. Due to the business nature of the
Group, GHG emissions were mainly attributable to energy
indirect GHG emissions. The Group targets to conduct
annual activities (such as seminars and workshops) to
raise awareness of GHG emissions reduction among
employees.

The Group’s GHG emissions performance during the
Reporting Period was summarized as follows:

Indicators'

BEE

Scope 1 Direct GHG Emissions tCOe

HE— ERARERBHN W= ’ﬂbﬁ“z.%‘%

Scope 2 Indirect GHG Emissions* tCO e

§E_— - MERERBHER %m REE

Total GHG emissions tCOze

BEREHERAE WS tREE

Intensity of total GHG tCO,e/million revenue
Emissions® W_EItHREE BERS

BERBHIRABNERE!

A IRIE (&)
Al Y (&)
BER L

R EERHE ERASENERIEE -
HWEH R TEEERHEE IR
BUERMESER - Al ASEWE
REEBREEERNSERIEMN -

BERE ([BERE])HK

REREZEAEREHER(HE2) X2
RERAEEXBGBIZNINEE NHE
B -EZENAEENEBEE  BRER
BHEREZEREEREAERAEREH
W AEEFEGFRITHIRRI
EHEEE URSEEHRDEE
RESBERA R,

AEER & E RE AR EREI R
Wkt anw -

Increase/
(decrease) in

2024
—ECmEF

percentage

BOL LR (TH)

31.44 30.89 +1.78%
31.44 30.89 +1.78%
0.35 0.44 -20.45%
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL (CONT'D)

58

A1  Emissions (Cont'd)

Greenhouse Gas (“GHG”) Emissions (Cont'd)

The calculation of GHG emissions is based on “How to
prepare an ESG report — Appendix Reporting Guidance on
Environmental KPIs” issued by the Stock Exchange, and
the CO, emissions factor intensity of electricity purchased
is based on the ESG data published by CLP Power Hong
Kong.

tCO,e is defined as tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent.

During the Reporting Period, the electricity purchased
only accounted for the operations in Hong Kong. Since
the electricity usage in the PRC office is covered by the
landlord, it is not included in the electricity purchased by
the Group. Also, the usage of electricity in the back office
located in the PRC is minimal and immaterial.

The intensity of GHG emissions is calculated based
on revenue, the revenue of the Reporting Period is
approximately HK$90.62 million (2023: HK$69.49 million).

A IRIE (&)
Al HEHY) (&)
BERE ([ BERE]) HH (E)
Bt

1. FEAERE “?JFE&H%EAH‘JP“FMX
M CIAEFHRE e RERR
i Wﬁ-h%%ﬂkﬂthﬁ
$#351) - MINEE N8 = |LFRBER
REBREDERPEE N RMMAR
B oneRkERasE-

2. M_SLREBEAER-—WM_-A
e E -

3. RIEHM INEBENEFTAEE
MEKEL ARPEPAENA
BEREFAE AT TFFAR
EBAINEE S o BN ﬁ#¢l
NESRAENREER LAY
K o

4, BERERZEDRKZAE
HE MM RE L 59062 B BB T
T = :6949FBEHETT) ©
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL (CONT'D) A IRIE (&)
A1 Emissions (Cont'd) Al HHY ()
Waste Management BEEYEE
Non-hazardous waste HEEEEY

The Group promotes the “4-R” concept which aims
at minimizing, to the extent practicable, the amount
of wastes produced during the course of the Group’s

AEBHETI4RIES EERYE
ATNER TR AEBEEBLE
BIETELNBERYHBE -

business operations.

Iltem Concept Practice
(@ Reduction Reducing the volume of daily wastes generated to the extent practicable, by using
W alternative materials, processes and procedures.
FREABRME RIEREFRERAITHERL VRO EE B EEEYNHE -
(b) Reuse Reusing wastes generated and returning unused materials.
&R AE A BERBRELNERYREERCHOME -
(©) Recycling Converting waste materials into usable materials or extracting useful substances

EIRBEE from them, such as recycling packaging material and paper.
R ER BRI AM B AT IRRERYME - fIEREE B RN RARK -
(d) Replace Replacing traditional light bulbs with energy-efficient LED bulbs.
-k B 40 1 B 5 HA A Ef B LED 588, ©

Encouraging the use of reusable water bottles, coffee mugs, and cutlery instead of
disposable cups, bottles, and plastic utensils. This helps reduce plastic waste and
promotes a more sustainable office culture.

SEMER AT EEE AR - MR RER - AR —RERTF - BT REH
ZH - WRAPHREIBHEMTREEAIFENH AL -

Due to the Group’s business nature, non-hazardous
waste produced in the Group’s operations was mainly
composed of office waste, paper disposal and food
waste. To minimize its impact on the environment, the
Group targets to conduct annual activities (such as
seminars and workshops) to raise awareness of non-
hazardous waste reduction among employees.

ERAEENEHEE  AREEE
EXNBEEEZYIBHMOEY
BREARRLRRMUFARK -  REEM
PIRIBYE  ANEEHEESFETH
NEMhIEGEFRY  UWRSEEYH
MO EERRYHEH
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL (CONT'D) A IRIE (&)
A1 Emissions (Cont'd) Al HHY ()

Waste Management (Cont'd) BEEYEE (&)

Non-hazardous waste (Cont'd) BEEEY (E)

The Group’s non-hazardous waste disposal performance AEEBRBREHENESTEEYVERE

during the Reporting Period was summarized as follows: KEMmT

Increase/
(decrease)
Non-hazardous waste' i 2024 in percentage
BAkEHR
BEREZEY" B —E-_NE (FE)
Office waste Kg 434.71 292.00 +48.87%
NS T
Paper disposal Kg 317.50 313.00 +1.44%
EEFT S T
Total non-hazardous waste Kg 752.21 605.00 +24.33%
Intensity of non-hazardous Kg/million revenue 8.30 8.71 -4.711%
waste? TR/ BEWHE
BREBENZE?

Notes: Bt ok

1. The calculation of non-hazardous waste is based on “How 1. FEEFEEYIDHERBIMEM
to prepare an ESG report — Appendix Reporting Guidance B EEIRE g8 RE AR
on Environmental KPIs” issued by the Stock Exchange. £ ek  IRIREREBUBEIETR

%3l -

2. The intensity of non-hazardous waste is calculated 2. EEBRBEYEEDNRWRZE R
based on revenue, the revenue of the Reporting Period is HHB ML 290.62 8 & # T
approximately HK$90.62 million (2023: HK$69.49 million). (ZEZ=F :6949BHEBTT) °

During the Reporting Period, there was an increase RBEHE BEEEYRE—FE

of 24.33% in non-hazardous waste compared to the #hN24.33% - BEMERFTERAAR

previous year. The reasons behind mainly arising from R % P B R B BB R TR O

more PRC visitors come to our Hong Kong clinic centre ZFTRHA R

on services delivered.
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL (CONT'D) A. IRIE ()
A1 Emissions (Cont'd) Al HHY ()
Waste Management (Cont'd) BRYEE (&)
Non-hazardous waste (Cont'd) EEREEY ()

To demonstrate the Group’s dedication to waste
reduction, it has implemented paperless office. The
Group encourages its employees to utilize email and
online signature system for document review, signing and
communication where possible, reduce the frequency
of printing and/or copying, and reduce the use of office
paper. If necessary, employees are also encouraged
to re-use paper and conserve paper usage by printing
double-sided to the extent practicable. Furthermore, the
Group provides drinking water supply equipment for the
use by employees, meetings and visitors. Employees are
encouraged to bring along their own reusable cups to
reduce the use of plastic bottles.

Hazardous Waste

Due to the Group’s business nature, hazardous waste
produced in the Group’s operations was mainly
composed of clinical waste. The Group generate 0.12
tonnes clinical waste in 2024 (2023: 0.11 tonnes) during
its operation, which account for 0.004 tonnes per million
revenues (2023: 0.002 tonnes per million revenue).

To minimize its impact on the environment, the Group
has established relevant guidelines for governing the
handling and disposal of hazardous waste. The Group will
separately manage, and store hazardous waste produced
and engage a qualified third-party professional to handle
such hazardous waste.

Sewage Discharges into Water and Land

Considering the Group’s business nature, sewage
discharged into water and land is considered insignificant.
As the Group’s wastewater is directly discharged into the
municipal sewage pipeline network for further processing,
the amount of water consumption of the Group
represents the wastewater discharge volume.

BREBRNANEERLOBEEDRRL K
SEHELEMREARD - AEESE
E,Jﬁﬁ% 5 MR PR ZEARE
F’ﬁ BREEMXH RO RS
EUDFET KL AERM -
/,\ﬁﬁi& AEBNTEBEEEYE
ATERERBRREAEESIE -
BN - RNERERAKEME - AHE
g Eﬂ%/\ﬂﬁgg‘;{iﬁﬁ © f@]@/\g
BRI ERERONRE R BRURER -

BEEEEY

ERAEBNEREE  AEBEE
FTRliEm A EEEYEZ 0 IERIRE
BT o  NEBPR T _NEMEEE
A012WF (ZZE =4 : 0.11H8) B2 /R
BEZY) - HHE N T8 & W 0.004
ZE-=F : 58 KE0.0021) °

RBREENRENTE  AKEDH
BEEEEMHNRENREEGIEEBE
Bl REBERKUELANBEZTERYE
TEBEENMRET YEFAERD
FE=NERANEREZFAEEEY -

[E17K R £t B RF 7K

ZRIAEENEBELE - AKRE
WHEREEKA B AMATE - AR
AEEFTKERFATBOTKER -
MEE—FRIE - IAKERAKE
BI5 /KB E -
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL (CONT'D)

62

A2 Use of Resources

The main resources used by the Group during operation
are electricity, water and paper. In order to be an
environmentally responsible corporation, the Group strives
to improve the efficiency and effectiveness of resources
consumption in the operation process for minimization of
wastage and avoidance of excessive usage of precious
resources.

Energy Consumption

The energy consumption of the Group was primarily
attributable to the consumption of electricity. The Group
targets to conduct annual activities (such as seminars and
workshops) to raise awareness of energy conservation
among employees.

The Group’s energy consumption performance during the
Reporting Period was summarized as follows:

Types of energy’

BETR AR

Direct energy consumption kWh

B ER TR

Indirect energy consumption — kWh

Electricity? s
RZaRERE—E 2

Total energy consumption kWh
HREEAE TRE

Energy consumption intensity’> kWh/million revenue
REREREEES TER BBEWRZ

A ERIE (&)
A2 EHREH

AEEEXEBBRETERANTIZER
REN KRBEER - BRAHERER
BEENEE  AEERNRSEBB
BHRERHERNME RN BER
DRE BRBEERPEER -

BERHFE

AREBHEEREEETEREE JERE -
ZIS%%‘+§U¢§E%TTEHJA&IVE?J’
LR RS EBS YRR

AEBERREHRNEREFERIRY
T

Increase/
(decrease)

2024 in percentage

“BCNF

BOL LR (TH)

82,740.00 79,196.00 +4.47%
82,740.00 79,196.00 +4.47%
913.04 1,139.67 -19.89%
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL (CONT'D)
A2 Use of Resources (Cont'd)
Energy Consumption (Cont'd

Notes:

1. The calculation of energy consumption is based on “How
to prepare an ESG report — Appendix Reporting Guidance
on Environmental KPIs” issued by the Stock Exchange.

2. During the Reporting Period, the electricity purchased only
accounted for the operations in Hong Kong. The usage of
electricity in the back office located in the PRC is minimal
and immaterial. Additionally, since the electricity usage in
the PRC office is covered by the landlord, it is not included
in the electricity purchased by the Group.

3. The intensity of energy consumption is calculated based
on revenue; the revenue of the Reporting Period is
approximately HK$90.62 million (2023: HK$69.49 million).

The Group also continuously implements “green” concept
with the following measures:

° Office power saving: Policy to turn off lights when
not in use, air-conditioning temperature control,
printer and computer hibernation management, shut
down of lights and computers during lunch break,
etc.

° Increase equipment efficiency: Efficiency
Arrangements for equipment to undergo regular
maintenance in order to improve their performance
and dispose high energy consumption equipment
as part of the efforts to conserve resources at
source.

A. IRIE ()
A2 BIREH
BEIRH #E (#8)
B3 -

1. FTEREIRBERE T EN B AT &M
I EERR H e RERRE—
Fies : IRIFRAGHERUEIRIERIES])

2. )‘J’Ai&iﬁﬁfﬂ INBENEFTABRB
MERKEL - NPEMEHBEAD
=M A %;ﬁd BREERK o AN -
HAPRERAENHESMmEF&
& A Rt AREBEOINEE S o

3. RBREERENIRWHE  RE
MM 4290628 BB T (=
T 1 pQ49EBEBIT) °

R B TR R B A T 1R B T B B b [ A%
=R BN

. #)J#/_\Hﬁﬁﬁ" BEFERKHE
BV e - ZEFDRE S - DI EIH
B2 5 i 17l< IE & 32~ FIRES I RE
& M B SE

H?

s RIRBMEE: ZHREBETT
EHMREANRTEMEREE
BFERERE BHNIRE LA
WEIR -
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64

A2 Use of Resources (Cont'd)

Water Consumption

The Group encourages its employees and clients to
develop habit of conscious water consumption so as to
reduce water consumption in its operation site. Due to
the geographical location of the Group’s operations, the
Group did not encounter any issue in sourcing water that
is fit for purpose. To reaffirm the Group’s commitment to
water conservation, the Group targets to display posters
or other promotional materials in prominent locations
at its offices to further encourage and promote water
conservation.

The Group’s water consumption performance during the
Reporting Period was summarized as follows:

Water consumption’

Ak
Total water consumption? m?
RkiEE:2 SR
Water consumption intensity® m?3/million revenue
RK®mE? NAKR/ BEREE
Notes:
1. The calculation of energy consumption is based on “How

to prepare an ESG report — Appendix Reporting Guidance
on Environmental KPIs” issued by the Stock Exchange.

2. During the Reporting Period, the water consumed only
accounted for the operations in Hong Kong. The usage of
water in the back office located in the PRC is minimal and
immaterial. Additionally, since the water usage in the PRC
office is covered by the landlord, it is not included in the
water consumed by the Group.

3. The intensity of energy consumption is calculated based
on revenue; the revenue of the Reporting Period is
approximately HK$90.62 million (2023: HK$69.49 million).

A IRIE (F)
A2 EBREMH (&)
JA Kk

AEEHBEEEREFEXNEER
KEBIE IR D2 ESATHAKE -
BENAEBESNMBNE  AKEH
ERBEABEKTE L EBRE
I RIRE - Ao FAAEE L& 4 AKX
A AEEFEERAENERA
BERBESHAEMBSEER  E—F
SRR LK

R £8 [ 170 e o5 A ] O AR 7K SR BR A At 4

IS &

Increase/
(decrease)
2023 in percentage
—E-MF —=F BEAkEHRH(TE)
92.00 92.00 =
1.02 1.32 -22.73%

Bt

1. FTEREIRIBERE T EN B AT & M
BRI -t RERARE —
Fis : IRIFRAGHERUEIRIERIES])

2. MNBEHRK AKEFABTSNE
BEE - URPRENEDRAER
BAXKEBLAFZERK 1IN AR
FEBAEMRAKAETAE A
BN REFAREER K o

3. REREREEENERERSTE  ®E
MM 4 290628 BB T (=
T 1 pQ4A9EBEBTT) °
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL (CONT'D)

A2

A3

Use of Resources (Cont'd)

Use of Packaging Materials

Due to the Group’s business nature, the packaging
material mainly composed paper and plastic packaging
materials during its daily operation. The Group consumed
0.0026 tonnes (2023: 0.0023 tonnes) paper packaging
and 0.1456 tonnes (2023: 0.1273 tonnes) plastic
packaging during the Reporting Period, which accounted
for 0.0016 tonnes per million revenue (2023: 0.0019
tonnes per million revenue).

The Group encourages its customers to develop the habit
of bringing their own shopping bags in order to reduce
the packaging consumption at the operating site.

Environmental Protection and Natural
Resources

Environmental Protection

Environmental protection is the responsibility of every
staff in the Group. Although the impact on environmental
and natural resources caused by the Group’s operation
is limited, the Group is committed to sustainable
development and delivering its premium and quality
products in a manner with minimal impact to the
environment resulting from its business activities. Apart
from those details disclosed in the section “Emissions”
and “Use of Resources” above, the Group remains
conscious of its potential impact, and therefore actively
adopts relevant preventive measures and industrial best
practice to further minimize the potential impact on the
environment and natural resources.

Indoor Air Quality

As indoor air quality is directly related to the health and
comfort of the Group’s employees, the Group regularly
monitors and measures the air quality of its operation
sites. During the Reporting Period, the indoor air quality of
the Group’s operation sites has remained satisfactory. Air
filtration systems are installed and maintained periodically
so as to ensure the efficiency and effectiveness of such
systems. As a result, the Group’s indoor air quality
remained at a satisfactory level.
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A4 Climate Change

Climate change is already happening and causing
devastating consequences to different parts of the world.
As a responsible company, the Group strives to reduce
its environmental footprint as elaborated in previous
sections, and acknowledges the potential impacts of
climate change to the Group’s businesses. Therefore,
the Group has been actively collecting stakeholders’
comments, and regularly updating and implementing
relevant policies as well as taking climate-related risks into
consideration during its risk management processes to
better mitigate these impacts and adapt for a sustainable
business model.

Physical risk

Extreme weather events are expected to occur with an
increasing severity in the future due to climate change.
These events, such as typhoons or floods, can pose
significant safety risks to its employees and damages to
its equipment. The Group has formulated relevant policies
for identifying and mitigating significant potential climate-
related issues.

The increasing severity of extreme weather events such
as extreme cold or extreme heat, storms, rainstorms
and typhoons, could lead to an increased risk of power
shortages, interrupt the supply chain and damage the
Group’s assets, disrupting the Group’s operations and
resulting in an adverse impact on the Group’s financial
performance as well as increasing the cost of repairing or
restoring damaged sites. These events could also disrupt
the work of employees and even cause casualties. As
a countermeasure, the Group has formulated Business
Continuity Plan for emergencies so that loss can be
reduced or avoided when extreme weather events affect
the Group’s operating sites and to reduce the time
required for the Group to resume its business operations.
The Group will identify these risks and prioritize those that
may have a significant impact, and to take precautionary
measures based on the significance of impact of the risks.
At the same time, the Group will examine the possibility
of a change of business model to reduce or avoid these
serious effects on business operations.
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A4 Climate Change (Cont'd) A4 TIRZE (1B

Transition risk

Due to the increasing awareness of climate change,
the Stock Exchange has required listed companies to
enhance climate-related disclosures in their ESG reports,
which may result in increased compliance costs. Failure
to meet the climate change compliance requirements
may expose the Group to risks of claims and lawsuits.
Corporate reputation may also decline. The Group will
regularly monitor existing and emerging climate-related
trends, policies and regulations to avoid reputational
risks due to delayed response. In addition, in order to
reduce the Group's environmental impact and to comply
with the requirements of the Stock Exchange, the Group
has set targets to reduce energy consumption and
GHG emissions. The Group will continue to assess the
effectiveness of the Group’s actions to address climate
change and enhance its resilience against climate-related
issues.

Nonetheless, the Group will continue to monitor related
developments as climate risks are directly related to
its operations and businesses, and thus the Group is
committed to addressing any such issues effectively if
they should arise.
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B. SOCIAL B. #&
B1 Employment B1 E1E
Employment Practices EEEH

The Group has set up a comprehensive set of human
resource policies stipulating rules on recruitment,
compensation, training, welfare, promotion guidelines
and dismissal. In order to safeguard benefits for the
employees, the Group abides by the Employment
Ordinance of Hong Kong. Labor contracts or employment
agreements are entered into between the Group and
the employees. Moreover, the Group regularly monitors
information related to employment to prevent non-
compliance with labour laws and regulations. During
the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any
material non-compliance or breach of relevant laws and
regulations relating to compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest periods,
equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other
benefits and welfare.

In order to increase efficiency in hiring and to ensure
consistency and compliance in the recruitment and
selection process, as well as to promote fair opportunities
to each candidate, the Group has detailed recruitment
policies in place. An objective and carefully documented
recruitment process will ensure that any discrimination
risks are minimized and will provide the Group with the
best possible chance of identifying the right candidate.
Regardless of nationality, gender, age, race, religious
belief or disability, candidates with relevant professional
qualifications and working experience receive equal
consideration for employment.
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B1 Employment (Cont'd) B1 1l (&)

Employee Welfare

The Group provides various benefits to its employees,
including business trip allowances, birthday allowances,
wedding allowances, body checks, and holiday
allowances. In Hong Kong, employees are provided with
a mandatory provident fund, while permanent employees
in the PRC receive five social insurance and one housing
fund. The five social insurance and one housing fund
include endowment insurance, medical insurance,
unemployment insurance, work-related injury insurance,
and childbirth insurance, along with the housing
accumulation fund. Employees are entitled to national
holidays, company holidays, annual leave, funeral leave,
marital leave, maternity leave, and sick leave. The Group
has also implemented additional measures to enhance the
benefits system and staff satisfaction, such as distributing
gifts and benefits and extending holiday periods. Overall,
the Group strives to provide a comprehensive benefits
package and create a positive work environment for its
employees.

The Group actively recruits talents in a fair and equitable
manner through social media such as online platforms
and newspaper advertisements. Across the Group’s
diversified business portfolio, the Group has a workforce
of 34 employees in PRC and Hong Kong as of 31
December 2024 (2023: 46 employees in Hong Kong). Of
which, 94.12% of them are full-time employees (2023:
91.830%) and part-time employees accounted for the
remaining 5.88% (2023: 8.7%). 61.76% of the employees
are working in Hong Kong (2023: 63.04%) and 38.24%
are working in PRC (2023: 36.96%).
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B1 Employment (Cont'd) B1 1E1E (&)

Employee Welfare (Cont'd) ESEF (18)
Breakdown of the Group’s employees by gender, age AEBREERMR - FhvER Kt &
group and geographical region was summarized as o MR T -
follows:

Number of employee Number of employee Number of employee

by gender by age group by geographical region
RHUERESHEE AR RERAREINEE AR RitEEDNEE AZ
50 50 50~

40}

30}

20+

2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024
= Male = Female = Below 30 30-50 = Above 50 = HongKong = PRC
B pegcd 305%IA 30E505%  50BRMA L B [
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B1 Employment (Cont'd)

Employee Turnover Rate

During the Reporting Period, the employee turnover rate
of the Group is approximately 60.00%"' (2024: 40.58%).
During the Reporting Period, the turnover rate has
remained stable and within a normal range. There have
been no significant fluctuations in the turnover rate.

The composition of employee turnover rate of the Group
was summarized as follows:

Employee turnover rate of

the Group (%)? Categories

B. #= (&)
B1 11 (&)

EBERKE

RIEHE - NEENREBRAEL
/60.00%' (—ZF P04 : m&%)

RMEH  REAXRREBEE ER
EFEERN °//\L9§—'—Iﬁﬂjfﬁéj{/ﬁza °

FEBE BB R K X (%) bl

Total employee turnover

HMEEBRAR

Overall employee turnover rate

EREEREAE
Gender Male
4 Rl S
Female
Z %
Age group Below 30
FEAA R 30BMAT
30-50
B0ZE505%
Above 50
508 A £
Geographical region Hong Kong
i &= BB
PRC
H

24 14
70.59% 30.43%
70.00% 35.71%
70.83% 28.13%
20.00% 40.00%

100.00% 30.30%
69.23% 33.33%
71.43% 28.57%
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B1

B2

Employment (Cont'd)
Employee Turnover Rate (Cont'd)
Notes:

1 This percentage is calculated by dividing the total number
of employees leaving employment during the Reporting
Period by the average number of employees during the
Reporting Period.

2. The employee turnover rate is calculated by dividing the
number of employees in the specified category during
the Reporting Period by the number of employees in the
specified category at the end of the Reporting Period.

Health and Safety

Safe, effective and cozy workplace is essential to the
support of the Group’s precious asset, employees.
To create a safe working environment, the Group
has established safety policies on the prevention and
remediation of safety accidents, and detection on
potential safety hazards in workplace, measures include
regular safety inspections and launch of safety promotion
and safety training.

To mitigate the health and safety risk during operation
processes, protective equipment would be provided to
operating employees, such as protective suit, glove, mask
etc.

Employees are briefed and trained with safety and
environmental knowledge regularly to ensure that
everyone understands the risk of the task they are
involved in, has safety and environmental consciousness
and is familiar with safety and environmental precaution
measures. Emergency and evacuation procedures for
fire were established for timely and orderly response
to any major safety accidents. The Group monitors the
workplace safety continuously and performs a regular
examination of workplace safety hazards. To ensure
the effectiveness of fire emergency control, the Group
appointed a third-party institute to test its fire alarms and
inspect its fire safety equipment.
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B2

B3

Health and Safety (Cont'd)

During the Reporting Period, there have been no
occurrence of any work-related fatalities in each of the
past three years (including the Reporting Period), and
there were no lost days due to work injury in 2024.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware
of any material non-compliance with health and safety-
related laws and regulations that would have a significant
impact on the Group, including but not limited to the
Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance (8% % % & &
fi& B 16451) of Hong Kong and Labour Contract Law of the
People's Republic of China (2 A R £ FBI 5B & [F)%).

Development and Training

Development and Training Management

The Group recognizes the importance of empowerment
through development and training in the Group.
Equipping employees with the appropriate knowledge
not simply benefits the long-term development, but
society as a whole. The Group regularly evaluates the
training objectives, training arrangements, training content
according to the business needs and make changes
when necessary. The results of the training and the
performance of each individual will also be assessed
regularly to ensure that all employees benefit from the
training.

The Group has devised training schedule to provide
different types of trainings to employees every year.
The categories include personnel, finance, medical
instruments, environmental management and fire safety.
Through education and training, the Group can enable its
employees to enhance their personal qualities, strengthen
their working skills and reinforce the team performance.
Moreover, employees can grow with the Group by
realizing their own values on the basis of their personal
interest and expertise.
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B3 Development and Training (Cont'd)

Development and Training Management (Cont'd)

Besides, all employees are subject to regular performance
and career development appraisal in order to ensure the
efficiency and quality of its employees and to foster the
stable development of the Group. During the Reporting
Period, 100.00%" (2023: 80.43%) of the employees have
participated in trainings for an average of approximately
22.212 hours (2023: 13.37 hours). Their participation in
different trainings by gender and employee category are
presented as follows:

Category
]|

Gender 1% 3

- Male B4

- Female 2 1%

Employee category {& £ 38 5

— Senior management 1= A% & 12 /&
— Middle management /2 4% & 12 [
— General employees — % & &

Category
Bl

Gender £ 31

—Male 1%

— Female & 14

Employee category & £ 8 5
SREEE
— Middle management & 4% & 1% /8
— General employees — & & &

— Senior management r=;

T FIRE - g NERWRE

B. & (&)
B3 #&ER55 (#&)
RERZYEE ()

S REBEFBEEFTEXEHE
BENBEBRREET UBEREEBZT
ERE R REEEHAEBE B AFE
BHRE - RHREEM 100.00% (= F
T = :80.43%) MEB 2 mEI

RN 22212/ N (B - =4
13.37/\BF) MBI KB B 4ERIZI 5 -
EEZMTEEFINNBEROT

Number of
Employees Trained (%)
FIEEHA (%)°

2024 2023
—E-OE —E==
29.41% 35.14%
70.59% 64.86%
14.71% 16.22%
23.53% 5.41%
61.76% 78.38%

Average Training Hours*

19 35 D B 4

2024
—R_DOF
42.30 22.86
13.83 9.22
29.80 24.80
2.89 0.33
29.00 13.97
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B3 Development and Training (Cont'd)
Development and Training Management (Cont'd)
Notes:

1. This percentage is calculated by dividing the total
number of employees who took part in training during the
Reporting Period by the total number of employees at the
end of the Reporting Period.

2. The average training hours per employee is calculated
by dividing the total number of training hours during the
Reporting Period by the total number of employees at the
end of the Reporting Period.

&) The percentage of trained employees by category is
calculated by dividing the number of employees in the
specified category who took part in training during the
Reporting Period by the total number of employees who
took part in training during the Reporting Period.

4. The average training hours by category is calculated by
dividing the number of training hours for employees in
the specified category during the Reporting Period by the
number of employees in the specified category at the end
of the Reporting Period.

Promotions are made in accordance with the needs
from the Group’s business development and the
employees’ competence. Vacancies of the Group’s
internal management positions will be filled up internally
by promoting the most qualified employees within the
Group. This offers the employees with the opportunities
for promotion and enhances the efficiency of the Group.
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B4

B5

Labour Standards

As the Group strictly adhered to the Employment
Ordinance of Hong Kong and PRC, the Group does
not permit forced labour or child labour under any
circumstances. In pursuant to the Group’s comprehensive
set of human resource policies, all new employees’
identification card should be checked before they
are recruited by the Group to ensure their age meets
requirements of laws and regulations and prevent
the Group from accidentally hiring child labour. Any
labour-related issues will be handled with diligently and
appropriate actions will be taken seriously, such as
termination of employment contract.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of
any material non-compliance or breach of relevant laws
and regulations in child labour and forced labour.

Supply Chain Management

Suppliers are the Group’s long-term business partners.
Stability, safety and effectivity of product quality is directly
influenced by the selection of suppliers. To effectively
manage the supply chain, the Group has developed a
comprehensive system for assessing new and existing
suppliers. The Group has further regulated the operational
procedures of evaluation and approval for main suppliers,
and clarified the suppliers’ qualification, selection principle,
quality evaluation methods, evaluation standard, and
approval procedure for main suppliers. In addition, with
the aim to promote environmentally preferable products,
the Group has included suppliers’ environmental impact
of production into its supplier evaluation process’s criteria,
and such criteria is made aware to the Group’s supplier
along the supply chain. The Group requires all of its major
suppliers to strictly comply with local laws and regulations
in all aspects so as to further eliminate its supply chain’s
environmental and social risks. In addition, the Group
requires its major suppliers to regularly review their
operational compliance relating to areas such as human
rights protection, occupational health and safety and
environmental protection so as to identify any potential
environmental and social-related risks along the Group’s
supply chain.
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B. SOCIAL (CONT'D)
B5 Supply Chain Management (Cont'd)

During the Reporting Period, the geographic location of
the major suppliers of the Group is listed below:

RBSHE AEEXTZHEBFE
M BN B SIRANE

Hong Kong & i

PRC

Malaysia 55 2k 74 20

Total major suppliers > E {4t ERF 4 &

Agency Contracts Management

The majority of the Group’s businesses and product
distribution are relied on agents to introduce and
promote the products to hospitals for sale. Therefore, the
management of the agents is very crucial to the Group.
To avoid inefficiencies in agents and to strengthen the
sales performance, the Group has tailor-made contracts
for each agent in accordance with its selling ability and
respective target customers. The contracts clarify the area
in which the agents are responsible for, as well as the
hospitals they cooperate with. The contracts also list out
the compensation they may get, and the sales amount
that is targeted to be achieved during the contract period.
The Group will evaluate agents from time to time following
their performance against the contract terms. The Group
believes that the management of agency contracts can
help to control the quality of agents and to implement the
business strategy efficiently.
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B6 Product Responsibility

The Group strives for products and services excellence
across all the business activities. The Group’s equipment
is calibrated externally by professionals and internally
when necessary to ensure its accuracy. Qualified
personnel are assigned to each equipment for the daily
management and maintenance, to ensure equipment in-
use by the Group using is in good condition. Damaged
equipment will not be used until they are fixed by the
suppliers.

Also, listening to customers about their experiences
with products and services is the key to the Group’s
success. The Group constantly interacts with customers
by reviewing their enquiries and feedback so that
performance can be tracked regularly. Also, the Group is
dedicated to providing technical supporting services to
customers. Training is provided to employees in offering
comprehensive services to customers.

Product and Service Quality

Being a responsible corporation, the Group strictly
monitors the quality of its services and any potential safety
issues in using its services.

The Group is committed to complying with local rules and
regulations on service and product safety, and protecting
consumers’ health on using its products. During the
Reporting Period, we recorded less than 5 product recall
cases due to damaged goods and recorded less than 5
refund cases due to customers’ personal reason. We take
prompt actions to investigate the issue and compensated
customers regarding the recall and refund products,
hence, enhance customers’ satisfaction and loyalty.
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B6 Product Responsibility (Cont'd) B6 EmEfr (&)

Protection of Intellectual Property Rights

The Group relies on a combination of intellectual property
laws, trade secrets, confidentiality procedures and
contractual provisions to protect its intellectual property
including know-how. The Group strictly prohibits any
purchasing of pirated products or unauthorized usage
of photos provided by the third-party manufacturers. In
addition, the Group regularly verifies whether photos or
pictures used by the Group are copyrighted. Besides, the
Group will not adopt designs that are not authorized by
the third-party manufacturers and conducts verification on
whether designs being used are authorized on a regular
basis. The Group attaches great importance to ensuring
that all propaganda or product designs of the Group do
not involve plagiarism, and requires all employees to have
a sense of intellectual property rights.

Advertising

The Group understands its customers’ rights and is
committed to providing accurate product and service
information for customers in connection with their
purchase or consumption decision. The Group requires
careful review of advertising materials to protect
customers’ interest.

Labelling

The Group is committed to providing sufficient and
accurate information and product label to customers
and considers that it is an extended responsibility of
product safety management. The Group provides clear
instructions, including the danger, precaution measures
and emergency treatment of products and contact
information.

1R 2 A8 FE

AEBERENBERS BEWE
REMRF A QRR - BET AR
EE(BRERERE) RHEERARE -
AEEBEBEEAERER  FK
RS RMER S =T RER R
BE WS AEEERERAKE
ERNRASER AL ZRERE -
o AEETERBREFE=TH
ERBRENRG TEEHERLE
ERNRAEEEGEE  AEEFE
FERYERESNAAEEREMR
m*Tﬁ&%% YEREEETH
BABEETE

V-3

AEBTHREFP#EZ REREPE
HERERMRBEEMR  HWERE
BEEARE2E - AEEERFAF
EREREMH - REZP R -

vt

AEEBER/EPRET Y RIERER
ZEENREREE YBRZ/EMR
ZEEEN—(ATHEMS - NEBER
B - BRFAERNERIE
TRl - BRI R % -

2024 4 PEBLEBBEARERAT 79



ENVIRONI\/IENTAL SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT 2024

T TFRE e NEAHRE

B. SOCIAL (CONT'D)

80

B6 Product Responsibility (Cont'd)

Protection of Customer Information

The Group has stringent measures in place to protect
operational and customer data privacy. Non-disclosure
agreements are signed by all suppliers. A systematic
approach is implemented internally to ensure that only
designated employees have access to sensitive and
confidential information.

In view of the customer confidential information, the
Group has implemented a strict confidentiality system.
According to the system, the Group should enter into a
confidentiality agreement with the client who provides
the confidential information. Meanwhile, for ensuring no
betraying confidential matters, risk control department of
the Group is responsible for investigating the confidential
information to delimit secrecy scope and ascertain
information security. The Group also provides employees
with education regarding confidentiality and specifies
the confidentiality obligations of employees in employee
manual.

Methods of Redress

Although the Group ensures the quality of its products
and services, at the same time, it requires that products
with quality issues should be returned or compensated in
accordance with terms of sales contracts. Return, recall
or compensation of products is required to be offered to
all customers who are affected with consistent treatment
and procedures.

The Group values customers’ feedback, as this is the
driving force for its continual improvement. Once a
complaint is received, the Group will take prompt actions
to investigate the issue and carry out remedial action
plans.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware
of any material issues on product health and safety,
advertising, labelling, privacy matters and methods of
redress, and no products and service-related material
written complaints were received.
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B7 Anti-corruption B7 RES

B. SOCIAL (CONT'D)

To ensure honest, loyal behaviour and ethical conduct
among employees, the Group has adopted code of
ethics and anti-corruption regulations, so as to enable
employees’ conducts and behaviours to be monitored
throughout daily operations. The Group performs annual
self-evaluation to look at the implementation of code of
ethics and relevant regulations, the objective of which is
to ensure the thoroughness and consistency in actual
operations and management practices, with a view to
balancing and safeguarding interests of the stakeholders
and establishing long-term partnerships. The Group has
zero tolerance towards any form of corruption, bribery,
extortion, money laundering and other fraudulent activities
in connection with any of its business operations and
employs independent auditors to carry out external
audits on the Group, aiming at preventing corruptive
behaviours within the Group through internal supervision
and external audits. Corporate governance training, which
covers the anti-corruption provisions outlined in the said
policy, knowledge on anti-corruption legislation as well
as necessary skills to handle ethical dilemmas at the
workplace, is provided to raise employees’ awareness.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware
of any material non-compliance with the relevant laws
and regulations of bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering that would have a significant impact on the
Group, including but not limited to the Prevention of
Bribery Ordinance ([ 1 ¥ B% 14 5]) of Hong Kong and
Criminal Law of the People's Republic of China (/1 Z A
R HF1EI %), During the Reporting Period, there were
no concluded legal cases regarding any forms of bribery,
extortion, fraud and money laundering brought against the
Group or its employees. During the Reporting Period, the
Group did not provide anti-corruption training to directors
and staff.

Whistleblowing Mechanism

The Group educates all employees on anti-corruption
awareness and encourages them to report any corruption
or fraud activities. The Group promptly conducts
inspections and takes necessary measures while
protecting the identity of the whistle-blower to prevent any
conflict of interest or behaviours that will bring harm to the
Group and the stakeholders.
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B8 Community Investment

With the market’s focus on corporate behaviour, the
short-sighted behaviour of maximizing financial returns
to shareholders is no longer the management goal of
business. The Group stays proactive in fulfilling the
responsibilities as a corporate citizen of the community
and has developed relevant policy in promoting and
encouraging its employees to participate in social welfare
activities, in particular, focusing on improving community
health.

As a responsible corporation, the Group is committed to
extending the sustainability efforts from own operation
to the wider society. The Group believes that staff
members are the core value makers in the society. The
Group will continue to pool the strengths and commit
itself in increasing community participation, balance of
interests of stakeholders and strives to build a corporate-
community relationship that promotes harmony, security
and prosperity.

Although the Group has not established and documented
a specific community policy, social care is deep-seated in
the Group’s corporate culture. Employees are encouraged
to participate in various charitable events and community
service.

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not arrange or
participate in any volunteer services. However, the Group
expresses its intention to engage in volunteer services in
the upcoming Reporting Period, provided that it has the
capability to do so.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
BESHE

The Directors present to the Shareholders the Company’s annual
report and audited consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2024 (the “Reporting Period”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are engaged in the provision of healthcare
products and services. In accordance with Schedule 5 of Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, further discussion and analysis of these
activities including an indication of likely future developments in the
Group’s business and an analysis using financial key performance
indicators, can be found in the section headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis” set out on pages 8 to 17 and note 3 to the
consolidated financial statements of this report, which form part of
this Directors’ report.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the Group’s business during the Reporting Period as
well as discussion and analysis of the Group’s performance under
review and the material factors underlying its financial performance
and financial position are provided in sections headed “Chairman’s
Statement” on pages 6 and 7 and “Management Discussion and
Analysis” on pages 8 to 17 of the annual report and the notes to the
consolidated financial statements.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Certain key risks and uncertainties we face include (i) any negative
public perception of our brand or reputation will have a material
adverse impact on our business; (i) our business operations and the
demand for our aesthetic medical and beauty services are subject
to economic, social and political conditions in Hong Kong and PRC;
(i) a portion of our revenue was derived from visitors or tourists from
the PRC not residing in Hong Kong. Any reduction in the spending
willingness of such PRC visitors and tourists and any decrease
in the number of the PRC visitors to Hong Kong may reduce our
revenue from such customers; (iv) our centres are operated on leased
properties. Any non-renewal of leases or substantial increase in rent
may affect our business and financial performance; and (v) risk of
impairment losses on Group’s assets may have impact to our financial
performance.
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BEGHE

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

Results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2024 are set
out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and comprehensive
income on pages 114 and 115.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the past five financial years is set out on page 204.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the
Reporting Period are set out in note 23 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESERVES

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to Shareholders as
at 31 December 2024 amounted to HK$NIl (2023: HK$NIl).

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the Reporting Period are set out in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity on pages 118 to 119 and note 24 to the
consolidated financial statements, respectively.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the Reporting Period are set out in note 13 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Director

Mr. Wang Chuang  (Chairman of the Board and

Chief Executive Officer)
Non-Executive Director

Mr. Tsang Ho Yin (resigned on 20 August 2024)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Ms. Huo Chunyu
Dr. Liu Ming
Mr. Leung Man Fai

In accordance with article 116 of the Company’s Articles of
association Mr. Wang Chuang and Ms. Huo Chunyu shall retire from
office by rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election

as Directors at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and chief executives of the

Company are set out on pages 18 to 19 of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Director, non-executive Director and
independent non-executive Directors has signed an appointment
letter with the Company for a term of two years commencing from
the date of appointment, subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the general meeting of the Company in accordance with
the Articles of the Company and GEM Listing Rules.

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of any business of the Group was
entered into or subsisted during the Reporting Period.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

During the Reporting Period, each Director is entitled to be
indemnified out of the assets and profits of the Company against all
actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which he/
she may incur or sustain in or about the execution of the duties of his/
her office or otherwise in relation thereto, save for matters in respect
of his/her fraud or dishonesty.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as those set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial
statements, none of the Directors had a significant beneficial interest,
either directly or indirectly, in any transaction, arrangement or contract
of significance to the business of the Group to which the Company or
any of its subsidiaries was a party during the Reporting Period.
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SHARE OPTIONS

The share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) adopted by
the Company on 14 September 2011 is for the primary purpose of
providing incentives to directors and eligible employees of the Group
and is valid for ten years from its adoption until 13 September 2021.

The movement of share options under the share option scheme
during the year ended 31 December 2024 was as below:
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R=F——FAA+MA - AR TDVRMBBRET
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Movement of Share Options during the year ended 31 December 2024
(adjusted number of option after share consolidation)
BE-Z-RETCAST-RLEEZERESD(RRAAFANIILERER)

Adjusted Qutstanding Qutstanding

exercise asat asat

Exercise price  Vesting schedule and 31 December 31 December

Eligible price (Note) - exercise period of the Exercisable portion of the 0 Granted Exercised  Reclassiied Lapsed 204

persons Date of grant HKS) (HK§)  Share Options Share Options granted (Notg) (Nofg) (Nofg) (Note) (Notg) (Notg)
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SHARE OPTIONS (CONT’D)
Adjusted
exercise
Exercise price  Vesting schedule and
Eligible price (Note) - exercise period of the
persons Date of grant HKS  (HKS) Share Options
HEL ]
ke BRE
fFE (03 BERERR
SERAT  RAAH () () WGEHE

BIRE (E)

Movement of Share Options during the year ended 31 December 2024
(adjusted number of option after share consolidation)

BECRCMETCAST-BLERZBRESD (WRAAHANSARRRREE)

Outstanding
asat
31 December
Exercisable portion of the 028 Granted
Share Options granted (Notg) (Notg)
W-82ZF
t2Azt-A
AR Ef

EREBRETIRER iEd (fizt)

Exercised
(Note)

BfE
(Hit)

Reclassified
(Notg)
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For Gantees who are new employees who have oined the Coneary fr ess than 12
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ganes e caseey e
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SHARE OPTIONS (CONT’D) BB IR (1)
Movement of Share Options during the year ended 31 December 2024
(adjusted number of option fter share consolidation)
BE-E3CRETAST-RLEEZBREADRROANANEIRERERE)
Adjusted Outstanding Outstanding
exercise asat asat
Exercise price  Vesting schedule and 31 December 31 December
Eligible price (Notg)  exercise period of the Exercisable portion of the p7A] Granted Exercised  Reclassified Lapsed 204
persons Date of grant HS) [HK§)  Share Options Share Options granted (Notg) (Nofg) (Notg) (Notg) (Notg) (Nofg)
e W-82zF 13
e BREL TZB=+-R t=A=1-H
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SHARE OPTIONS (CONT’D)

Exercise

Eiigble price
persons Date of grant HeS)
e

RERAT  RABH (B

BIRE (E)

Movement of Share Options during the year ended 31 December 2024
(adjusted number of option after share consolidation)

BECRCMETCAST-BLERZBRESD (WRAAHANSARRRREE)

Outstanding

asat

Vesting schedule and 31 December
exercise period of the Exercisable portion of the A2
Share Options Share Options granted (Notg)
HoBzzg

gz t2R=1-A
BRRBRR AR
aiTEaE ERLBREZAGREH (it

Outstanding
asat
31 December

Lapsed 0

(Notg) (Notg)
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t282+-A
BAN  HFAE
(H3E) (izk)
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SHARE OPTIONS (CONT’D) B (&)
Movement of Share Options during the year ended 31 December 2024
(adjusted number of option after share consolidation)
BE-3CRETAST-RLEE/BREADREOAKANEIRERERE)
Adjusted Outstanding Outstanding
exercise asat asat
Exercise price  Vesting schedule and 31 December 31 December
Eligible price (Note) - exercise period of the Exercisable portion of the 028 Granted Exercised  Reclassiied Lapsed 204
persons Date of grant HKS) (HK§)  Share Options Share Options granted (Notg) (Note) (Note) (Notg) (Notg) (Note)
e W-82ZF el 13
fFE BREL TZR=+-R +=R=+-H
fFE (0 BERERR HAfE BRH B CENSE BAY  HAfE
fEEAT  REAH (Bm)  (Bm) WhkHE BRLERETOEDH () () (t3E) () () (Htst)
IMarch 221 fo Upto 20% (‘Options V) fogether with any
8 March 2022 Optons|, and lwhich have not been
(ooth days inclusive) exercised duing tel, land Il Perods)
fthe ‘N Perod) 55200 (EREN]) GERRERH - 1R
Z5--F-AnAE RATTREZ (EREREL IR
ZE-2ERA
(nfiBERE)
(T8RN ))
IMarch 20210 Upto 20% ftogether with any Options | I, and
8 September 2025 which have not been exercised ouring thel, 1 I
(ooth cys incusie) and IV Perodk
ROCESAABE SH%GERREE I IRNERAR
Z2-FAANA LEERIE 1IN
(BfEEERA)

Note: With regards to the share consolidation which took effect on 16 May
2019, every 20 of then existing issued and unissued shares of HK$0.01
each in the share capital of the Company was consolidated into 1

consolidated share of HK$0.20 each.

With regards to the share consolidation which took effect on 6
September 2023, every 10 of then existing issued and unissued shares
of HK$0.20 each in the share capital of the Company was consolidated
into 1 consolidated share of HK$2.00 each respectively.

By virtue of the above-mentioned twice share consolidation of the
Company, the number of shares and exercise price under the share

option scheme were adjusted accordingly.
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DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2024, the following Directors and chief executives
of the Company had or were deemed to have interest or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws
of Hong Kong) (the “SFQO”)) (i) which were required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which
they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO); or (i) which were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO,
to be entered in the register referred to therein; or (i) which were,
pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules related to
securities transactions by the Directors to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange:

BEERBETHRABRRKRG RIBEHE
B zER KR

R-Z-_mME+—A=+—08  THEEEREAA
AREITBRABRARG REREEE (TER
EBEOET1EEZFRBERN((EHRHPE
&) EXVER) 2B - R D R EREES -
BERWGEIEREE()BRIBEES REEIEGIFEXV
HETRSHIBANEARNR LB RT 2
KA (BEEEREESF RS EGE BIE U
EERBIEHREEZEZIAR) K REESH
K BR & 5191 28 352 {6 7B 78 A 5% 16 P it & 2 i 2 4
SR A Bk (i) B GEM iR AIE 5.46 £5.67
BEBESETEFRRGZREANGARR K
PR T2 B SOA R

Long Positions HE
Interests in the shares and underlying shares of the Company RAERGRGRIEGER GG 2w
Aggregate long Approximate
position in the percentage of
Name of Directors/ shares and the issued
Chief executives Capacity underlying shares share capital
R4 R HE&T
HERMG 2 IR AL
BEx BeTHRASHESE E=87) HRA Bl
Wang Chuang Beneficial Owner 73,875,530 24.28%
o En#BA
Leung Man Fai Beneficial Owner 31,000 0.00%
R B EnBA
Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2024, none of the [ FXFFEEIIN R-_ZT-_WE+=-A=+—

Directors nor the chief executives of the Company had or was
deemed to have any interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) (i) which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which they were taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of the SFO); or (i) which were required,
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein; or (i) which were, pursuant to Rules 5.46 to
5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules relating to securities transactions by
Directors to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND

UNDERLYING SHARES

Long positions

Interests in the shares and underlying shares of the Company

TERRREMALRRG RIEEHE
B 2 HEm

#7E

REL ARG RIEBIR G 2 s

Aggregate long
position in the

Approximate
percentage

shares and of the issued
Name of Shareholders Capacity underlying shares share capital
RRG RHEE HERITRAE
BREEEB &4 IR0 2 5 & 4a st BHABE DL
All Favour Holdlngs Limited (Note 1) Ben fpal owner 58,254,776 19.15%
2EIERAR DA (FiFE1) EnEE A
Arab Osman Mohammed (Note 1) Others 58,342,276 19.18%
HER (HE1) Hit
Wong Kwok Keung (Note 1) Others 58,342,276 19.18%
=R (PEE1) H A
Li Ren (Note 2) Held by controlled corporation 58,254,776 19.15%
) (F5E2) BEEEERFE
Beneficial owner 2,138,000 0.70%
EmEEA
China Orient Asset Management Held by controlled corporation 15,774,465 5.18%
Co., Ltd (Note 3) B
FRRSEEEERNDBRAR AR EERE
(K171 3)
China Orient Alternative Investment Held by controlled corporation 15,774,465 5.18%
Fund (Note 3) (F#7E3) AR EERE
Changzhou Yaoguang Enterprise Held by controlled corporation 26,240,000 8.62%
Management Consulting Limited
Liability Partnership* (Note 4) B
FNMRACXERZRNGEER BHITZERA
(BR&R) (Fizt4)
Lei Changjuan (Note 4) Held by controlled corporation 26,240,000 8.62%
EEE(M5E4) ARIEEERES
Changzhou Minxing Enterprise Held by controlled corporation 16,060,000 5.28%
Management Consulting Services
Limited Liability Partnership* (Note 5)
BMNTHPREZCXRERZKARE AR EEERE
BEER(BARAR) (HE5)
Kong Yu Dong (Note 5) Held by controlled corporation 16,060,000 5.28%

LER(MEES)

HEIEERE
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES (CONT’D)

Long positions (Cont’d)

Interests in the shares and underlying shares of the Company

(Cont’d)

Notes:

1. All Favour Holdings Limited (“All Favour”) is beneficially owned as to (i)
40% by Nat-Ace Wood Industry Ltd. (“Nat-Ace Wood Industry”) and
20% by Honour Top Holdings Limited, of which Nat-Ace Wood Industry
is ultimately and wholly-owned by Mr. Li Ren (“Mr. Li”) and Honour
Top Holdings Limited is ultimately wholly owned by Mr. Dai Yumin
40% by Mr. Dai. Moreover, All Favour has been the
beneficial owner of 58,254,776 Shares. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Dai,
Mr. Li and Nat-Ace Wood Industry are deemed to be interested in

(“Mr. Dai”), and (il

58,254,776 Shares in which All Favour is interested in.

On 16 September 2015, Mr. Dai was granted 17,500,000 share options
by the Company under the Scheme adopted by the Company on 14
September 2011 entitling him to subscribe for 17,500,000 Shares at
the exercise price of HK$0.45 per Share, subject to the terms and
conditions of the Scheme of the Company. The number of Shares to
be issued upon full exercise of the said share options and the exercise
price per Share were adjusted to 875,000 Shares and HK$90.00 per
Share with effect from 16 May 2019 and 6 September 2023 respectively
as a result of the twice share consolidation of the Company, details of
which were disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 15
May 2019 and 4 September 2023 respectively. Assuming the share
options granted to Mr. Dai has been exercised in full, Mr. Dai shall
hold an aggregate of 87,500 Shares as beneficial owner. By virtue of
the SFO, Mr. Dai, together with his deemed interests in All Favour,
was deemed to be interested in an aggregate of 58,342,276 Shares,
representing approximately 20.44% of the issued share capital of the
Company. All Favour has pledged its interests in 15,774,465 Shares in

favour of Optimus.

On 31 March 2022, a bankruptcy order was made against Mr. Dai.
Subsequently, Messrs. Arab Osman Mohammed and Mr. Wong Kwok
Keung were appointed as joint and several trustees (the “Trustees”)
of the property of Mr. Dai at the general meeting of creditors held
on 6 May 2022. Accordingly, the property of Mr. Dai, including his
shareholdings, shall vest in the Trustees pursuant to section 58(2) of the

Bankruptcy Ordinance (Cap. 6).

2. Mr. Li personally owns 2,138,000 Shares. Mr. Li is therefore deemed
to be interested in an aggregate of 60,392,776 Shares, representing,
approximately 19.85% of the issued share capital of the Company.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES (CONT’D)

Long positions (Cont’d)

Interests in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
(Cont’d)

Notes: (Cont’d)

3.

Based on the disclosure of interests form both filed on 14 December
2020 by China Orient Asset Management Co., Ltd (“COAMC”) and
China Orient Alternative Investment Fund (“COAIF”), Optimus Prime
Management Ltd. (“Optimus”) has a security interest in 157,744,659
Shares. Optimus is wholly owned by COAIF. COAIF is wholly owned
by China Orient Asset Management (International) Holding Limited
(“COAMI”). COAMI is owned as to (i) 50% by Wise Leader Assets Ltd.
(“Wise Leader”) which is wholly owned by Dong Yin Development
(Holdings) Limited (“Dong Yin”); and (i) 50% by Dong Yin which is wholly
owned by COAMC.

By virtue of the SFO, COAIF, COAMI, Wise Leader, Dong Yin and
COAMC are deemed to be interested in 15,774,465 Shares held by
Optimus as security interest.

Changzhou Yaoguang Enterprise Management Consulting Limited
Liability Partnership* (“Yaoguang”) is a limited liability partnership
established in the PRC and is managed by Ms. Lei Changjuan as
the general partner and the shares were held by Yao Guang (Hong
Kong) Enterprise Limited as nominee for Yaoguang. Accordingly, each
of Yaoguang and Ms. Lei Changjuan is deemed to be interested in
26,240,000 Shares.

Changzhou Minxing Enterprise Management Consulting Services
Limited Liability Partnership* (“Minxing”) is a limited liability partnership
established in the PRC and is managed by Ms. Kong Yudong as the
general partner and the shares were held by Zhong Min Starry (Hong
Kong) Limited as nominee for Minxing. Accordingly, each of Minxing
and Ms. Kong Yudong is deemed to be interested in 16,060,000
Shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2024, the Directors are
not aware that there is any other party (other than the Directors and
the chief executives of the Company) who had, or was deemed to
have, interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company (i) which would fall to be disclosed to
the Company and Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO; or (ii) which were required, pursuant
to section 336 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the heading “DIRECTORS AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES” in this report, at no time during the
Reporting Period were the rights to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to
any Director or chief executive of the Company or their respective
spouse or children under 18 years of age, or were any such rights
exercised by them; or was the Company or its subsidiaries a party
to any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire such rights or
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions as disclosed in note 28 to the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2024 do not constitute a connected transaction or continuing
connected transaction as defined in Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing
Rules. The Directors confirmed that the Company has complied with
the disclosure requirements in Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVES AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and chief executives and
the five highest paid individuals of the Group are set out in note 9 to
the consolidated financial statements.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

A Remuneration Committee is set up for reviewing the Group’s
emolument policy and structure for all remuneration of the Directors
and senior management of the Group, having regard to the Group’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable market
practices.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as incentive to
Directors and eligible employees, details of the scheme are set out in
note 27 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the Directors or the substantial shareholders of the Company,
or any of their respective close associates (as defined under the GEM
Listing Rules) had any interest in a business that competes or may
compete with the business of the Group.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Sales to the Group’s largest and five largest customers represented
approximately 21.98% and 32.88% respectively of the Group’s total
turnover for the year.

Purchases from the Group’s largest and five largest suppliers
represented approximately 34.58% and 86.97% respectively of the
Group'’s total purchases for the year.

None of the Directors of the Company, their close associates (as
defined under GEM Listing Rules) or any Shareholder (which to the
knowledge of the Directors of the Company own more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial interests in the
Group'’s five largest customers or suppliers.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

For the year ended 31 December 2024, neither the Company nor any
of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s
listed securities.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company maintains a high standard of corporate governance
practices. Details of the corporate governance practices adopted
by the Company are set out in the Corporate Governance Report
on pages 20 to 45. The Directors believe the long term financial
performance as opposed to short term rewards is a corporate
governance objective. The Board would not take undue risks to make
short term gains at the expense of long term objectives.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this annual report,
the Company has maintained the prescribed public float under the
GEM Listing Rules.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group’s business is subject to the relevant environmental laws
and regulations of Hong Kong and the PRC. During the Reporting
Period, the Group was not subject to any major environmental claims,
lawsuits, penalties, administrative or disciplinary actions. For more
information in the environmental policies of the Group, please refer to
the ESG Report included in this annual report.
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COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the Reporting Period and up to the date of this report, the
Group has complied with all the relevant laws and regulations in the
Mainland China and Hong Kong in all material respects.

The Company has adopted the CG Code. During the Reporting
Period, the Board is of the opinion that the Company has complied
with all the applicable code provisions set out in the CG Code except
for code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code in relation to separation of
the role of chairman and chief executive officer. For further information
in respect of the corporate governance of the Company, please refer
to the Corporate Governance Report in this annual report.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Reporting Period, the Group has maintained good
relationship with its employees, customers and suppliers. The Group
will continue to ensure effective communication and maintain good
relationship with them. During the Reporting Period, there was no
material dispute between the Group and its customers, suppliers and
employees, respectively.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Directors acknowledge the importance of stakeholders’
engagement, and would make effort to share the Group’s results with
shareholders by dividend payment. The Directors shall consider the
following factors before declaring or recommending dividends:

e the Company’s actual and expected financial performance;

2. retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company
and each of the members of the Group;

& the Group’s working capital requirements, capital expenditure
requirements and future expansion plans;

4. the Group’s liquidity position;

B general economic conditions, business cycle of the Group’s
business and other internal or external factors that may have
an impact on the business or financial performance and

position of the Company; and

6. other factors that the Board deems relevant.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors the written confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company
considers all of the independent non-executive Directors are
independent.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has three members, comprising of our
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Leung Man Fai
(the chairman of Audit Committee), Ms. Huo Chunyu and Dr. Liu
Ming. The Audit Committee has reviewed the Company’s audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2024.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles, or laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
Shareholders of the Company.

TAX RELIEF

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption available
to the Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s
securities.

AUDITOR

McM (HK) CPA Limited tendered a resignation letter to the Board to
resign from the position of auditor of the Company with effect from
25 January 2024. At the recommendation of the Audit Committee,
the Board resolved to appoint CCTH CPA Limited as the new auditor
of the Company to fill the casual vacancy following the resignation
of McM (HK) CPA Limited, whose appointment took effect from 25
January 2024 and will hold office until the conclusion of the next
annual general meeting of the Company. Details of the change of
auditor of the Company have been disclosed in the announcements
of the Company dated 25 January 2024 and 9 February 2024.
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CCTH CPA Limited tendered a resignation letter to the Board to
resign from the position of auditor of the Company with effect from 6
January 2025. At the recommendation of the Audit Committee, the
Board resolved to appoint Linksfield CPA Limited as the new auditor
of the Company to fill the casual vacancy following the resignation of
CCTH CPA Limited, whose appointment took effect from 6 January
2025 and will hold office until the conclusion of the next annual
general meeting of the Company. Details of the change of auditor
of the Company have been disclosed in the announcements the
Company dated 6 January 2025.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2024 have been audited by Linksfield CPA Limited, who
will retire and, being eligible, offer itself for re-appointment, at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, there were no other changes in auditor of
the Company in the preceding three years.

On behalf of the Board

Wang Chuang
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2025
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—— LINKSFIELD

‘;' CPA LIMITED

/\/

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
CHINA REGENERATIVE MEDICINE INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

QUALIFIED OPINION
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of China Regenerative Medicine
International Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
set out on pages 114 to 203, which comprise:

° the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2024;

° the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year then
ended;

° the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

° the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which
include material accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Our qualified opinion

In our opinion, except for the possible effects on the comparability of
the current year’s figures and the corresponding figures of the matter
described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our report,
the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2024,
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BHEBLEBZERERAF

ERE
(RESRBHMA T2 ERAF)
REE

BIIEFi HIA &

PEBLESREBARAR(TEAR]) REKEB
2E([BEEE ] HENRE114ZE203 B HERE
BWwE - B

e RIZE-_WE+-_A=1t—BHKREHK
e

. BEZRLEENGABERE:

g

s HAMBMERME BEREIBEIBER
HiRIEER -

HIIEREZ L

BFIRR BAREREBANER S E
HHANFERFEMEERFH A LA REE LA
TEIN GEMBRRORET LSS (&
BEEAE]) RENEERHERELEN(EA
MHEREEN D EEMPSRE BEXER
“EoEFT A=t BHEAM BN LE
ERALFENGEMBRAEMGARASRE
WEEREBRAROINBERELZSHE -

2024 i FEIBEBRERAERAR 105



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BN AR S

BASIS FOR QUALIFIED OPINION

We were appointed as the auditor of the Company in respect of the
Group’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2024 on 6 January 2025.

COMPARABILITY OF THE CURRENT YEAR’S
FIGURES AND THE CORRESPONDING FIGURES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 IN
THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR
LOSS AND THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY

The Group has the deposits, prepayments and other receivables
which are further described in Note 16(b) to the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2024. As set out in
predecessor auditor’s report dated 28 March 2024 on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2023, the predecessor auditor, who were newly appointed as the
auditor in respect of the Group’s consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2023 in January 2024, have qualified
their opinion due to a limitation on the scope of their audit in relation
to the carrying amount of the opening balance of the other receivable
from a third party as at 1 January 2023, as they were unable to
obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to satisfy themselves on
whether any adjustments were necessary to the carrying amount as
at 31 December 2022 in respect of this other receivable carried at
approximately HK$251,457,000 and the corresponding impairment
loss on this other receivable of approximately HK$7,273,000
recognised for the year ended 31 December 2022. During the year
ended 31 December 2023, the Group has made further impairment
loss on this other receivable of approximately HK$83,001,000.
Accordingly, their audit opinion on the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2023 was qualified
because of the limitation in scope on the opening balance of this
other receivable as at 1 January 2023, which could have a significant
consequential impact to the impairment loss on this other receivable
included in the Group’s consolidated losses for the year ended 31
December 2023.

Because of the possible effects of this matter on the comparability of
the current year’s figures and the corresponding figures for the year
ended 31 December 2023 in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
related notes disclosures, our opinion on the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2024 is therefore
quallified in respect of this matter.
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MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING
CONCERN

As set out in Note 2.1(c) to the consolidated financial statements,
as at 31 December 2024, the Group’s current liabilities exceeded
its current assets by approximately HK$557,000. The Group had
current liabilities due within one year amounted to approximately
HK$58,869,000 at 31 December 2024 while cash and bank
balances included in current assets amounted to approximately
HK$22,702,000 at 31 December 2024. The above conditions, along
with other matters as described in Note 2.1(c) to the consolidated
financial statements, indicate the existence of a material uncertainty
which may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

INDEPENDENCE

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA'’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. In addition to
the matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section and
Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern section, we have
determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters
to be communicated in our report.
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Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:

- assessment of the expected credit losses (“ECL”) on other  —

receivables.

Key Audit Matters
BEEEE
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matters
RPN ETNMEEEARETSE

Assessment of the ECL on other receivables

Refer to Note 3.1(b), Note 4(b) and Note 16 to the
consolidated financial statements for related disclosure.

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had carrying amounts
of other receivables of approximately HK$98,426,000 (after
provision of approximately HK$36,845,000), representing
approximately 72.5% of the Group’s total assets.
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A HREMFESA(D)

RZTE-_NFE+-_A=+—8 E£EAEMEKRZIEN
BR T 1B %) /5 98,426,000 7% 7T (B 51 12 # #5 49 36,845,000 /8
TT) 0 1h BEBEEEMNNT25% -
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We performed the following procedures to address the key
audit matter:

o Obtained an understanding of management’s internal
control and assessment process of the ECL of other
receivables and assessed the inherent risk of material
misstatement by considering the degree of estimation
uncertainty and level of other inherent risk factors such
as complexity of models and subjectivity of significant
assumptions and data used;

° Evaluated the Group’s policy for estimating the ECL
allowance with reference to the requirements of the
prevailing accounting standard;

HFIpE R R E FERTA TR

s THEEEHHHMBRUFBEZEHREEEERENA
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Key Audit Matters
HREEEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matters
RPN ESTOMERERETSE

The Group applies the general approach in HKFRS 9
to measure the ECL of other receivables. Management
assessed the ECL based on estimation about risk of default,
expected loss rates and whether there has been any
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition for
other receivables. The Group used judgment in making these
assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment
calculation, including the credit loss experience, historical
settlement records, internal credit ratings, relationships
with debtors and other factors that impacted their ability of
repayment. Management also took into account of existing
market conditions and forward looking information.

We focused on this area due to the magnitude of the relevant
balances and the complexity of models and subjectivity of
significant assumptions and data used in the estimation of
expected credit losses.

KSECEAEAEVBHRELENLORN —RITAFER
11*2)75451 REWTEBEEEE - ERERBHENRR - &
HEBXAR B MAEANREMEYKECSERRZ
BARER MG KA BRMEERE - EEERNEDL
ZEBRRMEREAERENBARIZRSER T HE - B
EERELR BEAECE AMEEFE  BEBA
MEARMFERFEFNENNEMCER - EEETFCA
RIREGTREATEIEER -

BASEFRUTE - HRERARERER - BRAGBEE
HERBENRUEM TERKNREBSRIBHIE -

Tested, on a sample basis, the historical and
subsequent settlement by checking to the bank slips to
assess the effectiveness of management’s estimation
process;

° Evaluated the appropriateness of the methodology,
the basis and assumptions, including both historical
and forward-looking information used to determine the
expected credit losses;

o Involved our internal valuation specialist in our
discussion with the external valuer and management
to understand the rationale and assess the
appropriateness and consistency of the methodology
used and the inputs, assumptions and estimates
adopted in the valuation; and

° Assessed the competence, capabilities and objectivity
of the independent external valuer.

We found the models, significant assumptions and data
applied by management in the assessment of the ECL on
other receivables were supported by available evidence.

o  WMEREBRITUE RFHBES
BEMFEFNEREE

Haosk o AT

e FIERAENBEEL ARNBEERAEERENE
BN BRR (BREESL RATEEER)

o FEUMMAMBEZERLSERFIEIN A ERLE
BREM® - AT REEMB A RTEBNE A
85 BREMAETES - WA EEEE R 3L
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o  HEBMSINBAERMNEL  EHOREEIEE -

HFIRR - AT EIA EESRF

ZEMEEEEMERRE

B B 10 AT 4 EL A R UK IR
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

RBMHBERRS M BRRNEE
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Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concemn. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the Group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.
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From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Chan Kong Wang.

Linksfield CPA Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Chan Kong Wang

Practising Certificate Number: P0O4083

Hong Kong, 28 March 2025
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZ —_Z_WF+_A=+—HILFE

2024 2023
—ENF =
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5E FET T

Revenue I 2 5(a) 90,617 69,487
Cost of sales FHER A (32,963) (50,064)
Gross profit EF 57,654 19,423
Other income and other loss E AR E M EE 5(b) 458 2,393
Selling and distribution expenses HE RS HEAX (6,626) (6,644)
Administrative and other expenses TR EMAL (44,892) (38,891)
Reversal of/(provision for) expected credit  E fth fE U X IEHYFE B B & 18

loss on other receivables B () 12,290 (83,001)
Operating profit/(loss) gEwA, (E8) 18,884 (106,720)
Finance costs B E A 7 (1,132) 979)
Profit/(loss) before income tax BRETSBADER (BR) 8 17,752 (107,699)
Income tax expense FriS i X 10 - =
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to A2 F#EA ABLEREE

owners of the Company wmAL (B5E) 17,752 (107,699)
Profit/(loss) per share attributable to &2 T #A AEBESR

owners of the Company BR(BE)
Basic (in HK$ cents) B (L) 12 5.83 (37.60)
Diluted (in HK$ cents) #sE (BL) 12 5.83 (37.60)

=

The above consolidated statement of profit or loss should be read in il 4R & 1828 & & BABERMI Y 5 — BRI E -

conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

ARA I

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZ —Z_WF+_A=+—HILFE

2024 2023
—E-E —TE=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Profit/(loss) for the year FREF,(EE) 17,752 (107,699)
Other comprehensive loss Htt2mHEE
Itern that may be reclassified subsequently R & AJfEEF 7 E B a2
to profit or loss EH
Exchange loss on translation of financial BEGINEFSBI SRR Z
statements of foreign operations I 5 &8 (4,348) (424)
Other comprehensive loss AEEEMETEE  KBFIE
for the year, net of tax . (454 (424)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for 2~ T #E A A FE1S
the year attributable to owners of AEEREARSE ()
the Company 13,404 (108,123)

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should — _F3ft4R & & [ UR 55 % & B BE R Y s — GERI 38 -

be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

ARE MIIEARR

As at 31 December 2024 R—ZE_-WE+=-A=+—H

2024 2023
—EZMEF —E=F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
{hy=2 FET FHEIT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment E =& 13 2,836 2,873
Right-of-use assets EREEE 14(a) 4,150 14,445
Other receivables b e Y 5RIB 16(b) 70,411 =
77,397 17,318
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 15 236 445
Trade receivables Z 5 FEWGRIE 16(a) 622 1,196
Deposits, prepayments e BRI IE K
and other receivables H Ath & U 5K I8 16(b) 34,752 163,604
Cash and cash equivalents HeNIRe vﬁIﬁi B 17 22,702 3,334
. . T N 98,312 NN
Total assets BmEE 135,709 185,897
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to owners RAREE AELER
of the Company
Share capital B 23 60,850 60,850
Reserves fE (35,653) (49,057)
Total equity R 25,197 11,793
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As at 31 December 2024 R=—ZE-_WE+=-A=+—H

2024 2023
—EmE —E-=4F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
M 5 FBT FHET
LIABILITIES =L
Non-current liabilities ERBERE
Other payables H b & 5B 19 6,023 =
Lease liabilities HERE 14(p) - 4,588
Shareholders’ loans H“? B 21 45,473 21,579
Deferred tax liabilities EEMIBAGE 29 147 147
.. V. 51,643 - 26,314
Current liabilities REEE
Trade payables B 5 e IR 18 3,841 2,473
Accruals and other payables fEETE A &Eﬁﬁ%ﬁ IR 19 10,651 14,910
Contract liabilities BHEE 20 11,294 81,090
Lease liabilities HERE 14(b) 4,588 10,395
Shareholders’ loans fEERE R 21 3,629 13,629
Current tax liabilities EHTIBEAE 24,866 25,293
58,869 147,790
Total liabilites ~~~~~~~~ ®&8&% = 110512 174,104
Total equity and liabilites ~~~~~~ ®®@=ka® === 135,709 185897
Net current (liabilities)/assets RE(BE) EBEEFE (557) 20,789

The consolidated financial statements on pages 114 to 203 were $114EF 203 B M W BHREER T A
approved by the Board of Directors on 28 March 2025 and were F=ZA -+ /\BEEFeBEMEENUTALIRE
signed on its behalf. BE o

Wang Chuang Huo Chunyu
M EEE
Director Director
- FE

The above consolidated statement of financial position should be | ill4R & B 554K i 5= i B2 BE R Y 5 — BFBI7E -
read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GAEREBR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZE —=

“HFE+ZA=t+—HLEE

Attributable to owners of the Company

AYNGE X-ON L
Share
Share Share Tranglation Specal Other option  Accumulated
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total
e kinaE hEkE KRG Efnfete  BRERE 2iER aif
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TAL TAL i TAL Tin AL TET
(Note (i) (Note (i)
(B3) (B £E i)
At 1 January 2023 RZE-=f-f-H 570,858 3,208,513 (10,765) (200) (413,100) 40,609 (3,286,999) 108,916
Comprehensive loss 2EFE
Loss for the year ERER - - - - - = (107,699) (107,699)
Other comprehensive loss A2 EEE
Exchange differences arising on BEBNEBCESER
translation of foreign operations - = (424) = = - - (424)
Total comprehensive loss for the year N2 EREE - - (424) - - - (107,699) (108,123)
Capital reduction (Note 23) FRAHIRL (Pit3E23) (513772) - = - = - 513,772 =
Issue of shares on shareholder'sloan  ARREFE R E
capitalisation (Note 23) B (HriE29) 3,764 12,236 - = - = = 16,000
At 31 December 2023 W-®-z£+-f=+-A 60850 3215749 (11,189 0 (13100 20609 (2880,926) 11,793
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

—||— A4 2_
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZ —Z_WF+_A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

RRRER AR
Share
Share Share  Translation Special Other option  Accumulated
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total
& RiEE BERE BHREE HftfE BRERE i ER &it

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TER

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TR TR ThR TR TR

(Note (i)) (Note (ii))
GED) (B i)

At 1 January 2024 W-E-NME-F-H 60,850 3,215,749 (11,189) (200) (413,100) 40,609 (2,880,926) 11,793
Comprehensive income 2ENE
Proft for the year ERgaH - - - - - - 17,752 17,752
Other comprehensive loss A2 EEE
Exchange differences arising on BEBNEBESZR

translation of foreign operations - - (4,348) - - - - (4,348)
Total comprehensive loss for the year M2 F &8 - - (4,348) - - - 17,752 13,404
At 31 December 2024 WZB-ME+=A=1-H 60,850 3,215,749 (15,537) (200) (413,100) 40,609 (2,863,174 25,197
Notes: B 5T -

(i) The special reserve represents the difference between the nominal
value of the shares of the acquired subsidiaries and the nominal value
of the Company’s shares issued for their acquisition at the time of the
Group’s reorganisation in 2001.

(ii) The other reserve represents (1) the difference between the fair value
of consideration paid to increase the shareholding in subsidiaries and
the amount of adjustment to non-controlling interest; and (2) deemed
capital contribution from shareholders, represented the difference
between the principal amount of the shareholder’s loan and its fair
value.

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be
read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

(i)

FRFEREEASER T FEAK - s
B8 X B AR D E (B B AR R BB % S B A A)
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H At 7 F 48 (1) SR 45 D07 B 8 2% B 2 B P A5 4R
Bz FEEAFERERERR RSB Z/E

RBIERREIE HERERERLSFEHEAQ
FEZMEHER -

AR A T 25 B B 5 B B Y B S — DR B AR -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
REREMER
For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZ —_Z_WF+_A=+—HILFE

2024 2023
—E-EF —T=F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
s FET FHET
Cash flows from operating activities RETEBBESRE
Profit/(loss) before income tax BRETISFLATRF)/ (BE) 17,752 (107,699)
Adjustment for: R -
Depreciation of property, WE - WE R
plant and equipment BB E 8 664 574
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 8 10,295 10,743
Bank interest income IRITF B YA 5(b) (5) (12)
Interest on lease liabilities HEAEBEAE 7 485 979
Interest expenses on ERER
shareholders’ loans B 7 647 =
(Reversal of)/provision for expected credit Hi W FIENTESREE
loss on other receivables BiE(Em) EE 16 (12,290) 83,001
Interest accretion on other receivables H b U FIERF BIE 0 5() (17,577) =
Loss on modification of other receivables B EMEWFRIBERNEE  5(0) 17,276 =
Operating profit/(loss) before EEESBBA2KYE
movements in working capital =R (ER) 17,247 (12,414)
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERL, (M) 209 (159)
Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables B S W IER L, (EM) 574 (1,125)
Decrease in deposits, prepayments and e ENRER
other receivable H b W B R 11,028 282
Increase in trade payables B 5 & FRIAE BN 1,368 2,420
(Decrease)/increase in contract liabilities BHEECRD) /18 m (13,886) 20,347
Increase in accruals and FERTE A KA b FER 5RI8
other payables 0 1,764 1,438
Cash generated from operations REXBFB2RE 18,304 10,789
Income tax paid BEAIFTEE - =
Net cash generated from RETHFBRESBHE
operating activities 18,304 10,789
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

ralTRnER

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZE —=

“HFE+ZA=t+—HLEFE

2024 2023
—E-mF —To=F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FET FHET
Cash flows from investing activities REZEBBESRE
Interest received 2 U F & 5 12
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BB - = L &RE 13 (627) (274)
Net cash used in investing activities REZBHERARESEE (622) (262)
Cash flows from financing activities RMEEEE ﬁﬁmus
Advances from shareholders BESEINE ! 25(a) 21,182 7,088
Repayment of shareholders’ loan EERRE %ﬁ\ 25(a) (7,935) (4,294)
Payment of principal elements of INHEEaEASH S
lease liabilities 25(a) (10,395) (10,158)
Interest paid on lease liabilities ENEEAETE 25(a) (485) 979)
Net cash generated from/(used in) BMEEEE (3A)
financing activities HEFHE 2,367 (8,343)
Net increase in cash and RekREeEEEBZ
cash equivalents EnFEE 20,049 2,184
Cash and cash equivalents at the FUNzEERREEEER
beginning of the year 17 3,334 1,849
Effect of foreign exchange HNEERSBHHLEFHE
rate changes, net (681) (699)
Cash and cash equivalents FRZEESRRESEEEE
at the end of the year 17 22,702 3,334
The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in  _Fili4R A IE i & & FEEBEMIFT = — G508 -

conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

N

sra SRR T

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZ —_Z_WF+_A=+—HILFE

122

GENERAL INFORMATION

China Regenerative Medicine International Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated as an exempted company with
limited liability in the Cayman Islands under the Companies
Law (Revision 2001) of Cayman Islands on 20 April 2001. The
address of the Company’s registered office is Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2861, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands and its principal place of business is situated at
Suite 2310-2318, Miramar Tower, 132 Nathan Road, Tsim Sha
Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong. The Company’s shares are listed on
GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. Details of the
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 29. The
Company and its subsidiaries are collectively referred to as the
“Group” hereinafter.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousands of Hong Kong dollars (‘HK$’000”), unless otherwise
stated.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual HKFRS, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKAS”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance Cap.622. The
consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements
in conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgment in the process of applying
the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a
higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial
statements are disclosed in Note 4.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR e TSR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZE —=

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONT’D)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont’d)

(a

New and amended standards adopted by the
Group

The Group has applied the following new

and amended standards, improvements and

interpretation for the first time for their annual

reporting period commencing 1 January 2024:

HKAS 1 (Amendments)  Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-Current (amendments)

Non-current liabilities with Covenants
(@amendments)

Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback (amendments)

HKAS 1 (Amendments)

HKFRS 16
(Amendments)

HK Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial Statements

(Revised) - Classification by the Borrower
of a Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause
(@amendments)
HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7 Supplier Finance Arrangements
(Amendments) (amendments)

The adoption of these amendments has had no
significant impact on the results and financial
position of the Group. The Group has not changed
significantly on its material accounting policies
or make retrospective adjustments as a result of
adopting these amendments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZE —=

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 2.

POLICIES (CONT’D)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont’d)

(b) New standards and interpretations not yet

“HFE+ZA=t+—HLEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR e TSR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZE —=

2.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONT’D)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont’d)

(b)

New standards and interpretations not yet
adopted (Cont'd)

HKFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial
Statements (new standard)

In July 2024, HKICPA issued HKFRS 18 which is
effective for annual reporting periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2027, with early application
permitted. HKFRS 18 introduces significant
changes to the presentation of financial statements,
which a focus on information about financial
performance present in the statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, which
will affect how the Group present and disclose
financial performance in the consolidated financial
statements. The key changes introduced in HKFRS
18 relate to (i) the structure of the statement of profit
or loss, (i) required disclosures for management-
defined performance measures (which are referred
to alternative or non-GAAP performance measures),
and (i) enhanced requirements for aggregation and
disaggregation of information.

The Group will apply this new standard from its
mandatory effective date of 1 January 2027.
Retrospective application is required, and so the
comparative information for the financial year ending
31 December 2026 will be restated in accordance
with HKFRS 18.
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2.

126

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONT’D)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont’d)

(b) New standards and interpretations not yet

(c)

adopted (Cont’d)

HKFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial
Statements (new standard) (Cont’d)

The directors of the Company have assessed
the financial impact on the Group of the adoption
of the above new standards, amendments to
existing standards and interpretations. Apart from
HKFRS 18, these standards, amendments and
interpretation are not expected to have a material
financial impact on the Group in the future reporting
periods and foreseeable future transactions. The
Group is currently revisiting their accounting policy
information disclosures to ensure consistency with
the amended requirements. The Group intends to
adopt the above new standards, amendments to
existing standards and interpretations when they
become effective.

Going concern basis

As at 31 December 2024, the Group’s current
liabilities exceeded its current assets by
approximately HK$557,000. The Group had
current liabilities due within one year amounted to
approximately HK$58,869,000 at 31 December
2024 while cash and bank balances included
in current assets amounted to approximately
HK$22,702,000 at 31 December 2024. The above
conditions indicate the existence of a material
uncertainty which may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR e TSR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZE —=

2.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONT’D)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont’d)

(c)

Going concern basis (Cont’d)

The directors of the Company have reviewed
the Group’s cash flow projections prepared by
management. The cash flow projections cover
a period of not less than twelve months from 31
December 2024. The directors of the Company are
of the opinion that, taking into account the following
plans and measures, the Group will have sufficient
working capital to meet its financial obligations
as and when they fall due within the next twelve
months from 31 December 2024.

U)

(i)

The Group is actively seeking the additional
funds by equity financing to finance the
Group’s working capital and the repayment of
existing debts when they fall due; and

The substantial shareholder of the Company,
Mr. Wang Chuang, has confirmed to provide
financial support to the Group for a period up
to 30 June 2026 to enable the Group to meet
its liabilities and obligations as and when they
fall due and to carry on its business without a
significant curtailment of operations.
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2.

128

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONT’D)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont’d)

(c)

Going concern basis (Cont’d)

In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
in light of the above plans and measures, the
Group will have sufficient working capital to fulfil
its financial obligations as and when they fall due
in the coming twelve months from 31 December
2024. Accordingly, the directors of the Company
are satisfied that it is appropriate to prepare the
consolidated financial statements on a going
concern basis.

Notwithstanding the above, significant uncertainty
exists as to whether management of the Group
can achieve the plans and measures described in
(i) and (i) above. Whether the Group will be able to
continue as a going concern would depend upon
the Group’s ability to obtain the additional funds by
equity financing and to obtain the financial support
from the substantial shareholder as and when
needed.

Should the Group be unable to continue as a going
concern, adjustments would have to be made to
write down the carrying values of the Group’s assets
to their recoverable amounts, to provide for any
further liabilities which might arise and to reclassify
non-current assets and non-current liabilities as
current assets and current liabilities, respectively.
The effects of these adjustments have not been
reflected in the consolidated financial statements.

2.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR e TSR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZ —Z_WF+_A=+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 2. BERSTBRME (E)

POLICIES (CONT’D)

2.2 Business combination and basis of

consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(“the Group”). Inter-company transactions and balances
between group companies together with unrealised profits
are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of impairment on the
asset transferred, in which case the loss is recognised in
profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the
effective dates of acquisition or up to the effective dates of
disposal, as appropriate. Where necessary, adjustments
are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to
bring their accounting policies into line with those used by
other members of the Group.

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted for
using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition
is measured at the aggregate of the acquisition-date
fair value of assets transferred, liabilities incurred and
equity interests issued by the Group, as the acquirer. The
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed are
principally measured at acquisition-date fair value. The
Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree
is re-measured at acquisition-date fair value and the
resulting gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss.
The Group may elect, on a transaction-by-transaction
basis, to measure the non-controlling interests that
represent present ownership interests in the subsidiary
either at fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other non-controlling
interests are measured at fair value unless another
measurement basis is required by HKFRSs. Acquisition-
related costs incurred are expensed unless they are
incurred in issuing equity instruments in which case the
costs are deducted from equity.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZE —=

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONT’D)

2.2 Business combination and basis of

consolidation (Cont’d)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at acquisition-date fair value.
Subsequent adjustments to consideration are recognised
against goodwill only to the extent that they arise from
new information obtained within the measurement period
(a maximum of 12 months from the acquisition date)
about the fair value at the acquisition date. All other
subsequent adjustments to contingent consideration
classified as an asset or a liability are recognised in profit
or loss.

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s interest
and the non-controlling interest are adjusted to reflect
the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries.
Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interest is adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in
equity and attributed to owners of the Company. When
the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or
loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between
(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest and
(i) the previous carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-
controlling interest. Amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to the subsidiary
are accounted for in the same manner as would be
required if the relevant assets or liabilities were disposed
of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiary is the amount of those
interests at initial recognition plus such non-controlling
interest’s share of subsequent changes in equity. Total
comprehensive income is attributed to such non-
controlling interests even if this results in those non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZ —Z_WF+_A=+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (CONT’D)

2.8 Subsidiaries

SRR EE (8)

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Group is able
to exercise control. The Group controls an investee if all
three of the following elements are present: power over
the investee, exposure, or rights, to variable returns from
the investee, and the ability to use its power to affect
those variable returns. Control is reassessed whenever
facts and circumstances indicate that there may be a
change in any of these elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.

2.4 Foreign currency translation

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is also the functional
currency of the Company.

In the individual financial statements of the consolidated
entities, foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency of the individual entity
using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. At the reporting date, monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at that date.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the reporting
date retranslation of monetary assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are not retranslated.
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SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONT’D)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (Cont’d)

In the consolidated financial statements, all individual
financial statements of foreign operations, originally
presented in a currency different from the Group’s
presentation currency, have been converted into HKS.
Assets and liabilities have been translated into HKS at the
closing rates at the reporting date. Income and expenses
have been converted into HK$ at the exchange rates
ruling at the transaction dates, or at the average rate over
the reporting period provided that the exchange rates do
not fluctuate significantly. Any differences arising from this
procedure have been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in the translation
reserve in equity.

When a foreign operation is sold, such exchange
differences are reclassified from equity to profit or loss as
part of the gain or loss on sale.

2.5 Property, plant and equipment

Buildings held for own use which are situated on
leasehold land, where the fair value of the building
could be measured separately from the fair value of
the leasehold land at the inception of the lease, and
other items of property, plant and equipment, other
than construction in progress, are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses. The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price
and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to
its working condition and location for its intended use.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided
to write off the cost less their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method, at
the following rates per annum:

shorter of the lease
term or 16°%/5%
10%-33"/3%
33"/5%

Leasehold improvements

Furniture, fixtures and equipment
Computer equipment

The assets’ residual values, depreciation methods and
useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
each reporting date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZE —=

2.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONT’D)

2.5

2.6

Property, plant and equipment (Cont’d)

The gain or loss arising on retirement or disposal is
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in
profit or loss.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other costs,
such as repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or
loss during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Leases

All leases (irrespective of they are operating leases or
finance leases) are required to be capitalised in the
statement of financial position as right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities, but accounting policy choices
exist for an entity to choose not to capitalise (i) leases
which are short-term leases and/or (i) leases for which
the underlying asset is of low-value. The Group has
elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities for low-value assets and leases for which at
the commencement date have a lease term less than
12 months. The lease payments associated with those
leases have been expensed on straight-line basis over the
lease term.

Right-of-use assets

The right-of-use asset should be recognised at cost and
would comprise: (i) the amount of the initial measurement
of the lease liability (see below for the accounting policy
to account for lease liability); (i) any lease payments made
at or before the commencement date, less any lease
incentives received; (iii) any initial direct costs incurred
by the lessee and (iv) an estimate of costs to be incurred
by the lessee in dismantling and removing the underlying
asset to the condition required by the terms and
conditions of the lease. The Group measures the right-of
use assets applying a cost model. Under the cost model,
the Group measures the right-to-use asset at cost, less
any accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses,
and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liability.

2.

“HFE+ZA=t+—HLEFE

2.5

2.6

2024 i FEIBEBRERAERAR

SRR EE (8)

WFE BERZE(E

WEIHEEEZ Wk BEE RN
iﬁﬁ?%fklﬁiﬁiléfﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁf'52§%i%
E - WRNB R R

EEHEZIAR B M RKEBENR *ﬁ
ﬁE ILAZ'XE.HT Iﬁﬁ)ﬂi$ab 3!5
i‘ﬁln‘l’iﬁgﬂ\ HE A AEERE

BAERSBLEE (WER) - A
HME A (g REE) EREL L
BRI AR B P R

HE

FEME (TmAREHELRENR
) BRMBARRARERCRERE
BERHERE HEBEASK
REZ JEETHOBEHEED
fﬂ?—i&/i (i) A EESEEENE
EETENM - AKREDEETHE
EEEENARRARBHEEHRIR
12EANEERREAEEEREE
BE -EZEHERBENEENRD
REEMALEREH -

EHAREEE

EREEERRKAERIL AL ()
HERBENVFAESR (R TIXA
BHEAERBEARNSEER) (R
FA %A B HI sk 2 B VE L A E R A E 5R0A
REMDBBRNEERS (m)%@ﬂ)\
EENERNFEREAN - R (v) &Ml
ARBHEEGRRREERENERT
e R E ERBEEMN G
PR o AN SR [ e R AN R S AT B A
REE - REKAEN  NEEIRK
AR R & MAEDBER B
EFAREEE YN HEERENER
EXFEFELHAE -

133
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 2.

POLICIES (CONT’D)
2.6 Leases (Cont’d)

SRR EE (8)
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Right-of-use assets (Cont’d)

The Group also has leased a number of properties
under tenancy agreements which the Group exercises it
judgement and determines that it is a separate class of
asset apart from the leasehold land and buildings which
is held for own use. As a result, the right-of-use asset
arising from the properties under tenancy agreements are
carried at depreciated cost

Lease liability

The lease liability is recognised at the present value
of the lease payments that are not paid at the date of
commencement of the lease. The lease payments are
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if
that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot
be readily determined, the Group uses the Group’s
incremental borrowing rate.

The following payments for the right-to-use the underlying
asset during the lease term that are not paid at the
commencement date of the lease are considered to
be lease payments: (i) fixed payments less any lease
incentives receivable: (i) variable lease payments that
depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using
the index or rate as at commencement date; (i) amounts
expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value
guarantees; (iv) the exercise price of a purchase option
if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that option
and (v) payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if
the lease term reflects the lessee exercising an option to
terminate the lease.

Subsequent to the commencement date, the Group
measures the lease liability by: (i) increasing the carrying
amount to reflect interest on the lease liability; (i) reducing
the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made;
and (i) remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any
reassessment or lease modifications, e.g., a change
in future lease payments arising from change in an
index or rate, a change in the lease term, a change in
the in substance fixed lease payments or a change in
assessment to purchase the underlying asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZE —=

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONT’D)
2.7 Financial instruments

2.7.1 Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable
without a significant financing component) is initially
measured at fair value plus, transaction costs that
are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.

A trade receivable without a significant financing
component is initially measured at the transaction
price.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade date, that is,
the date that the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the
market place.

2.7.2 Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected
credit losses (“ECLs”) on trade receivables and
other financial assets measured at amortised cost.
The ECLs are measured on either of the following
bases: (1) 12 months ECLs: these are the ECLs
that result from possible default events within the
12 months after the reporting date; and (2) lifetime
ECLs: these are ECLs that result from all possible
default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument. The maximum period considered when
estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual period
over which the Group is exposed to credit risk.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to
the Group in accordance with the contract and all
the cash flows that the Group expects to receive.
The shortfall is then discounted at an approximation
to the assets’ original effective interest rate.
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 2.

POLICIES (CONT’D)

2.7 Financial instruments (Cont’d)

SRR EE (8)
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2.7.2 Impairment loss on financial assets (Cont’d)

The Group has elected to measure loss allowances
for trade receivables using HKFRS 9 simplified
approach and has calculated ECLs based on
lifetime ECLs. The Group has established a
provision matrix that is based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and
the economic environment.

When determining whether the credit risk of a
financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating ECLs, the Group
considers reasonable and supportable information
that is relevant and available without undue cost or
effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative
information analysis, based on the Group’s historical
experience and informed credit assessment and
including forward-looking information.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a
financial asset has increased significantly if it is due
more than 30 days. The Group considers a financial
asset to be credit impaired or default when: the
borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to
the Group in full, without recourse by the Group to
actions such as realising security (if any is held).

Interest income on credit-impaired financial assets
is calculated based on the amortised cost (i.e. the
gross carrying amount less loss allowance) of the
financial asset. For non credit-impaired financial
assets interest income is calculated based on the
gross carrying amount.

Financial assets are written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery, such as a
debtor failing to engage in a repayment plan with
the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR e TSR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZE —=

2.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONT’D)

2.7 Financial instruments (Cont’d)

2.7.3 Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities,
depending on the purpose for which the liabilities
were incurred. Financial liabilities at amortised costs
are initially measured at fair value, net of directly
attributable costs incurred.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including trade
and other payables and shareholders’ loans are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest method. The related interest
expense is recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through
the amortisation process.

2.7.4 Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
asset or financial liability and of allocating interest
income or interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts or
payments through the expected life of the financial
asset or liability, or where appropriate, a shorter
period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZ —_Z_WF+_A=+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 2. BERESTHEME(E)
POLICIES (CONT’D)
2.7 Financial instruments (Cont’d) 27 LT A (&)

2.7.5 Derecognition 2.7.5 AR I TEER

The Group derecognises a financial asset when
the contractual rights to the future cash flows in
relation to the financial asset expire or when the
financial asset has been transferred and the transfer
meets the criteria for derecognition in accordance
with HKFRS 9. When the contractual terms of
financial assets are modified, the Group assesses
whether the modification is substantial, which
may result in the derecognition of the financial
asset. A modification is considered substantial if
the modified terms (including, but not limited to,
the timing, nature, and amount of the contractual
cash flows) differ significantly from those of the
original asset. If the modification is substantial, the
Group derecognises the existing financial asset and
recognises a new financial asset, initially measured
at fair value. The difference between the carrying
amount of the existing financial asset and the new
financial asset is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

Where the Group issues its own equity instruments
to a creditor to settle a financial liability in whole
or in part as a result of renegotiating the terms
of that liability, the equity instruments issued are
the consideration paid and are recognised initially
and measured at their fair value on the date the
financial liability or part thereof is extinguished. If the
fair value of the equity instruments issued cannot
be reliably measured, the equity instruments are
measured to reflect the fair value of the financial
liability extinguished. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability or part
thereof extinguished and the consideration paid is
recognised in profit or loss for the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZE —=

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONT’D)

2.8

2.9

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average method. In the case of work in progress and
finished goods, cost also comprises direct materials,
direct labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated cost of
completion and applicable selling expenses.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated
statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
include cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial
institutions, with original maturities of three months or less
that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown
within bank borrowings in current liabilities in the balance
sheet.

2.10Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods or services, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue excludes
value added tax or other sales taxes and is after
deduction of any trade discounts.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series
of distinct goods or services that are substantially the
same.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZE —=

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONT’D)

2.10Revenue recognition (Cont’d)

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws that
apply to the contract, control of the goods or service may
be transferred over time or at a point in time. Control of
the goods or service is transferred over time if the Group’s
performance

° provides all of the benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer;

° creates or enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

° does not create an asset with an alternative use to
the Group and the Group has an enforceable right
to payment for performance completed to date.

If control of the goods or services transfers over time,
revenue is recognised over the period of the contract by
reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of that performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is
recognised at a point in time when the customer obtains
control of the goods or service.

A contract liabilities is the obligation to transfer goods or
services to a customer for which the Group has received
a consideration (or an amount of consideration that is
due) from the customer.

The principal activities of the Group include the provision
of aesthetic medical and beauty services and medical
services. Revenue is primarily derived from packages
treatment services and stand-alone treatment services.

The transaction price for customer contracts is based on
fixed consideration specified in the contract. The Group’s
contracts normally do not contain variable consideration,
significant financing components, or other forms of
contingent pricing.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZE —=

2.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONT’D)

2. 10Revenue recognition (Cont’d)

The Group incurs incremental costs in obtaining certain
customer contracts. As the related services are expected
to be fully rendered within one year, the Group applies
the practical expedient permitted under HKFRS 15 and
recognises such costs as an expense when incurred.

(a

Package treatment services

The Group offers packages treatment services
comprising multiple treatment sessions for aesthetic
medical and beauty services and medical services.
These packages may contain a single or multiple
performance obligations depending on the nature of
the services promised.

For contracts containing multiple performance
obligations, the Group allocates the transaction
price to each distinct obligation based on their
relative stand-alone selling prices determined at
contract inception.

Revenue from package treatment services
is recognised over time, as the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits
of the services provided. The Group uses the output
method to measure progress toward complete
satisfaction of each performance obligation as the
services are rendered. This method recognises
revenue based on the value of the goods or services
transferred to the customer to date relative to the
remaining goods or services promised under the
contract.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZE —=

2.

142

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONT’D)

2.10Revenue recognition (Cont’d)

(a)

(b)

Package treatment services (Cont’d)

Payments received in advance are recorded as
contract liabilities. These amounts are recognised
as revenue when the corresponding services are
delivered. The Group’s contract liabilities are non-
refundable and normally has one year expiry period.
The expected breakage, representing the portion
of services that are not expected to be redeemed,
is estimated based on historical utilisation trends
and recognised as revenue in proportion to the
actual pattern of services consumed by customers.
Any remaining balance in contract liabilities is fully
recognised as revenue upon the expiry of the
contractual service period.

Stand-alone treatment services

Revenue from the provision of stand-alone
treatment services is recognised at a point in time,
when the service is rendered, as control of the
service transfers to the customer upon completion.

2.11Other income

Interest income

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference
to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life
of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount
on initial recognition.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZ —Z_WF+_A=+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 2. ST HEME (8)
POLICIES (CONT’D)
2.12Contract assets and liabilities DI2EHEEREBE
A contract asset represents the Group’s right to HNEEEASERHRRAEERE

consideration in exchange for services that the Group has
transferred to a customer that is not yet unconditional.
In contrast, a receivable represents the Group’s
unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only the passage
of time is required before payment of that consideration is
due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is
due) from the customer.

Contract asset is recognised when the Group completes
the delivery under such sales contracts but yet certified
by customers. Any amount previously recognised as
a contract asset is reclassified to trade receivables
at the point at which it is invoiced to the customer. If
the considerations (including advances received from
customers) exceeds the revenue recognised to date
under the output method then the Group recognises a
contract liability for the difference.

2.13Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and the Group will comply with all
attached conditions. Government grants relating to costs
are deferred and recognised in profit or loss over the
period necessary to match them with the costs that they
are intended to compensate. Government grants relating
to the purchase of property, plant and equipment are
included in non-current liabilities as deferred government
grants and are recognised in profit or loss on a straight
line basis over the expected lives of the related assets.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZE —=

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONT’D)

2. 14 Impairment of non-financial assets

Plant and equipment and right of use assets, are subject
to impairment testing.

Non-financial assets are tested for impairment whenever
there are indications that the asset’s carrying amount may
not be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately for the amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. Recoverable
amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessment of
time value of money and the risk specific to the asset.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where an
asset does not generate cash inflows largely independent
from those from other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of assets that generate
cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-generating
unit). As a result, some assets are tested individually for
impairment and some are tested at cash-generating unit
level.

Impairment losses recognised for cash-generating units,
are credited initially to the carrying amount of goodwill.
Any remaining impairment loss is charged pro rata to
the other assets in the cash generating unit, except that
the carrying value of an asset will not be reduced below
its individual fair value less cost to sell, or value in use, if
determinable.

Impairment loss is reversed if there has been a favourable
change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s
recoverable amount and only to the extent that the asset’s
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortisation, if no impairment loss has been recognised.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZ —Z_WF+_A=+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONT’D)

2. 15 Employee benefits

(i)  Retirement benefits

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits
scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for those
employees who are eligible to participate in the
MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are
charged to profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered
fund. The Group’s employer’s contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme.

(i)  Short-term employee benefits

Employee entitlements to annual leave are

recognised when they accrue to employees. A

provision is made for the estimated liability for

annual leave as a result of services rendered by

employees up to the reporting date.

Non-accumulating compensated absences such as
sick leave and maternity leave are not recognised
until the time of leave.

2. 16 Share-based payments

Where share options are awarded to employees and
others providing similar services, the fair value of the
options at the date of grant is recognised in profit or loss
over the vesting period with a corresponding increase in
share-based payment reserve within equity. Non-market
vesting conditions are taken into account by adjusting the
number of equity instruments expected to vest at the end
of each reporting period so that, ultimately, the cumulative
amount recognised over the vesting period is based
on the number of options that eventually vest. Market
vesting conditions are factored into the fair value of the
options granted. As long as all other vesting conditions
are satisfied, a charge is made irrespective of whether the
market vesting conditions are satisfied. The cumulative
expense is not adjusted for failure to achieve a market
vesting condition.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZE —=

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONT’D)

2.16 Share-based payments (Cont’d)

All employee services received in exchange for the grant
of any share-based compensation are measured at fair
values. These are indirectly determined by reference to
the equity instruments awarded. The value is appraised
at the grant date and excludes the impact of any non-
market vesting conditions.

All share-based compensation is recognised as an
expense in profit or loss with a corresponding credit to
share-based payment reserve, net of deferred tax where
applicable. If vesting periods or other vesting conditions
apply, the expense is recognised over the vesting period,
based on the best available estimate of the number of
share options expected to vest. Non-market vesting
conditions are included in assumptions about the number
of options that are expected to become exercisable.
Estimates are subsequently revised, if there is any
indication that the number of share options expected to
vest differs from previous estimates. No adjustment to
expense recognised in prior periods is made if fewer share
options ultimately are exercised than originally vested.

Where the terms and conditions of options are modified
before they vest, the increase in fair value of the options,
measured immediately before and after the modification,
is also recognised in profit or loss over the remaining
vesting period.

Where equity instruments are granted to persons other
than employees and others providing similar services,
the fair value of goods or services received is recognised
in profit or loss unless the goods or services qualify for
recognition as assets. A corresponding increase in equity
is recognised. For cash-settled share based payments,
a liability is recognised at the fair value of the goods or
services received.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZ —Z_WF+_A=+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONT’D)

2.16 Share-based payments (Cont’d)

At the time when the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in share-based payment
reserve will be transferred to share premium. When
the vested share options are lapsed, forfeited or still
not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share-based payment reserve will be
transferred to accumulated losses.

2.17Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of
the borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees
paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised
as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is
probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn
down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw-
down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it
is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn
down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity
services and amortised over the period of the facility to
which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the statement of financial
position when the obligation specified in the contract
is discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference
between the carrying amount of a financial liability that
has been extinguished or transferred to another party and
the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets
transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or
loss as finance costs.

Where the terms of a financial liability are renegotiated
and the entity issues equity instruments to a creditor to
extinguish all or part of the liability (debt for equity swap),
a gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss, which is
measured as the difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability and the fair value of the equity
instruments issued.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement
of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting
period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZE —=

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONT’D)

2.18Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production
of a qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of
time that is required to complete and prepare the asset
for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in
which they are incurred.

2.19Current and deferred income tax

Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities comprise
those obligations to, or claims from, tax authorities relating
to the current or prior reporting period, that are unpaid
at the reporting date. They are calculated according to
the tax rates and tax laws applicable to the fiscal periods
to which they relate, based on the taxable profit for the
year. All changes to current tax assets or liabilities are
recognised as a component of tax expense in profit or
loss.

Deferred tax is calculated using the liability method on
temporary differences at the reporting date between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised for all
deductible temporary differences, tax losses available to
be carried forward as well as other unused tax credits, to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profit, including
existing taxable temporary differences, will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences,
unused tax losses and unused tax credits can be utilised.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZ —Z_WF+_A=+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (CONT’D)

SRR EE (8)

2.19Current and deferred income tax (Cont’d) 219 BRI R FEAFT {38 (&)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from
initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither
taxable nor accounting profit or loss.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
difference arising on investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of
the temporary differences and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period the liability
is settled or the asset realised, provided they are enacted
or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are recognised
in profit or loss, or in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity if they relate to items that are charged
or credited to other comprehensive income or directly in
equity.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are presented
in net if, and only if,

(@ The Group has the legally enforceable right to set
off the recognised amounts; and

(b) intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 2.

POLICIES (CONT’D)

2.19Current and deferred income tax (Cont’d)

The Group presents deferred tax assets and deferred tax

liabilities in net if, and only if:

(@ the entity has a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities; and

(b) the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same

taxation authority on either:

(i) the same taxable entity; or

(i)  different taxable entities which intend either to
settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net
basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to be settled

or recovered.

2.20Related parties
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(@ A person or a close member of that person’s family
is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of key management personnel of
the Group or the Company’s parent.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZE —=

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONT’D)

2.20Related parties (Cont’d)

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions apply:

U)

(Vi)

(vil)

(viil

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of the employees of the Group
or an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a) (i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of key
management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
Group’s parent.
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(vi)

(vii)
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 2.

POLICIES (CONT’D)
2.20Related parties (Cont’d)

SRR EE (8)

220N £+ (48)

152

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity
and include:

(i) that person’s children and spouse or domestic
partner;

(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic
partner; and

(iiy  dependents of that person or that person’s spouse
or domestic partner.

2.21 Provision and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, which it is
probable will result in an outflow of economic benefits that
can be reliably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
the existence of which will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3.

3.1 Financial risk factors
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The Group is exposed to financial risks through its use of
financial instruments in its ordinary course of operations
and in its investment activities. The financial risks include
market risk (including foreign exchange risk and cash flow
interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group
has a written risk management policy in place in relation
to credit risk associated with other receivables, if any.
The board of directors meets periodically to analyse and
formulate strategies to manage and monitor the Group’s
exposure to a variety of risks associated with financial
instruments which arise from the Group’s operating
and investing activities. Generally, the Group employs
conservative strategies regarding its risk management
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner. The risks associated with
these financial instruments and the policies on how these
risks are mitigated are described as follows:

(a) Market risk
(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group’s exposure to foreign exchange
risk is minimal as the group companies
usually hold most of their financial assets/
liabilities in their own functional currencies.
Currently the Group does not have foreign
currency hedging policy but the management
continuously monitors foreign exchange risk
exposure and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should the need
arise.

(i) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk primarily
arises from the Group’s bank deposits and
borrowings. Financial assets and liabilities at
variable rates and at fixed rates expose the
Group to cash flow interest rate risk and fair
value interest rate risk respectively. The Group
does not use financial derivatives to hedge
against the interest rate risk. The Group
monitors the interest rate risk exposure on a
continuous basis and adjusts the portfolio of
financial assets and liabilities when necessary.

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, the cash
flow interest rate risk and the fair value interest
rate risk are insignificant to the Group.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D) 3. HKRERER (&)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d) 3.1 HBRREEZE (&)
(b) Credit risk (b) EEREE
Credit risk arises if a customer or other counterparty WEFPHEMRZEF HEE
fails to meet its contractual obligations. The credit ETT,\ SRR BEERFE
risk of the Group mainly arises from cash at banks cAEBEEERREZ

and trade and other receivables.

Impairment of Financial Assets

The Group has three types of assets that are
subject to the ECL. model:

- Cash at banks;

- Trade receivables; and
= Other receivables.

() Cash at banks

The cash at banks of the Group are mainly
placed with state-owned financial institutions
and reputable banks. Therefore, the ECL
rate of cash at banks is assessed to be
immaterial and no provision was made as at
31 December 2024 and 2023.

(i) Trade receivables

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, 37%
and 26% of the total trade receivables
were concentrated in the Group’s largest
debtor and 65% and 79% of the total trade
receivables were concentrated in the Group’s
top five largest debtors.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZE —=

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)

(b) Credit risk (Cont’d)

(i)

Trade receivables (Cont’d)

Trade receivables mainly represent
receivables from the retail customers. The
Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of
each customer. The Group has applied the
simplified approach in HKFRS 9 to measure
the loss allowance for trade receivables
on an individual basis. The management
assessed the ECL based on historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, historical settlement
records, the general economic conditions,
the existing market conditions and forward-
looking information.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the
directors have delegated a team responsible
for monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. Individual credit evaluations are
performed on all customers requiring credit
over a certain amount. These evaluations
focus on the customer’s past history of
making payments when due and current ability
to pay, and take into account information
specific to the customer as well as pertaining
to the economic environment in which the
customer operates. Normally, the Group
does not obtain collateral from customers. In
addition, the Group measures lifetime ECL on
trade receivables on an individual basis at the
end of the reporting period.

In view of the business nature, management
of the Group considers that the credit risks
of trade receivables are insignificant after
considering the credit quality of the customers
and there is no history of default in settlement
by them. In the opinion of the management of
the Group, the risk of default by the customers
is not significant and the Group assessed that
the ECL on these balances are insignificant
thus no impairment loss was recognised for
the year ended 31 December 2024 and 2023.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZE —=

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)

(b) Credit risk (Cont’d)

(ii)

156 China Regenerative Medicine International Limited Annual Report 2024

Other receivables

Other receivables include deposits and
other receivables. In order to minimise the
credit risk, the Group has a credit policy for
assessing the impairment on other receivables
and the exposures to these credit risks
are monitored on an ongoing basis. The
Group has applied the general approach in
accordance with HKFRS 9 to measure the
loss allowance for other receivables. The
Group assessed the ECL based on estimation
about risk of default and expected loss rates,
and judgment was used in making these
assumptions and selecting the inputs to the
impairment calculation, including the credit
loss experience, historical settlement records,
internal credit ratings, financial positions,
relationships with debtors and other factors
that impacted their ability of repayment.
The management also took into account
of existing market conditions and forward-
looking information.

° Other receivables that are not credit-
impaired on initial recognition are
classified in “Stage 1” and have their
credit risk continuously monitored by
the Group. The ECLs is measured on
12-month basis.

° If a significant increase in credit risk
(specifically, when the debtor is more
than 30 days past due on its contractual
payments) since initial recognition
is identified, the financial instrument
is moved to “Stage 2” but is not yet
deemed to be credit-impaired. The
ECLs loss is measured on lifetime basis.
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3.

“HFE+ZA=t+—HLEFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D) 3. M¥EMRER (&)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d) 1 B E fe A& (4E)
(b) Credit risk (Cont’d) (b) =EEREE(E)
(i) Other receivables (Contd) (i)  E M ENR KA ()
If the financial instrument is credit- EemIALRER
impaired (specifically, when there is BB (FRIZEZFE
evidence indicating the debtor is in BREBALREE
severe financial difficulty or it is probable PR REE AR
that the debtor will enter bankruptcy Al REIR A S F T HLAMD
or other financial reorganisation), the MBER)  Blze
financial instrument is then moved to BMTAKEATE=
“Stage 3”. The ECLs is measured on BEER] - FBHEEE
lifetime basis. BIEEHEESE -
The receivables relating to customers with B3 2 AN B 7% IR B ok ¥ Uk
known financial difficulties or significant doubt [E] & U SR I8 B E K 5t [ Y
on collection of receivables are assessed P E MR ERRIE S
individually for provision for impairment & B 5 & - DA FT 52 R (B 5
allowance. As at 31 December 2024, the HB-RZE_WFE+=A

balances of provision for loss allowance for
other receivables as follows:

=+—RH - EMEKRFAE

MBBRREGSHRDT

Other
receivables
B FE U SR8
HK$’000
T T
As at 1 January 2023 R=-ZB-=%—-HF—H 25,402
Increase in the allowance recognised in ~ FRR LR A 1Bk R 2 BEIE N
consolidated statement of profit or loss
during the year 83,001
Write off i 88 (15,438)
As at 31 December 2023 and RZB-=F+=-A=+—HK
1 January 2024 —E-NmFE—-A—H 92,965
Net changes arising from modification of & 24t L fth Ji& U 5% T8 Fft 22 AE 1Y
other receivables ) F (43,830)
Decrease in the allowance recognised in 4 W RIFEBRRERZ
consolidated statement of profit or loss B
during the year (12,290)
As at 31 December 2024 R=ZB-MFE+=A=+—H 36,845
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’q)
(b) Credit risk (Cont’d)

(i)

Other receivables (Cont’d)

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, no other
receivables were credit-impaired.

As at 31 December 2024, certain other
receivables with the gross carrying amount
of approximately HK$123,957,000 (2023:
approximately HK$236,230,000) were
assessed individually and measured at lifetime
ECL since the management considers there
is a significant increase in credit risk on these
balances since initial recognition. The gross
carrying amount of such other receivables
decreased as at 31 December 2024 was
partially due to the settlement through the
assignments of the contract liabilities during
the year ended 31 December 2024 (details
regarding the assignments of the contract
liabilities set out in Note 20). Hence, the Group
has recognised the reversal of impairment
charge of approximately HK$12,317,000
during the year ended 31 December 2024
(2023: impairment charge of approximately
HK$83,001,000).

The remaining other receivables are separately
assessed. Management considers that the
credit risk has not increased significantly
since initial recognition with reference to the
counterparty historical default rate, adjusted
by current and forward-looking information
are based on the 12-month ECL for the year
ended 31 December 2024 and 2023, hence,
the impairment charge on these receivables
of approximately HK$27,000 and HKS$NIil
are recognised during the year ended 31
December 2024 and 2023, respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2024,
the Group considered the other receivables
of approximately HK$NIil (2023: approximately
HK$15,438,000), which were fully impaired in
the previous years, were not recoverable and
had written off the entire amounts.
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3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)

(c)

(d)

Fair value

The directors of the Company consider the fair
values of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities
recorded at amortised cost are not materially
different from their carrying amounts because of the
immediate or short-term maturity of these financial
instruments.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance
between continuity of funding and flexibility through
the use of lease liabilities and shareholders’ loans.

The following table details the remaining contractual
maturities at each of the reporting dates of the
Group’s non-derivative financial liabilities, which
are based on contractual undiscounted cash
flows (including interest payment computed using
contractual rates or, if floating, based on current

“HFE+ZA=t+—HLEFE

3. M¥EMRER (&)
1 BI%Efe A% ()

(c) L¥FE
ARABEEREBERZSE S/
TEBSsxREERNEH -
WMAEERBHEANAARD S
MEERBEZATEEERE

HEZEZRILTERXN -

(d) FEBEZEMRE

AKEEMABZ BERAEE
,\1,\&&%1? 1%?—#%? i
BEM R EE 2 B

TRHANAKEFRITEEREA
BEREHREARZFBHAOH -
ZRDIBREBTORBRASR
B (BREFTONERNERTEE -
RERSAHZEHMNERGE
ZRBX ) RAKE A AN

rates at the reporting date) and the earliest date the 2 ExF AERS
Group may be required to pay:
Repayable in
more than Total
Repayable 1year  contractual
within 1 year but less than undiscounted Carrying
or on demand 5years cash flow amount
MERSE  BBI1FE  THORER
EZREE JLR5FEHEE RENELE REE
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
TERT THET TET THET
As at 31 December 2024 R=B-mE+=A=+-H
Trade payables B I ENFE 3,841 - 3,841 3,841
Accruals and other payables BB R REMENTE
(excluding accrued employee (T EEEEERT)
benefits) 8,823 6,023 14,846 14,846
Shareholders’ loans REI=S 3,629 48,221 51,850 49,102
Lease liabilities HEBR 4,664 - 4,664 4,588
20,957 54,244 75,201 72,377

2024 i FEIBEBRERAERAR 159



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

/\\/T\

3.

160

BPBHRRNTE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZE —=

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)

(d) Liquidity risk (Cont’d)

“HFE+ZA=t+—HLEE

s E e E R (&)
3.1 B RE % (E)

(d) HEELEE(E)

° To safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, so that it continues to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders;

° To support the Group’s stability and growth; and

° To provide capital for the purpose of strengthening
the Group’s risk management capability.

The Group’s overall strategy remained unchanged from
that of the prior year. The Group actively and regularly
reviews and manages its capital structure to ensure
optimal capital structure and shareholder returns, taking
into consideration the future capital requirements of the
Group and capital efficiency, prevailing and projected
profitability, projected operating cash flows, projected
capital expenditures and projected strategic investment
opportunities. The Group has not adopted any formal
dividend policy.

Management regards total equity as capital, for capital
management purpose.

Repayable in
more than Total
Repayable 1 year contractual
within 1 year ~ but less than  undiscounted Carrying
or on demand 5 years cash flow amount
MERE BBIFE  FTAORER
EEREERE JIROFEE Hen=gs FEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL THL T FAT
As at 31 December 2023 RZB-=F+-A=+-H
Trade payables BHERTE 2,473 - 2,473 2,473
Accruals and other payables BT & A R E R A
(excluding accrued employee (T EfEEHEERF)
benefits) 7,921 - 7,921 7,921
Shareholders’ loans REER 13,629 22,874 36,503 35,208
Lease liabilities HEARE 10,880 4,664 15,544 14,983
34,903 27,638 62,441 60,585
3.2 Capital risk management 32 EXREEELE
The Group’s objectives when managing capital are: AEEEBEARAZERER:

. REAEHFELCEIEN
18 1 5 10 3 75 2K B 35 R L A
R % B AR 26

HBAKEZRBERER K
REESANMBAEEZ RER

BHERET] ©

71 4 8L 1) 2 5 S B 5 4 AR 3 e
B AEEBGEEARTREELE

AERE HERAGBHEENEERE
# E1iﬂxﬁlil#& I & AN & B K 2R
BeFTENEAKRE IREERENE
ﬂ%iﬁ CTEAIKER SRS FARE
AT RTBAI R ERER S - K&
] % R B AN AT ] IE AR BUBR o

EEERERRSRERNEEZEAR -

China Regenerative Medicine International Limited Annual Report 2024



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

/\\/T\

BRI TE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZE —=

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are addressed below.

@)

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for property, plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets at the end of the reporting period. These
non-financial assets are tested for impairment when
there are indicators that the carrying amounts may not
be recoverable. For the purposes of impairment testing,
assets are allocated to its respective cash generating
units (“CGUs”). The recoverable amounts of CGUs have
been determined based on value in use calculations.
These calculations require the use of estimates about
future cash flows and discount rates. In the process of
estimating expected future cash flows, management
makes assumptions about future revenues and
profits. These assumptions relate to future events and
circumstances. Determining the appropriate discount rate
involves estimating the appropriate adjustment for market
risk and for asset specific risk factors. The actual results
may vary and may cause a material adjustment to the
carrying amount of non-financial assets within the next
financial year.

4.

2024 i FEIBEBRERAERAR

“HFE+ZA=t+—HLEFE

BRI T K (5T

AEBEREBELRLEMAR  BRFY
ERBEESENRKSHNEALY
SELE KA B ETTRIE

7RG B R R AR A R R AR o FTEERE
Satfhrt (RBER) ELREAHERER
—H-ABWSIBRTEMBREFELHEE
RBEREEELREAHENE KRR
at BB RmAT o

(@) FZAMEERBE
A BRI E R T Y - B R

BEAREREEERST ﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁ%
ERR - ZEFHREMEEARN TR

%ﬁ@ﬂ%ﬁ%%@%%%%ﬁﬁﬁ
BEAR RREARATES EES
Auﬁmﬁigiﬁuﬁﬁigi

4D°ﬁi?$ﬁum7@%iﬁ
DIRBEREEASEETE - % F:1E
EFEAEHARRESRERIFTIRE E}ﬂﬁ
e EHETTEMARREREN AR
B B IR R R M E NOs AR R
R ZEMRBERREGRIEREHA -
ETEENTREY KA ET SR
&&é?%iﬂ@l%ﬁﬁ@%ﬁ%°
BERERTIEEES WA B

—%ﬁi&ﬁ#&ﬂﬁé%%ﬁ@
HIREANFE -

161



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

/\\/T\

BPBHRRNTE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZE —=

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (CONT’D)

162

©)

Provision for expected credit losses of other
receivables

The provision of ECLs is sensitive to changes in
circumstances and of forecast general economic
conditions. If the financial condition of the customers or
the forecast economic conditions were to deteriorate,
actual loss allowance would be higher than estimated.
The Group’s management determines the impairment
of other receivables on a regular basis. Management
reassesses the impairment of other receivables at the
reporting date.

For other receivables relating to accounts that are long
overdue with significant amounts, known insolvencies or
non-response to collection activities, they are assessed
individually for impairment allowance. The Group
assessed the ECL based on estimation about risk of
default and expected loss rates, and judgment was used
in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs
to the impairment calculation, including the credit loss
experience, historical settlement records, internal credit
ratings, financial positions, relationships with debtors and
other factors that impacted their ability of repayment. The
management also took into account of existing market
conditions and forward-looking information.

4.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

sre SRR T

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZ —Z_WF+_A=+—HILFE

5. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME AND LOSS 5.
(a) Revenue @)

The Group’s revenue represents the services provided

K 7=

Wz R AW A K B 15

AEEMKRZEFANERERS 5

during the years, analysed as follows: o
2024 2023
—ENE T =F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FExT FHET
Revenue from: WEER :
Provision of aesthetic medical and RIEEBEEER
beauty services EARS 82,004 57,834
Provision of medical services R EERS 5,263 8,308
Others (Note) Hph (BaE) 3,350 3,345
90,617 69,487
2024 2023
—ENE —T=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Revenue recognised: SRR :
At a point in time A [ 24 23,050 7,399
Over time A 1 B 67,567 62,088
90,617 69,487
Note: B 5T -

Others mainly represent licensing income from the provision of
the administrative support, office supplies and access to space
and facilities services to an independent medical practitioner who
provides aesthetic medical and beauty services.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR PITE R

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZ —_Z_WF+_A=+—HILFE

5. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME AND LOSS 5 WaEkEMBARERE (&)

(CONT'D)
(@) Revenue (Cont’d) (@ Was (&)
Transaction price allocated to the remaining PHEEEFEHNTGBHNETHZS
performance obligation for contracts with B
customers
The transaction price allocated to the remaining R-_ZT = E FRZFEZ=F+=AH
performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially _-1— B DEZEH%T CREZKK
unsatisfied) as at 31 December 2024 and 2023 and the DAREEN) BOEEZRZER
expected timing of recognising revenue are as follows: &ﬁﬁ AU R FTEET R 20
2024 2023
—E_mF —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FE 7T
Within one year —FR 8,268 21,609
More than one year but not more BiR—FEIRME
than two years 3,026 59,481
More than two years MF DA _E - -
In the opinion of the directors, the actual outcome may be EEZRA K REEMTRE &
different from the amounts estimated and will be subject BRERAIGEEMATSEIR BRT
to the customers’ actual utilisation pattern and prevailing EFMERFERAEREN URRITER
laws and regulations, taking into account of specific KRBT E ©

market conditions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
/\\/T\ = E]f%% E%MT IIIE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZ —Z_WF+_A=+—HILFE

5. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME AND LOSS 5. UK EAk A K &8 ()
(CONT'D)

(b) Other income and other loss b) Bt AREMER
An analysis of other income and other loss recognised is BREREMWAREMEBELITAOT
as follows:
2024 2023
—E-WE —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FHTT
Bank interest income SRITH B WA 5 12
Government grant income (Note i) BRAT il Bh A (BT =) 36 38
Interest accretion on other receivables HL & WO IE B R B 18 A0 17,577 =
Loss on modification of other receivables 1R H th JE W 5 IB Y
(Note 16(0)) &8 (FI5E16(0)) (17,276) -
Others (Note ii) At (B 5E i) 116 2,343
458 2,393
Notes: B 5T -
()  There are no unfulfiled conditions and other contingencies () WCERGZ B A B A A ] R B AT
attached to the receipts of this subsidly. HREMSKAEIE -
(i)  Others mainly comprise income from miscellaneous (i) H@EE@%XE%EW}KE’JW)\
income (2023: written-off of a long aged payables and T =F  MERRREMNK
miscellaneous income). REEEWA) ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

N

sra SRR T

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZ —_Z_WF+_A=+—HILFE

166

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares segment
information based on the regular internal financial information
reported to the executive director, being the Chief Operating
Decision Maker (“CODM”) of the Group, for his decisions about
resources allocation to the Group’s business components
and for his review of the performance of those components.
The business components in the internal financial information
reported to the executive director are determined based on the
Group’s major product and service lines.

The Group has identified the following operating and reportable
segments:

= Aesthetic medical and beauty services, including the
provision of medical beauty products and services

- Medical services, including the provision of medical
products and services

The measurement policies the Group uses for reporting
segment results under HKFRS 8 are the same as those used in
its financial statements prepared under HKFRSs, except that:

- certain finance costs
- income tax

- corporate income and expenses which are not directly
attributable to the business activities of any operating
segment, including bank interest income, interest
expenses on shareholders’ loans, interest on lease
liabilities and depreciation of right-of-use assets of the
leased properties and other income/expenses

are not included in arriving at the operating results of the
operating segments.

2 AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
/\\/T\ = E]f%% &%MT IIIE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZ —Z_WF+_A=+—HILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONT’D) 6. DEER (&)
Segment revenue and results 7 EB UG 2m R FEAE
Aesthetic
medical and
beauty Medical
services services Total
EERERERRE BERE h
Year ended 31 December 2024 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BE-_B-_ME+t-A=1+-RALEE T T THEL
External sales and revenue HMEE RIMA 85,354 5,263 90,617
Segment profit/(oss) AEEH/ (58) 41,154 (3471) 37,683
Unallocated corporate income RAEEERA 120
Employee benefit expenses EERMFX (4,518)
Depreciation of right-of-Use assets FREAENE (9,420)
Unallocated corporate expense RAEERY (5,003)
Finance costs HEER (1,110)
Profit before income tax BREGE AR 17,752
Material costs PR (9,673) (236) (9,909)
Service fees included in cost of sales STABHERANREER (20,986) (2,068) (23,054)
Employee benefit expenses EERFIRX (9,395) (2,664) (12,059)
Interest accretion on other receivables Hth AR F S 50 17,577 - 17,577
Loss on modification of other receivables  {£2] Lt B ZIEH B 1B (17,276) - (17,276)
Reversal of expected credit loss on Bt el IR T

other receivables REBEED 12,290 - 12,290
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZE —=
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“HFE+ZA=t+—HLEE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONT’D) 6. DEER ()
Segment revenue and results (Cont’d) T am R F4E (E
Aesthetic
medical and
beauty Medical
services services Total
BEELEARE BERE Fh
Year ended 31 December 2023 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BE-F-=f+-A=+-RILEE T T T
External sales and revenue HMAE RIA 61,179 8,308 69,487
Segment losses AEER (87,733 (2,633) (90,366)
Unallocated corporate income RAEEERA 2,355
Employee benefit expenses EERMHES (4211)
Depreciation of right-of-Use assets FREAENE (8.873)
Unallocated corporate expense KA OERY (5,680)
Finance costs HEER (864)
Loss before income tax BREEHAIEE (107,699)
Material costs PRBR (6,204) (398) (6,602)
Senvice fees included in cost of sales STABHERRNREER (40,886) (2,576) (43462)
Employee benefit expenses EERFIRXZ (8,901) (2,818 (11,719
Provision for expected credit loss on Bt el IRR
other receivables REBBERE (83,001) - (83,001)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR e TSR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZ —Z_WF+_A=+—HILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONT’D) 6. DEPER (&)
2024 2023
—E-UE —E=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT
Assets fé B
Reportable segment assets — aesthetic BATERDHEE—FXE2BER
medical and beauty services EARS 100,719 160,489
Reportable segment assets — medical BT EMDEEE—BERE
services 2,010 3,694
Cash and bank balances H&e RiRTT 22,702 3,334
Other corporate assets HihEERE 10,278 18,380
Group assets EBEE 135,709 185,897
Liabilities EF
Reportable segment liabilities — aesthetic BATERDHEABE-FE2BER
medical and beauty services EARNRE 35,504 106,509
Reportable segment liabilities — medical BATE2WmoEBE—BERS
services 10,236 8,434
Shareholders’ loans PRERE 49,102 35,208
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIAEE 147 147
Lease liabilities HEBE 4,588 12,944
Other corporate liabilities HEMEEE 10,935 10,862
Group liabilities SEAE 110,512 174,104
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR PITE R

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZ —_Z_WF+_A=+—HILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONT’D) 6. DEHER (&)
The geographical location of revenue from customers is based %)5 W 2 BT 7 3t B D 1R % Fﬁhf 2 PR 5k
on the location at which the services were provided or the RETEMmZHEE D - FEIIERBEE
goods delivered. The geographical location of the specified &%,ﬁ\ﬁﬂfﬁ'ﬂﬁl RIE) 2B TR E EER
non-current assets other than other receivables is based on the FRiEH Bl 5

physical location of the assets.

Revenue from customers Non-current assets
REEF W= FRBEE
2024 2023 2024 2023
—ECNE —E-=F ZE_NE —ZT-=4F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T FET T

Hong Kong BB 89,929 68,327 6,958 17,277
The PRC M 688 1,160 28 41
90,617 69,487 6,986 17,318

2024 2023

—EC-NE —T =4
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET

Additions to non-current FRBEERE
assets

Hong Kong B 627 1,774

The PRC M - 43
627 1,817

For the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023, none of the BHE_Z_HNEFR-_ZT=_=F+=H

Group’s individual customer contributed more than 10% to the =T+ —HIEFE HBEAEEEARTFH

total revenue of the Group. REBEBW B RIEEB10% °
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7.

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZ —Z_WF+_A=+—HILFE
FINANCE COSTS 7. BBEAR
2024 2023
—E-ME =
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FET
Interest on lease liabilities HEBENE 485 979
Interest expenses on shareholders’ loans BREZRFBHRAL 647 =
1,132 979
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAX 8. BRATGBAIER (BR)
2024 2023
—E-ME =4
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHExT T
Auditor’s renumeration 2% 6 BN & 840 850
Depreciation of property, plant and Y BELEEITE
equipment 664 574
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FHREEENE 10,295 10,743
Advertising and marketing expenses, included J& % & 15 # & i &2
in selling and distribution expenses (EBEEHERDHRAZH) 1,041 1,364
Material costs IR ID PN 9,909 6,602
Service fees included in cost of sales SFAHE K AR RIS E A 23,054 43,462
Employee benefit expenses (including EERMMAZ (BEEEIE)
directors’ emoluments) (Note 9) (MI5E9) 16,577 15,990
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR PITE R

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZ —_Z_WF+_A=+—HILFE

9. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING 9. EERFBEX (BEESHL)
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)

2024 2023
—ENE ZE=F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FHT
Salaries, allowances, and benefits in kind e RN EYER 15,952 15,452
Contribution to defined contribution plans TE R FRET B K 625 538
16,577 15,990
(a) Benefits and interest of directors @ EFFEFREZR
(i)  Directors’ emoluments (i) EEHE
The remuneration of directors for each of the years BHE_Z_NWFER-_ZT_=F
ended 31 December 2024 and 2023 are set out + - A=+—HILEFEZEH
below: EEMeHIIBT :
Salaries,
allowances Defined
and other  contribution
Fees benefits scheme Total
E2oc -1
ik REMERN TEHENGE &t
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TER TER TER TER
For the year ended BZ-E-_mFE+ZA
31 December 2024 =t-BLEE
Executive directors BITEE
Mr. Wang Chuang IMEs 1,200 - - 1,200
Non-executive director FHTES
Mr. Tsang Ho Yin EEEE 76 - - 76
Independent non-executive B FHTES
directors
Ms. Huo Chunyu ERENL 120 - - 120
Mr. Leung Man Fai PYRBELAE 120 - - 120
Dr. Liu Ming 2R L 120 - - 120
1,636 - - 1,636
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZ —Z_WF+_A=+—HILFE

9. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING 9. EERFBEX (BEESEHL)
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS) (CONT’D) &)
(a) Benefits and interest of directors (Cont’d) @ EEFEFRED (&)
(i)  Directors’ emoluments (Cont’d) () EEHz (&)
Salaries,
allowances Defined
and other contribution
Fees benefits scheme Total
He 2
e REMEH FEERGE A&t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT TEL AT FEL
For the year ended BZ-E-_=%#+ZH
31 December 2023 =t-HLEEE
Executive directors BTEE
Mr. Wang Chuang TREEE 200 1,246 15 1,461
Non-executive director 3F$M“I§$
Mr. Tsang Ho Yin BRBLAE 120 - - 120
Independent non-executive B F#HTES
directors
Ms. Huo Chunyu ERENL 120 - - 120
Mr. Leung Man Fai PYRBELAE 120 - - 120
Dr. Liu Ming Z\EL 120 - - 120
680 1,246 15 1,941

The remunerations shown above represent
remunerations received from the Company and
subsidiaries of the Company by these directors in
their capacity as employees to the Company and
no directors waived any emolument during the year
ended 31 December 2024 (2023: Nil).

No emoluments were paid by the subsidiaries of
the Company to the directors as an inducement
to join the subsidiaries of the Company, or as
compensation for loss of office during the year
ended 31 December 2024 (2023: Nil).
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZE —=

9. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS) (CONT’D)

174

(a) Benefits and interest of directors (Cont’d)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

Directors’ retirement and termination benefits

No retirement benefits were paid to or receivable
by any directors in respect of their other services in
connection with the management of the affairs of
the Company or its subsidiaries undertaking during
the year ended 31 December 2024 (2023: Nil).

No payment was made to the directors as
compensation for early termination of the
appointment during the year ended 31 December
2024 (2023: Nil).

Consideration provided to third parties for
making available directors’ services

The Company did not pay consideration to any third
parties for making available directors’ services for
the year ended 31 December 2024 (2023: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled
bodies corporate by and connected entities
with such directors

During the year ended 31 December 2024, there
were no loans, quasi-loans and other dealing
arrangements in favour of the directors, or
controlled body corporates and connected entities
of such directors (2023: Nil).

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

Save as disclosed in the Note 28, no significant
transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation
to the Group’s business to which the Company or
any of the subsidiaries of the Company was a party
and in which a director of the Group had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year
ended 31 December 2024 (2023: Nil).

“HFE+ZA=t+—HLEE

9. EERAMX (BRESZME)

(%)

@ EFEHNREZ (&)

(ii)

(i)

(iv)

v)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

sre SRR T

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZE —=

9. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING 9.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS) (CONT’D)
(b) Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest
in the Group for the year included one (2023: one) director
whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented
above. The emoluments of the remaining four individuals
(2023: four individuals) were as follows:

“HFE+ZA=t+—HLEFE

EERANAX (BRESME)

(%)

() EERBFHHAL
ARBFNELBBHATRE 4
—EoDF ) EE AMER

MR EBDFTAR-RTEBEAL(Z
T_=F OBADIOMEST

2024 2023
—E-_mF —E=F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET TET
Salaries and other benefits Fre MEHMEF 3,942 3,558
Retirement benefits scheme IRIREFIFT 2R
contributions 72 72
4,014 3,630
The emoluments of the highest paid non-director FEENHERFTATHMENTFIUAT

individuals fell within the following band:

HEAR

Number of individual

A"
2024 2023
—E-NE —E-=HF
Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 = % 1,000,000 7T 3 8
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 78 7C 2 1,500,000 /% 7T 1 1
4 4

No emoluments were paid by the Group to these four
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group, or as compensation for loss of office.

7R 62 18 30 4 () 5% PO 4 A\ = S AN A o]
SERMALMAXREENFEEH - X
ERREBMAAFE -

2024 i FEIBEBRERAERAR 175



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

N

sra SRR T

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZ —_Z_WF+_A=+—HILFE

10.

11.

176

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

For the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023, no
provision for PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”) and Hong Kong
Profits Tax have been made as the Group’s had no estimated
assessable profits for the years subject to these taxes.

Under the Hong Kong’s two-tiered Profits Tax regime, the first
HK$2 million of profits of the qualifying group entity established
in Hong Kong will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits above that
amount will be subject to the tax rate of 16.5%. The profits of
the group entities not qualifying for the two-tiered Profit Tax rate
regime will continue to be taxed at a rate of 16.5%. The Group’s
subsidiaries operating in the PRC are subject to PRC EIT at the
rate of 25% on the assessable profits of the subsidiaries.

The income tax expense is reconciled to the profit/(loss) before
tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as follows:

10.

FrE®iR <

HE-_Z_HWNEFER-_Z-_=F+= A
=+ —BLEFE -AEEIYERPRHDSE
FTBf ([¥EMBR]) REBAEHEL
BiE REAARNEEFANILEEEBAHN
ZEBEMNEFEREAEF

REFBMASMEHEE  REBKIL
M& &R & EE B/ E 2,000,000 7T A
5 128.25% T R - MR IBZ B 2 d
F#E A 16.5% B Bt R BB - A1 & FEH
PR AR 1 2 5 1B BB A i ) S HE AR 12 16.5%
MR - AEBR R EZ LK B L
A% PR R A #) 25% A B b X P
BHi e

rEmAX I BGaERE MEMEE KA
KEOBRBATET], (B18) HERMAT

2024 2023
—E-UE —E=F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FHET
Profit/(loss) before income tax BRETSBIADER (BR) 17,752 (107,699)
Notional tax calculated at the rates applicable %78 B#i 18 rlJ AR 25 F
to the profit/(loss) in the tax jurisdictions (BR)BAZHENER
concerned HBERIE 1,114 (19,217)
Tax effect of expense not deductible for tax ~ Na] FA{EF 2 X MBS &
purpose 4,430 20,465
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax BERBRANH S 2
purpose (6,470) (1,838)
Tax effect of utilisation of previously FRBERERNHIEEED
unrecognised tax losses Mg 2 (6,104) (4,543)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERN R IE BB GE 7,030 5,133

FriSHiB X

Income tax expense

DIVIDENDS

No dividend was paid or proposed for ordinary shareholders
of the Company for both years, nor has any dividend been
proposed since the end of the reporting period.

11.

o=\

RAEFEMEMREZRNEETA
REEBEBRBRR  BREHRETEEZS
IR RIS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR e TSR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZ —Z_WF+_A=+—HILFE

12. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE 12. SREAN, (FB)
(a) Basic earnings/(loss) per share (@ EGRELXEF - (EHE)

©)

Basic earnings/(loss) per share is calculated by dividing
the profit/(loss) attributable to equity holders of the
Company by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issue during the year.

iﬂ&ﬁﬂi%ﬁ/(éﬂé)ﬂﬁiﬁﬁﬁ$
AR hﬁ/\z/ﬁﬁ'/(%?@)ﬁfu
FRERTEBRINEFHEFE

2024 2023
—E-UE —E=F
HK cents HK cents
AL AL
Profit/(loss) attributable to equity holders STEEREARTF(EE)
of the Company used in calculating basic FFTA 2 AR R ERRTA
earnings/(loss) per share ABAE&F, (&) 17,752 (107,699)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares = 3577 & 38 I AN #E S 15 8
in issue ('000) (Fh) 304,252 286,409
Basic earnings/(loss) per share attributable to 2~ A &) A A FE (5 & I E AR
owners of the Company (HK$ cents) &, (EE) GBI) 5.83 (37.60)

Diluted earnings/{loss) per share

Diluted earnings/(loss) per share was calculated by
adjusting the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding to assume conversion/exercise of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares. For the year ended 31
December 2024, the Group has one (2023: one) category
of potential ordinary shares: share options (2023: share
options).

For share options, a calculation has been done to
determine the number of shares that could have been
acquired at fair value (determined as the average annual
market share price of the Company’s shares) based on
the monetary value of the subscription rights attached to
outstanding share options.

Share options (2023: share options) were not assumed to
be exercised as they would have an anti-dilutive impact to
the profit/(loss) attributable to the owners of the Company
for the years ended 31 December 2024 and 20283.
Accordingly, diluted earnings/(loss) per share for the years
ended 31 December 2024 and 2023 are same as that of
basic earnings/(loss) per share.

2024 i FEIBEBRERAERAR

(b) ZREBEEF - (EE)
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZE —=

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

178

“HFE+ZA=t+—HLEE

13. 1% - BEKRKRE

Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures and Computer Motor
improvements equipment equipment vehicles Total
G- 4B
BENERE FET ] EMRE hat: &i
HKS'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
TAn ThL TAL THL ThL
cosT 7%
At 1 January 2023 R-B-=£-f-A 104,153 51,409 1856 304 157,812
Additions nE 122 50 102 - 274
Written off i (82,534) (45,631) (1,312) (394) (129,871)
At 31 December 2023 and RZB-=£+-B=1+-HR
1 January 2024 “E-MmE-B-R 21,741 5,828 646 28,215
Additions AE 447 180 . 627
Written off il (215) (215)
At 31 December 2024 RZE-ME+-A=1-A 22,188 6,008 431 - 28,627
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION it
At1 January 2023 R-E-=£-f-H 101,858 50,656 1,731 394 154,639
Charged for the year TEEMG 392 101 81 - 574
Written off i (82,534) (45,624) (1,319) (394 (129,871)
At 31 December 2023 and RZE-=%+-A=t-Ak
1 January 2024 “E-RmE-B-R 19,716 5,133 493 - 25,342
Charged for the year REEMR 467 115 82 - 664
Written off i (215) - (215)
At 31 December 2024 WZB-ME+-A=1-H 20,183 5,248 360 - 25,791
Carrying values REE
As at 31 December 2024 RZE-MmE+-A=1-H 2,005 760 " - 2,836
As at 31 December 2023 “Z2-=#+-fA=t+-H 2,025 695 153 - 2,873
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZE —=

14. LEASES

“HFE+ZA=t+—HLEFE

14. HE
(a) Right-of-use assets @@ EAEEE
Leased
Equipment properties Total
B3 HEWME st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FHT
As at 31 December 2024 R=-ZZF-WF
+=A=+—H
Carrying amount AREE - 4,150 4,150
As at 31 December 2023 R=-ZB-=%+=A
=+—H
Carrying amount AREE 875 13,570 14,445
For the year ended BE-T_-_NF
31 December 2024 TZA=+—-BLEFE
Depreciation charge WEER 875 9,420 10,295
For the year ended BE-ZT-_=F%
31 December 2023 TZA=+—BLEFE
Depreciation charge WEEHR 1,870 8,873 10,743
2024 2023
—E-E T o=
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET AT
Total cash outflow for leases HER SR LA 10,880 11,137
Additions to right-of-use assets FTAEEEIAE - 1,543
For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group leases HE ZHHEFZA=+—HIEF
office and residential premises (2023: office and residential E K % l MERAERFEDE(Z

premises). Lease contracts are entered into for fixed
term of 1 to 3 years (2023: 1 to 3 years). Lease terms are
negotiated on an individual basis and contain different
terms and conditions. In determining the lease term and
assessing the length of the non-cancellable period, the
Group applies the definition of a contract and determines
the period for which the contract is enforceable.

2024 i FEIBEBRERAERAR

E_=FPAE
EA6Hm—==

E%%%) o
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZ —_Z_WF+_A=+—HILFE

14. LEASES (CONT’D)
(@) Right-of-use assets (Cont’d)

In addition, the Group leases a number of equipments for
its operation. As at 31 December 2024, lease liabilities
of HK$NIl (2023: HK$738,000) with related right-of-use
assets of HK$NIl (2023: HK$875,000) are under hire
purchase arrangements where the Group will obtain the
title of the underlying assets at end of the lease term. The
lease agreements do not impose any covenants other
than the security interests in the leased assets that are
held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as
security for borrowing purposes.

(b) Lease liabilities

14, A& (&)

@ RAEZE (&)

AN REBEAEE TRENEEE -
RZE-_MF+—A=+—H8 U¥&E
MEaE(ZE=—=4 : 738,000/ 1)
R EAEFERAEEE (T2 =5F:

875,000/ ) BRBZHE  A£E K
EHEREMSISHEBEENME
EoBREHBEARENHEEERA®
BN ME W E I E I 2255 o
HEEETNMSHIEEFRAENEMRG -

b) HEEE

2024 2023
—E-UE —E=F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FExT FHET
Lease liabilities payables: ENEEARE
Within one year —FR 4,588 10,395
More than one year but not more than —F A EENHBBMF
two years - 4,588
4,588 14,083
Less: Amount due for settlement within & : iR E B EE F5R
12 months shown under current AR12E AREER
liabilities PIA (4,588) (10,395)
Amount due for settlement after RIERBEEE TFIRAER
12 months shown under non-current 1218 A& EEHKIB
liabilities - 4,588

The weighted average incremental borrowing rates
applied to lease liabilities range is 5.0%-8.0% (2023:
5.0%-8.0%) per annum.

ERREEaERNINETEIEEER
FMENF50%E8.0% (T ==
F:50%%8.0%) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZ —Z_WF+_A=+—HILFE

15. INVENTORIES 15. &
2024 2023
—E-_NE =
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET T
Medical beauty and medical products BEXANRBEE® 236 445
16. TRADE RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS, 16. ESEINFIE - &€ » AR
PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES ,Hﬂtﬂéuﬁwl,\
(a) Trade receivables (@ EZEWE
2024 2023
—E-E o=
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT T
Trade receivables B 5 I W IR 622 1,196
The Group’s trade receivables are denominated in HK$. AEENE S EWRFIBABITEE °
The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables net B S EBGIR (R ERRRESE)
of impairment losses recognised presented based on the Hz BEAMZ27MRETET
invoice date:
2024 2023
—E-_NE =%
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FTERT T
0-90 days 0E90K 597 646
91-180 days 91 £180K 13 285
181-270 days 181 2270 3 310
Over 360 days 18 3@ 360 K 9 5
622 1,196

The Group allows an average credit period of 0-180 days

(2023: 0-180 days) to its customers.

AEBETERPZEHEEHAO
F180KR(ZE-=F : 0E180K) °

2024 i FEIBEBRERAERAR
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZ —_Z_WF+_A=+—HILFE

16. TRADE RECEIVABLES, DEPQOSITS, 16. EZEINFIE - & - FANRKIE
PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES & HAbfE LBZ FIE (48)
(CONT'D)
(b) Deposits, prepayments and other receivables (b) #ZE - FETHEREMEK
#IE
2024 2023
—E-UE —E=F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET T
Rental deposits HEZe 5,657 5,657
Other deposits Hibize 922 1,328
Prepayments TER IE 158 189
Other receivables H b e W s IE 135,271 249,395
142,008 256,569
Less: Provision for loss allowance for — J& : 5112 £ b i Uk 7R I8 &5 18 B
other receivables (36,845) (92,965)
Total et 105,163 163,604
Less: Non-current portion B - FEENEAER
— Other receivables —H b pE W FRIA 97,818 =
— Provision for loss allowance — s E b B W GRIE B 1B
for other receivables (27,407) -
70,411 =
Current portion BIEAE 7> 34,752 163,604
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZE —=

16. TRADE RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS,
PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(CONT'D)

(b) Deposits, prepayments and other

“HFE+ZA=t+—HLEFE

receivables (b)

16. E 5 EIRERIE -
E@EWJEU@

&~ FA{TRIE

BE -~ FRIYFHERAMGER

(Cont’a) I (7 ‘é”)
Movements in the provision for loss allowance for other FA /H ﬁﬂfqﬂl RIAR) R E B R R EE
receivables during the year are as follows: BT
2024 2023
—E-mE —E-=4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FHT
At 1 January R—A—8 92,965 25,402
Net changes arising from modification £ th FE UG IBIE 5] & 8) F 58
of other receivables (43,830) -
(Reversal of)/provision for impairment 45 A RE 2 & 36l (B &5 18
loss recognised for the year (BE) s (12,290) 83,001
Eliminated on write-off of other 3 55 L 8 Uk SR IE M
receivables - (15,438)
At 31 December W+—_A=+—H 36,845 92,965

Other receivables as at 31 December 2023 mainly
represent (i) the payment in advance to the service
provider in the PRC to offset future operating costs
incurred for the consulting business in respect of aesthetic
medical and beauty services, (i) receipts from customers
on behalf of the Group by the service provider in the PRC
and (iii) the payable arising from the services provided by
the service provider on behalf of the Group.

In March 2024, the Group entered into an agreement
with the service provider under which the other
receivables of approximately HK$236,230,000 owed to
the Group will be repaid by the service provider in five
installments at interest-free over a period from March
2024 to December 2028. The terms of such original
other receivables were modified, and such modification
was considered as substantial modification of the
original terms, resulting in derecognition of the original
other receivables and recognition of a new financial
asset. Loss on maodification of original other receivables
of approximately HK$17,276,000 (see Note 5(b)) was
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
The effective interest rate of such new other receivables
is approximately 12% per annum for the year ended 31
December 2024.

R-ZB_=F+-A=+—8 Eftt
& MR IR 2 45 () () o B AR 7% 0 B 7
BNREAREREEERXTR
T B A 5 SE 75 P AR O AR SRS B
(if) 7 B8 B 75 44 P 7 X AR SR [ M BN Y 3
B 3R R K (i) AR 755 44 B ol (AN S [ 2 {1
ARH%5 P EE £ KO FE 15 5K0R

REBR T _NE= ALEREHE
EEACE R 1A %%ugﬁ%m
—E-NME=ZRAE_ZE-_N\F+=-A
HEREE A D AHEERNARE
lMﬁ@E%aEmmmwmw%

o % E R E b BN IBR IERE 1E
ﬁ%& [EACE GG E VN5
183 EEUR IR R E th e FRIE

NERTNEMEE - W&%E@f&
A E I8 417,276,000 7T (35 2 6
BIaEsb) R B R PR - HE
—E-NE+-_A=+—HILFE "
ZEIHE A R FE R B BR F A R
BHI12% o
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZE —=

17. CASH AND BANK BALANCES

184

“HFE+ZA=t+—HLEE

17. BEeRIIBITE

2024 2023

—E-mF —E-=F

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FET FAETT

Cash and bank balances We RIRTTHE 22,702 3,334

The Group’s cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the
following currencies:

AEENRe KRS FEEB N TIER
FHE -

2024 2023

—E-NE —E=%F

HK$’°000 HK$’'000

THxT FHET

HK$ BT 6,620 1,869
USD oy ] ]
RMB ARE 16,081 1,464
22,702 3,334
Included in cash and bank balances of the Group are REBZRE MRITEB BT RN

approximately HK$16,050,000 (2023: HK$78,000) of bank
balances denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) placed with banks
in the PRC. Under the Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement and
Sales and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, RMB is
not a freely convertible currency and the Group is permitted to
exchange RMB for foreign currencies through banks that are
recognised to conduct foreign exchange business.

ZHRITETUAARE(TARK]) 5HE 2R
1T #5827 4916,050,0008 L (Z T = =4 ¢
78,0008 7T) ° IR B A Hb 2 HINGE B EE {6
Bl R aEE  EERFESERE  ARK
WIANERLIR s EE  BASEELES
BEREETIINEER ZRITHARE R
AN -
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZE —=

18.

19.

BRI TE

TRADE PAYABLES

The aging analysis of the trade payables based on invoice date

“HFE+ZA=t+—HLEFE

18. B S EAT 1A
BO RN REREE

BHIZ SR BRI D AT

is as follows: mr
2024 2023
—ENE —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET T
0-30 days 0Z& 30K 3,369 2,099
31-60 days 31 £60K 472 374
3,841 2,473
Average credit period granted by suppliers to the Group are HEBR TAEE 2 FHEEHNTI0X

30-60 days (2023: 30-60 days).

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade payables as at 31
December 2024 and 2023 approximate their fair value and are
denominated in the following currencies:

ZO0R(ZE-=F:30860XK) °

AEBER T _MNFR-_ZT-_=F+_AH
ST -HNEZEMNFARAEEZERYF

BEEELATIIEREHE

2024 2023
—E-E —E-=5F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FA&TT
HK$ BT 105 1,315
RMB AR 3,736 1,158
3,841 2,473

ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES 10. Bt E R R EME[FIE
2024 2023
—E-ME —E-=4&
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHETT
Accruals JEZT & A 8,672 13,105
Other payables M E S IR 8,002 1,805
Total #Est 16,674 14,910

Less: Non-current portion B JERNEREL

Other payables H b < 5OE (6,023) =
Current portion BN EAZR 5 10,651 14,910

2024 i FEIBEBRERAERAR
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZE —=

“HFE+ZA=t+—HLEE

19. ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES (CONT'D) 19. FEstE B Rk E Mt FE(T FIE (58)
The Group’s accruals and other payables are denominated in AEEMETERAREMENA KRBT
the following currencies: B¥EHE -

2024 2023

—E-MF =%

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FExT FHE T

HKS BT 13,876 14,898
RVB AR 2,798 12
16,674 14,910

20. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 20. ENEE
Contract liabilities mainly relate to the package fees received in ERNBEEXZHBRESEREREDRE
advance for aesthetic medical and beauty services and medical HBEEERER—EHRARZMNHEER
services to be delivered within certain period. The contract BEH cRBESAXRBEEREFPEEN
liabilities will be offset against products and services consumed § oh &HWQ RBRBEAEEERN K
by customers and will be recognised as revenue when the said IR AL bl o R RIS RS s P iR o
products and services are rendered according to applicable
accounting policies of the Group.

Movement in contract liabilities EHEEZE
2024 2023
—EMEF —T-=%
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FEx FAT
At 1 January n—A—H 81,090 60,743
Revenue recognised during the year that FFAFVIEHNEENEA
was included in contract liabilities at the 2R
beginning of the year (22,699) (4,705)
Revenue recognises during the year FAERK = (4,801) (52,022)
Additions N 13,614 77,074
Assignments (Note) i (M) (55,910) =
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 11,294 81,090
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZE —=

20. CONTRACT LIABILITIES (CONT’D)

21.

Movement in contract liabilities (Cont’d)
Note:

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group entered into
tripartite agreements with certain customers and an independent
service provider who provides aesthetic medical and beauty services.
Pursuant to these agreements, the Group assigned its remaining
unfulfilled performance obligations under existing service agreements
with customers (the “Service Agreements”), in aggregate of
approximately HK$55,910,000, to the independent service provider.
Following the assignments, the independent service provider assumes
full responsibility for delivering the remaining services to the customers
in accordance with the original terms of the Service Agreements. As
a result, the Group is legally discharged from its obligations under the
Service Agreements. The consideration for such assignments of the
contract liabilities was settled through the other receivables due from
the service provider of approximately HK$55,910,000.

“HFE+ZA=t+—HLEFE

KB EEE (B
GEX

REBEE-T-_NF+-_A=1+—HLEFE  £&E
EHETERFER—RIEEHESBEERERRSEHN
B RGIREEI L= A - RIBEZE W=
AEBEERAREFIVZEARE R (RS
WEDBTHRTHABTZENEX (AENA
55,910,000/ 70) B T B L RIS IR - 88
% BYRBREDAREREHZERBIEKE
BEERMZFRERGRE - Bt AEEE K
EEBERREHEBE T 2EET ZEANARE
wHg R ECEBREWRBEIRER 2 HihEUER
TE#755,910,000 8 TTAE & -

SHAREHOLDERS’ LOANS 21. REREMX
2024 2023
—E-mF —T=F
Notes HK$’000 HK$ 000
B 5 FHExT T T
Current portion B HAER
— repayable within one year —R—FREE () 3,629 13,629
Non-current portion FERNHAEE
— repayable more than one year but — BB —FERREA (b)
within two years (=g 45,473 21,579
49,102 35,208

The Group’s shareholders’ loans are denominated in HK$.

2024 i FEIBEBRERAERAR
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZE —=

21.

22.

188

BPBHRRNTE

“HFE+ZA=t+—HLEE

SHAREHOLDERS’ LOANS (CONT’D) 21. RREXK (&)

Notes: I 5E -

(@) As at 31 December 2024, shareholders’ loans amounted @ RZZE-_WEF+_A=+—H KX
to approximately HK$3,629,000 (2023: approximately B3 493,629,0008 L (ZEZ=F : 4
HK$13,629,000) were unsecured and interest free, and 13,629,000/ L) AEKB R R E - WA
repayable on demand. REREE -

(b)  As at 31 December 2024, shareholders’ loans amounted to ) RZZEZNFF+—A=+—HB BRRER
approximately HK$45,473,000 were unsecured, interest-bearing #)45,473,000 8 7T B EEIF - L FFE 3%
at 3% per annum and repayable in 2026 (2023: approximately AERERZE A FEE(ZE==F:
HK$21,579,000 were unsecured, interest bearing at 3% per #921,579,000 & 7T A EER - RFEFIE3%
annum and repayable in 2025). AEREARZZT_RFEERE) -

(¢)  During the year ended 31 December 2023, the shareholders’ 0 BEZZF-_=F+ZA=+—HLEFE"
loans amounted to HK$16,000,000 was capitalised and 16,000,000/ TR R R E X F A& AR 1k
represents the consideration for the issue of the new ordinary REBTARAMEBEBRORE (MF
shares of the Company (Note 23(iv)). 23(iv)) °

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 22, IREEMIEEE

Deferred taxation is calculated on temporary difference under BEFBDREGBEEALAEER l EEFTIE

the liability method using the rates of taxation prevailing in the BRI EILEREZRETE - BT

countries in which the Group operates. The movement of the HEBEZEBEHWOT

deferred tax liabilities is as follows:

2024 2023
S NE —E-=%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT

At 1 January R—HA—H 147 147

Charged to profit or loss kB RS - -

At 31 December R+—A=+— 147 147

As at 31 December 2024, the Group has unused tax losses
of approximately HK$79,537,000 (2023: HK$106,274,000)
available to carry forward indefinitely for offset against future
profits. At 31 December 2024, the Group has unused tax
losses of approximately HK$9,931,000 (2023: approximately
HK$10,121,000) available for offset against future profits
which can be carried forward five years after they are
incurred under current tax legislation. No deferred tax asset
has been recognised in respect of the tax losses due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams.

R-_ZE-_WNE+-_A=+—H A&EEE
KRENA A EE 479,637,000 T (=&
— =% :106,274,0007 7T) * A R HR 45
EHEMARR G R _WMFE+=A
=+—H AEEERTABEEBED
9,931,000 L (ZF == : #710,121,000
PSTT) AR SEIRIB IR T BUA AT R A E £ R
RFEAZBERAEF o B R K G F 2R
R Y AN BT BRI M - il kR T B 18 e
FEEFIAEE o
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZ —Z_WF+_A=+—HILFE

23. SHARE CAPITAL 23. AR
Number of Nominal
shares value
KRG E H{E
HK$’000
FHT
Authorised ERE
At 1 January 2023, ordinary shares R_E_=%—H—8"
of HK$0.20 each HREE0.208 TH L MR 5,000,000,000 1,000,000
Share consolidation (Note (i) W& tn & OF (B EE () (4,500,000,000) -
Capital reduction (Note (ii)) AR Z B (B & (i) - (900,000)
At 31 December 2023, 1 January 2024 and Eé:ﬂ?:*iwL —A=+—8"
31 December 2024, ordinary shares of “E-_MFE-—A—BK
HK$0.20 each —E-_NE+=ZA=+—8"
FREE.20B T E B 500,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid ERTRHBE:
At 1 January 2023, ordinary shares R_TE_=F—H—8"
of HK$0.20 HREE0.208 o r I AR 2,854,289,500 570,858
Share consolidation (Note (i) Bt & B (B () (2,568,860,550) =
Capital reduction (Note (ii)) A& ZS Bk (B 52 (i) - (518,772)
Shareholder’s loan capitalisation (Note (iv)) IR B RE A1k (B EE (v) 18,823,530 3,764
At 31 December 2023, 1 January 2024 and E/‘ E-=F+ZA=+—8H"
31 December 2024, ordinary shares of —EMFE-—A—HBK
HK$0.20 each —E-_NE+=ZA=+—8 "
SRR EE0.20 78 T A & @A 304,252,480 60,850

Note: On 14 July 2023, the Board proposed to implement the capital Mz - R_TE_=FtA+ WA EFESEZE
reorganisation which comprises the following (collectively, “Capital BRAEAR  BREUTEE(HBIRAE
Reorganisation”): Al :

ERHA (RDEH])  B’H
N%E’J% ELHBETRREEET
BARBEITRNDE A —REFRD

(i) Proposed share consolidation (the “Share Consolidation”): (i)
Share Consolidation on the basis that every ten issued
and unissued existing shares will be consolidated into one
consolidated share;
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZE —=

23. SHARE CAPITAL (CONT’D)

Note: (CONT'D)

190

(i)

(i)

Proposed capital reduction (the “Capital Reduction”):
immediately following the Share Consolidation becoming
effective, implement the Capital Reduction, pursuant to
which (a) any fractional consolidated share in the issued
share capital of the Company arising from the Share
Consolidation being cancelled and (b) the issued share
capital of the Company will be reduced by cancelling the
paid-up capital to the extent of HK$1.80 on each of the
then issued consolidated shares such that the par value
of each issued consolidated share will be reduced from
HK$2.00 to HK$0.20; and

Proposed share sub-division: immediately following the
Capital Reduction, each of authorised but unissued
consolidated shares of par value of HK$2.00 each will be
sub-divided into ten new shares of par value of HK$0.20
each.

On 14 July 2023, the Company as the issuer and Mr.
Wang Chuang (a substantial shareholder of the Company,
the chairman of the Board, the chief executive officer and
an executive Director of the Company), as the subscriber
(the “Subscriber”) entered into a subscription agreement,
pursuant to which the Company has conditionally agreed
to allot and issue, and the Subscriber has conditionally
agreed to subscribe for 18,823,530 subscription shares
at the subscription price of HK$0.85 per subscription
share (after taking into account the effect of the Capital
Reorganisation and equivalent to the theoretical share
price of HK$0.085 prior to the Capital Reorganisation).
The subscription amount payable by the Subscriber of
approximately HK$16,000,000 under the subscription
agreement shall be satisfied by capitalising the partial
amount of shareholder’s loans due to the Subscriber in the
same amount (“Loan Capitalisation”).

Share Consolidation, Capital Reduction and Loan Capitalisation
took effect on 6 December 2023, 7 December 2023 and
13 December 2023 respectively. Details of the Capital
Reorganisation and the Loan Capitalisation are set out in the
announcements issued by the Company dated 14 July 2023, 4
August 2023, 18 August 2023, 4 September 2023, 25 October
2023, 7 December 2023 and 13 December 2023 and circular
dated 18 August 2023.

“HFE+ZA=t+—HLEE

23. IR (48)

B 5E

(88

(i)  EEBEAHIR (TRRABDR]) RE
BE R 1D & BF £ 3 18 B e AR AN HOR
B @A QA B ETRAF E R
DEHTHEMEEZEMNETHREH
B K (o) A2 B B AT IR A A5 38 18
EHMERA(UEREREETE
BERR {7 FE$51.8078 L BFR) T A HI
B BEEBRERTAMFRMDZE
B4 H2.008TElEZE0.20 7T

@iy EEBROSF: BRERABIRE -
SREE2.008 T2 AT B RET
AH&P*Q?“%E+HE%E
H0.2078 T2 ¥k 15

vy RZZE-_=FtA+WIAB: KA 7
(EAREETA)BIRES (ARFE
TRE EESEFE AQATH
BEFNTES) (EARBA) (IR
BADTLRERS #k KA
AIBIRHREE R RET MRAE
Aﬁhﬁﬂﬁ&%ﬁLi%w%%
$0.858 L (KERBBRAEHNTE
BRBASENBRAEHEATOERRE
0.0857 7T) R % 18,823,530 I ;R B&
B o REABRBRERZEMSD
08 & %5 416,000,000 7 7T 5 B 6
BEARCEMNREANBDBREEK
HEeBE(ERENMED) ER -

&G BRABBREEREA R =F
—_=F+ZAXNB -ZZE-_=F+=-AR+
ARZFE_=F+_A+=BEK- KX
EARERERNENFBIRNARE M
TEERAE-_ZT-_=F+A+mWA - =%
—ZFNAMA - —ZE-_=FN\A+/\H "
—TE-=FAAWB —_ZT-_=%+AH
—+HH ZE_=F+-_AtBHRE=E
—=F+=A+= EE’]/\t':L/USZEI,Hﬂ%:
Z_=FN\A+/\HHRE
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZ —Z_WF+_A=+—HILFE

24. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 24.

RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

(a) Statement of financial position of the Company

RR B 2 B AR R A e

@ AL B2 BEMNRIE

2024 2023
—E2-opmE —F_=
HK$’00_0 HK$j 000
FET FAET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Right-of-use assets EREEE 3,603 12,252
Investments in subsidiaries KRB RRZ®RE 200 200
3,803 12,452
Current assets RBEE
Deposits, prepayments, and other e - ERZER
receivables H i fE W I8 6,394 6,128
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE U FT B A =) IR - 2,977
Cash and bank balances He RIRTTH 4,910 86
11,304 9,191
Total assets BEE 15,107 21,643
EQUITY e
Share capital AR 7R 60,850 60,850
Reserves ] (74,075) (66,499)
Total deficit in equity W B AL 4R RE (13,225) (5,649)
LIABILITIES 8E&
Non-current liabilities ERBAE
Lease liabilities HEBE - 4,048
Current liabilities nEaE
Accruals and other payables FEETE R & E b RS 3k 4,982 11,010
Shareholders’ loans IR B 5K 3,338 3,338
Amounts due to subsidiaries JE A~ B BB A B R IE 15,964 =
Lease liabilities HEAR 4,048 8,896
28,332 23,244
Total liabilities weE 28,332 27,292
Total equity and liabilities HEZFEE 15,107 21,643
Net current liabilities nEEEFHE (17,028) (14,053)

The statement of financial position of the Company was
approved by the Board of Directors on 28 March 2025
and was signed on its behalf.

Wang Chuang
S

Director

EF

ARBHBRARKER T _AF=
A-t\BEESe#tE LA TS
EERREE

Huo Chunyu
EEE
Director

EF
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZ —_Z_WF+_A=+—HILFE

24. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND ZIK Bl Z BRI KK iR E
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY ?E
(CONT'D)
(b) Share capital and reserve movement of the (b) A RERER #EZE
Company
Share
Share option Other  Translation Accumulated
premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total
REEE BRERE  HtRE  2ERE  ZHER @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TATL TET TAT TAT TAT
At 1 January 2023 R-B-z£-A-7 3203513 40,609 12,238 73 (37265600  (470,127)
Capital reduction (Note 23) TR HI AL (P2 23) - - - - 513,772 513772
Issue of shares on shareholders — RMNIREEFE Rk %R G
loan capitalisation (Note 23) (Mt 23) 12,236 - - - - 12,236
Loss for the year TEEER - - - - (122,380 (122,380)
Balances as at 31 December ~ W=ZE-=%#+-H=1-H
2023 and 1 January 2024 k=E-MmE-F-A
i3 3,215,749 40,609 12,238 73 (3,335,168) (66,499)
Loss for the year TEEER - - - - (7,576) (7,576)
Balance as at RZB-m&E+=A=1+-H
31 December 2024 i 3,215,749 40,609 12,238 73 (3,342,744) (74,075)

In accordance with the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands, the share premium account of the Company is
also available for distribution to shareholders provided
that the Company is able to pay its debts as they fall due
in the ordinary course of business immediately following
the date on which any such distribution is proposed to be
paid.

REFASESRRNE KRR ZBH
ERRINA] 2K T BOR - AR AR
Eéff%iim/mﬂ{ﬁﬁfa ok B A&

RESTE B B XM BIEP EEDMER -

192 China Regenerative Medicine International Limited Annual Report 2024



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
/\\/T\ E]f%% &%MT IIIE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZ —Z_WF+_A=+—HILFE

25. NOTES SUPPORTING CONSOLIDATED 25. MERERMERZIEME
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(a) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities: @ ®BMEIBEENAGBZHE:
Shareholders’ Lease
loans liabilities
BREXR HEERE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
At 1 January 2023 R-ZE-_=%—F—H 48,414 23,598
Changes from cash flows: RenEgit
Addition o 7,088
Repayment ¥ (4,294)
Shareholders’ loan capitalisation (note 23) BREFE A (K uE 23) (16,000) -
Repayment of principal portion of lease liabilities EEHEAGEAEE - (10,158)
Interest paid on lease liabilities ERNEEAGTE = (979)
Total changes from financing cash flows: RERSREZ AR (13,206) (11,137)
Other changes: Hh g
Interest expense FEHZ = 979
New leases entered BRI UMFEE - 1,543
At 31 December 2023 and 1 January 2024 R-B-=F+-A=+-HRK
“E-NF—-H—H 35,208 14,983
Changes from cash flows: Bensdt:
Addition i 21,182 -
Repayment B8 (7,935) -
Repayment of principal portion of lease liabilities EEREaEREHS - (10,395)
Interest paid on lease liabilities BENHEEEEFS - (485)
Total changes from financing cash flows: MERSNEFHEE - 13,247 (10,880)
Other changes: Hin ) :
Interest expense FlBAX 647 485
At 31 December 2024 RZE-_ME+=-HA=+—H 49,102 4,588
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZE —=

25. NOTES SUPPORTING CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONT’D)

(b) Major non-cash transactions

M

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the
Group entered into tripartite agreements with
certain customers and an independent service
provider who provides aesthetic medical and
beauty services, to assign its remaining unfulfilled
performance obligations under existing service
agreements with customers in aggregate of
approximately HK$55,910,000, to the independent
service provider. Details regarding the assignments
of the contract liabilities set out in Note 20.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the
Company issued 18,823,530 new ordinary shares
to a substantial shareholder at the subscription
price of HK$0.85 per share and the total
subscription amount of HK$16,000,000 payable
by the substantial shareholder was satisfied by the
capitalisation of the shareholder’s loan due by the
Company to the shareholder. Details regarding the
issue of share are set out in Notes 21 and 23(iv).

26. CAPITAL AND OTHER COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, the Group had no
significant capital commitments.

194

“HFE+ZA=t+—HLEE

5. MEREMBRIIFHE (&)

b) ETEHFHEXS

() REE-ZT-_NF+-_A=1+—
Eﬁifx‘ AEEHETER
F—REHEEBRBEREAR
ﬁ%ﬁ4%ﬁhTﬁJ4 Vil
Wik BEEEPITVLCREA
HW{WJ BT THABITZ
B#HEE (& 14 455,910,000
VETT) B T B RIS IR o
EeNBEEENFHEIRN
fIFE20 ©

iy BEZZ-_=F+ZHA=+—

BILEEE ARARUREBES
B%0.857% oM £ Z A% | 31T
18,823,530 [ L@k - MEZ
P& 3 FE 1 33 & 42 58 16,000,000
BTBEEBREAREA R A E
ENBREOBRREREN -F
EaHXT ?%ﬁﬁ']#| %k MTEIQT

% 23(v) ©

26. B R H A&

R-B_HER_F_=F+_A=+—
B NREEYB\EEREANEE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZ —Z_WF+_A=+—HILFE

27.

SHARE OPTIONS

A share option scheme was adopted by the Company
pursuant to a resolution passed on 14 September 2011 (the
“Scheme”). The Scheme has life span of ten years from the
date of adoption (“Valid Period”) and expired on 13 September
2021. Since then, no further share option scheme is adopted
by the Company. Under the Scheme, the directors may grant
options in Valid Period to (i) any eligible employee (means any
employee, whether full time or part time employee, including
any executive directors and non-executive directors) of the
Company, any of its subsidiaries and any invested entity; (i)
any supplier of goods or services to any member of the Group
or any invested entity; (iii) any customer of the Group or any
invested entity; (iv) any person or entity that provides research,
development or technological support or other services to the
Group or any invested entity; and (v) any shareholder or any
member of the Group or any invested entity or any holder of any
securities issued by any member of the Group to any invested
entity (collectively known as the “Participants”), to subscribe
for shares in the Company. The purpose of the Scheme is to
provide incentives or rewards to the Participants thereunder
for their contributions to the Group and/or to enable the Group
to recruit and retain high-caliber employees and attract human
resources that are valuable to the Group and any invested
entity. The total number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the Scheme is not permitted to exceed
10% of the shares of the Company in issue at the date of the
approval of the Scheme, unless approved by the Company’s
shareholders. In addition, the maximum number of shares
of the Company which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted under the Scheme is not permitted
to exceed 30% of the shares of the Company in issue from
time to time. The number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted to any individual in any 12-month period is not
permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue
at any point in time. Options granted to substantial shareholders
or independent non-executive directors of the Company, or
any of their respective associates in excess of 0.1% of the
Company’s share capital and with a value in excess of HK$5
million must be approved by the Company’s shareholders.

7. BBRAE

RARMRE-—EBER-_ZE——F LA +HmA
BRZAZREM —BERESZ (T5
2 -FEAERMBBERTTFER(A
HMER])  WRZ—ZE-—FhAAt+t=BEm-
th1% - AR R — PR AN IR E -
REFTE EFARAREHR T ALE
HEREARBAQRRG : (AAa - H
FRMB AR REAMEEERZERE
BEiEE GEEM 2B RBRES - BIEE
MMITEERIFENTES)  (\RAEETE
KB AR EMMAREEEHES R
AR 75 2 AT {a] f FE 7 ¢ (iil) AN £2 B s (E fa] T 4%
BEEZAMER  (v) [ ANEE ST pT
HEBERIEHME FAEAFENZEXE
MR 2 ERMALTHELE RV EMKRE
SAEEETAKE QAR KEMARE TR
SAEEEAKE QRAEMARE TR
B2 ERABF2ERNBFEEA(GBI2HE
) FHEIZEMDRBEBELEEHAE
EfT{E2 ERMEL S B s BRI &S fE A
SESUBELRGRBESES  WRME
AEERAMAEEEEMEEEZAN
B BIEEFS AR B RER & - RIEF
A TRLZERES R RO BETE
BBANE NI EEEHE TR 2
10% o b Ah - BT E R R ET 815 H m s R
TEEREMmA TEIT AR RGN E
BLER THBEARATEDEETRG
Z.30% o INMEAI 12 1E A BffE A Al [a) £ 1) A
TEREZERES R RHEE TEEA
RABRERREEBETRG 2 1% °
AR FERRKIBIIENTESTHAEM
FESEBIHEARLD ZEREBBAR
AIAEAS 2 0.1% R BB 1B 5,000,000 7T -
B A E B AR B AR L -
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZ —_Z_WF+_A=+—HILFE

27. SHARE OPTIONS (CONT’D) R (E)

Options granted must be taken up within a period of 28 days
from the date of grant, upon payment of HK$1 per grant. An
option period to be determined by the directors is at their
absolute discretion shall not be more than ten years after the
date of the grant of the share option (“Option Period”). Options
may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Scheme
at any time during the Option Period after the option has been
granted. The exercise price should not be less than the highest
of (i) the nominal value of the Company’s shares; (i) the closing
price of the Company’s share on the date of grants, which
must be a trading day; or (i) the average of the closing prices

Friz 2 BB AR B AR 1 H B4R 28 H A
R PR 4 - T 5 0 9% 4 B A AR A ZB 1S
BT BIRESE I REEERRNBEE
RS BBRHEREBBE 4 (8B
BREHMED - JHBERER  BRETR
BB AR A HA R N IR R 5T B IE FRBE S T LATT -
TEETSERUT=ZEZRSE (AR
AR EE : (i) AR B PR HR R B (%
BARSH) ZWME (i) A2 8 &R
ZERTBHINAERS B 2 FHRME -
FIB RGOt 2R EMES S ARRE AT -

AREBBRBETRDIN RBEZRAHETER
7508 [0 S ST P AR ©

of the Company’s shares for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of grant. All share-based employee
compensation will be settled in equity. The Group has no legal
or constructive obligation to repurchase or settle the options
other than by issuing its shares.

The Company b/ A=
Options Outstanding at
adjustment 31 December 2023,
Date of Outstanding at upon share 1 January 2024 and
Name of category of participant grant 1 January 2023 consolidation 31 December 2024
R=ZZB==%
t=A=t+-8"
“B2-Nm&-A-H
R-E-NE
R-ZBZ=fF Rp&s® +=A=+-8H
SHEEZERNAR REE® —-B-HHAXOE BRERE i R AT
Employees EE
In aggregate A% 04/2016 1,655,000 (1,489,500) 165,500
04/2017 2,536,500 (2,282,850) 253,650
Consultants B
In aggregate A% 04/2016 1,647,000 (1,482,300) 164,700
04/2017 2,400,000 (2,160,000) 240,000
8,238,500 (7,414,650) 823,850
Weighted average exercise price MEFHTEE (BT)

(HK dollar) 7.09 63.81 70.9
All of the outstanding share options can be exercisable as at 31 BHE-_Z_HNFR-_ZT_=F+=H
December 2024 and 2023. =t —BIEFE A EARTTENERE

BT
No share option was granted, exercised or lapsed under the BHE-_Z_HNEFER-_ZT_=F+=H

Scheme during the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023. =T HIEFENEBREREEIER

o ITERR
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZE —=

27. SHARE OPTIONS (CONT’D)

The terms and conditions of the share options that existed at
31 December 2024 and 2023 are as follows:

“HFE+ZA=t+—HLEFE

ﬁ HX *E ( ma

R-E-_NER-_T-_=F+-A=+—
A2 BB AR R R AR AT

Number of options
outstanding at 31 December

RT=A=t-BHKXTEN

Contractual
exercise price BREHA
(adjusted Adjusted after share consolidation
after share Contractual RERHEHERE
Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period consolidation) life of options 2024 2023
RRTER
(R &
REAH BRH s %AR) BRESHES 152 2
Employees
E&
16 September 2015 16 September 2015t0 16 September 2016 to HK$90.00 10 years 33,100 33,100
15 September 2016 15 September 2025
“E-RAFNRTAA - Eﬁ_ﬁﬁﬂﬂ +7HE “E-REAATAEE 900087 10F
“Z-xFNAtTRAR ZZ-RfNAtARA
16 September 2015 16 September 2015t0 16 September 2017 to HK$90.00 10 years 33,100 33,100
15 September 2017 15 September 2025
“E-REAATAR ZE-RFAATARBE ZE-tENATAEE 900087 104
“Z—tFNA+tRA ZZ_RfFNAtHA
16 September 2015 16 September 2015t0 16 September 2018 to HK$90.00 10 years 33,100 33,100
15 September 2018 15 September 2025
“E-RAFNRTAA - Fﬁ_ﬁﬁﬂﬂ +7HE “E-\EAATAHE 900087 10F
Z-NENATER Z—E-HRFNATEHA
16 September 2015 16 September 2015t0 16 September 2019 to HK$90.00 10 years 33,100 33,100
15 September 2019 15 September 2025
“E-RFNAtAA _Eﬁ_ﬁﬁﬂﬂ +7HE “E-NEAATAEE 900087 10F

Z-NEAATER —Z-nfNATLA
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZ —_Z_WF+_A=+—HILFE

27. SHARE OPTIONS (CONT’D) R (E)

RZE-_WMER—E_=ZF+_A=+—
B 2 B ER BAE a0 R - (48)

The terms and conditions of the share options that existed at
31 December 2024 and 2023 are as follows: (Cont’d)

Number of options
outstanding at 31 December

RT=A=t-BHKXTEN

198

Contractual
exercise price BREHA
(adjusted Adjusted after share consolidation
after share Contractual REf&GH&ER
Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period consolidation) life of options 2024 2023
ARTRE
(RRH& B
REAH ERH L %AR) BRESHES 152 2
Employees (Cont'd)
EE ()
16 September 2015 16 September 2015t0 16 September 2020 to HK$90.00 10 years 33,100 33,100
15 September 2020 15 September 2025
“E-REAATAR ZE-RFAATABE ZBE-REAATAEE 900087 104
“Z-ZFNA+RA ZE-REAATEA
9 September 2016 8 September 2016 to 9 September 2017 to HK$58.20 10 years 50,730 50,730
8 September 2017 8 September 2025
“E-R"EAAAE CZE Ainﬂﬂai. “E-tENANRE 582087 104
T—+ENANE  ZEZREFNANA
9 September 2016 8 September 2016 to 9 September 2018 to HK$58.20 10 years 50,730 50,730
8 September 2018 8 September 2025
“E-REAANE . ZE-REARANBE ZE-\$NANEBE 582087 104
—Z-\FnA/NE ZZZR50ANE
9 September 2016 9 September 2018 to 9 September 2019 to HK$58.20 10 years 50,730 50,730
8 September 2025 8 September 2025
“E-REAANE ZE-N\EAANBE ZE-NENANBE 582087 104
ZZZREAANE ZEZEFNANA
9 September 2016 8 September 2016 to 9 September 2020 to HK$58.20 10 years 50,730 50,730
8 September 2020 8 September 2025
“E-REAANE ZE-REAANNBE _B-TEAANRE 582087 104
ZZ-FEAANE ZEZREFNANA
9 September 2016 8 September 2016 to 9 September 2021 to HK$58.20 10 years 50,730 50,730
8 September 2021 8 September 2025
“E-REAANE ZE-REARNBE ZE--$nANBE 582087 104
“E-—-FnANH “Z-RfEnANA
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZE —=

27.

SHARE OPTIONS (CONT’D)

The terms and conditions of the share options that existed at
31 December 2024 and 2023 are as follows: (Cont’d)

“HFE+ZA=t+—HLEFE

ﬁ HX *E ( ma

RZE-_WMER—ET_=ZF+=A4
B 2 B AR R B A a0 T

(%)

Number of options

=Ty

outstanding at 31 December

RT=A=t-BHKXTEN

Contractual
exercise price BREHA
(adjusted Adjusted after share consolidation
after share Contractual REf&GF&ER
Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period consolidation) life of options 2024 2023
RRTER
(R &
REAH BRH s %AR) BRESHES 152 2
Consultants
B
16 September 2015 16 September 2015t0 16 September 2016 to HK$90.00 10 years 32,940 32,940
15 September 2016 15 September 2025
“E-LFNATRE -ﬁ—ﬁinﬂ TREE ZB-"EAATABE 900087 104
“Z-xFNAtRAR ZZ-RfFNAtARA
16 September 2015 16 September 2015t0 16 September 2017 to HK$90.00 10 years 32,940 32,940
15 September 2017 15 September 2025
“E-REAATAR ZE-RFAATARBE ZE-tENATREE 90008 104
“Z—tFNA+RA ZZ_RfFNAtHA
16 September 2015 16 September 2015t0 16 September 2018 to HK$90.00 10 years 32,940 32,940
15 September 2018 15 September 2025
—E-LFNATRE -*——ﬁinﬂ TREE Z2-\FAATABE 90008 104
Z-N\ENATER ZE-HFNATAA
16 September 2015 16 September 2015t0 16 September 2019 to HK$90.00 10 years 32,940 32,940
15 September 2019 15 September 2025
“E-LFNATRE -ﬁ—ﬁinﬂ TREE Z2-NEAATABE 900087 104
Z-NENATER ZE-HFNATAA
16 September 2015 16 September 2015t0 16 September 2020 to HK$90.00 10 years 32,940 32,940
15 September 2020 15 September 2025
“E-REAATAR ZE-RFAATARBE ZE-REAATAEE 900087 104

“ECREAATRRE ZBCODFAATEA

2024 i FEIBEBRERAERAR

199



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR PITE R

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZE —=

27.

200

SHARE OPTIONS (CONT’D)

The terms and conditions of the share options that existed at
31 December 2024 and 2023 are as follows: (Cont’d)

“HFE+ZA=t+—HLEE

ﬁ HX *E ( ma

RZE-_WMER—E_=ZF+_A=+—
Bz BRI IEGEmT

(%)

Number of options
outstanding at 31 December

RT=A=t-BHKXTEN

Contractual
exercise price BREHA
(adjusted Adjusted after share consolidation
after share Contractual REf&GH&ER
Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period consolidation) life of options 2024 2023
RRTER
(R &
REAH ERH T %AR) BRESHES 152 2
Consultants (Cont'd)
B (%)
9 September 2016 8 September 2016 to 9 September 2017 to HK$58.20 10 years 48,000 48,000
8 September 2017 8 September 2025
—E-R"ENAANE :é /\MH/\HI “E-tENANBE 582087 104
Z—+EnANE  ZEZREFNANA
9 September 2016 8 September 2016 to 9 September 2018 to HK$58.20 10 years 48,000 48,000
8 September 2018 8 September 2025
“E-R"EAAAE CZE /\MH/\HI ZZ-\FNANAE 582087 104
Z-\EnANB  ZEZHEFNANR
9 September 2016 8 September 2016 to 9 September 2019 to HK$58.20 10 years 48,000 48,000
8 September 2019 8 September 2025
“E-REAANE :7 /\MH/\HI ZE-NENANBE 582087 104
Z-NENANE ZEZREENANA
9 September 2016 8 September 2016 to 9 September 2020 to HK$58.20 10 years 48,000 48,000
8 September 2020 8 September 2025
“E-REAANE ZE-REAANNRE ZZB-EEAANRE 582087 104
ZZ-FEAANE ZEZREFNANA
9 September 2016 8 September 2016 to 9 September 2021 to HK$58.20 10 years 48,000 48,000
8 September 2021 8 September 2025
“E-R"EAANE ZE-REAANRE ZB--FENAANRE 582087 104
“E-—-FnANA “Z-RfENANA
823,850 823,850
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27.

28.

SHARE OPTIONS (CONT’D)

As at 31 December 2024, the Company had 823,850 (2023:
823,850) share options outstanding under the Scheme. The
exercise in full of the remaining share options would, under
the present capital structure of the Company, result in the
issue of 823,850 (2023: 823,850) additional ordinary shares
of the Company and additional share capital of HK$164,770
(2023: HK$164,770) and share premium of approximately
HK$58,000,000 (2023: approximately HK$58,000,000) (before
issue expenses and transfer of share option reserve).

At the date of approval of these consolidated financial
statements, the Company had 823,850 share options
outstanding under the Share Option Scheme, which
represented approximately 0.3% of the Company’s shares in
issue as at that date.

As at 31 December 2024, the weighted average remaining
contractual life for the outstanding share options is 0.7 years
(2023: 1.7 years).

No share-based payments expense have been charged to profit
or loss for the year ended 31 December 2024 (2023: nil).

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these
consolidated financial statements, the Group had the following
transactions with related parties during the year.

Compensation of Key management personnel

The key management personnel of the Group are the directors
and the chief financial officer of the Company. The remuneration
of the key management personnel is determined by the
remuneration committee having regard to the performance of
individuals and market trends. The remuneration of the key
management (excluding directors) was as follows:
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2024 2023
—E-F ZE=F

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FHT FHT

Salaries and other benefits Fe MEHMEF 1,337 1,300
Retirement benefits scheme contributions RARNTE F T2 R 18 18
1,355 1,318
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZE —=

29.

202

INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES

“HFE+ZA=t+—HLEE

29. RIMIB R B 2w

Percentage of
Place of incorporation/  Registered/paid ownership interests Principal activities and
Name of company registration up share capital held by the Company place of operations
\ KATRERE
ARER Bl ANE S it/ MR EA BELLA ITEBREENY
2024 2023
- -3 Ik
Directly  Indirectly Directly  Indirectly
BE [k B [l
HK International Regenerative Centre Limited  Hong Kong HK$100/HKS100 - 100% = 100%  Aesthetic medical and beauty services
business, Hong Kong
BEARAEEETLERAT Bk 10077,/ 10087 X2RELEAMBEY B
CRMIHK Health Management Limited Hong Kong HKS1/HKS - 100% = 100%  Medical services business, Hong Kong
hEE(BR) RRERARAT i 1#/187T BRRHEE R
CRMIHK Asset Management Limited Hong Kong HKS1/HKS 1 - 100% = 100% - Investment holoing, Hong Kong
hEE(BR)EXERARAR B 187/ 1871 REBR B4
CRMIHK Health Technology Limited Hong Kong HKS1/HKS 1 100% - 100% - Investment holding, Hong Kong
TR (BR) RRRRARAR 3 187/ 1871 RERR FR
CRMIHK Investments Limited Hong Kong HK$1/HKS 1 - 100% - 100%  Investment holding, Hong Kong
hEE(BR) RERRAT B 187/ 18T RARR EB
CRMI HK Management Limited Hong Kong HKS1/HKS 1 100% - 100% - Investment holoing, Hong Kong
HEE(BE) ERERAA B 1#7/18T REARR EH
China Bio-Med Regeneration Brtish Virgin Islands US$20,000/ 100% - 100% - Investment holding, Hong Kong
Technology Limited 1US$20,000
AN EERENBEARAT LBRNES 20000%7 RERR FA
/000057
CRMI Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands USS1/USS1 100% - 100% - Investment holing, Hong Kong
hEERRERAT ZBRAES XL/ 1% REBR &
PEE(IR) BLELEREARAR The PRC RMB30,000,000/ - 100% - 100%  Aesthetic medical and beauty services
RMB NIl business, the PRC
hE AR 30,000,000 FERRREARBER  1E
T/ AREET
WEE (L) G EREAERAT The PRC RMB30,000,000/ - 100% - 100%  Aesthetic medical and beaty senvices
RMB Nil business, the PRC
lei AR 30,000,000 XEBBRENREES T E
T/ \REET
LEBEREEREABRAA The PRC RMB30,000,000/ - 100% - 100%  Aesthetic medical and beauy services
RMB Nil business, the PRC
Gilei AR %30,000,000 X2RERADREER TE
T/ ANREET
Longar Investments Limited British Virgin Islands US1/US$1 - 100% - 100%  Investment holding, Hong Kong
PRRARRAA ZERAES 1%n/1%7 RERR &%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

sre SRR T

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZ —Z_WF+_A=+—HILFE

29. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONT’D)

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.

30. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

The following table shows the carrying amounts of financial
assets and financial liabilities:

29. RMIB AR 2= (58)

RELINFREMMER  HEMBRAE
BITEMERKE S

30 cMEERSHEBEHNE

TREJICREERCRABIREE

2024 2023
—E-_mF —Eo=F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET TET
Financial assets SREE
Financial assets at amortised cost: BEHEKNAFTTENEREE -
Trade receivables 2 5 W I8 622 1,196
Deposits and other receivables B & H b fE UK I8 105,005 163,415
Cash and bank balances R & RIRTTAH 22,702 3,334
128,329 167,945
Financial liabilities o= =R
Financial liabilities at amortised cost: BEHEKNAFTTENEREE
Trade payables 2 S EMNRIE 3,841 2,473
Accruals and other payables FERT B A I A b e SRR 14,846 7,921
Lease liabilities HEAE 4,588 14,983
Shareholders’ loans REE 49,102 35,208
72,377 60,585

31. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain figures presented in the consolidated financial
statements have been changed from the classification by nature
as the directors consider that the current presentation is more
appropriate to consolidated financial statements.

31. kR F
NEAMEHRE2FMNETRIO RS

PESE REAEERAYN2IIRE
ARBRATEEAEA -
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

AR E

RESULTS E4
Financial Financial Financial Financial Financial
year ended year ended year ended year ended year ended
31 December ~ 31December ~ 31December 31 December 31 December
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
—Z-% —E--F S —E-=F —E-ME
t-B=+-A +zB=+-A +zB=t-H +-B=t-H +=A=t-A
LHHEE LEHER HBER LR BEE LEBEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i TAT i TAL TEx
(restated)
(#57))
Revenue g 182,136 282,897 41,537 69,487 90,617
Cost of sales HEKA (140,328) (215,170) (3,914) (50,084) (32,963)
Gross profit EF 41,808 67,727 37,623 19428 57,654
Other income and other loss EfpMAREMER 16,082 6,082 4518 2,393 458
Seling and distribution expenses BERDHRAX (6,747) (4,392) (3,604) (6,644) (6,626)
Administrative and other expenses TR REMR (40,201) (43,054) (22,213 (38,891) (44,892)
Impairment loss recognised for trade receivables & 7 M AM R AR EEE (663) - - = -
Impairment loss reversal (recognised) for EtEYERESRER (BR)
other receivables, net FE (36,762) 38,665 (7,276) (83,001) 12,290
Fair value gain on financial assets fair value BRATERERIIR EREEL
through profit or loss NEEYE 2,340 - - = -
Write off of deposits for acquisition of HHNERBLRRE
subsidiaries (100,000) - - - -
Finance costs HBER (17,906) (736) (781) @79) (1,132)
Loss from discontinued operations BRIESEEHER (284,349) (38.479) - S -
Profit/(loss) before tax BHAIER/ (F8) (426,448) 25,813 8,267 (107,699) 17,752
Income tax expense FERAEx (12,380) (12,465) (3,712) - -
Profit/(loss) for the year REERN/ (F8) (438,828 13,348 4,555 (107,699) 17,752
Attributable to: oL :
Equity holders of the Company AREERFAA (404,206) 13,348 4,555 (107,699) 17,752
Non-controling interests FERRFRER (34,602) = = = -
Profit/(loss) for the year REERAN/ (FE) (438,828) 13,348 4,555 (107,699) 17,752
As at 31 December
MtZA=t-8H
2020 2021 2022 2028 2024
“Z-% “E-—F - S “E-CF —ECoME
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AR TR TAR T TR
Total assets BaE 152,491 259,141 275,911 185,897 135,709
Total liabilties BEE (207,641) (147,419) (171,995) (174,104) (110,512)
(65,150) 111,728 103,916 11,793 25,197
204 China Regenerative Medicine International Limited Annual Report 2024
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